2 SPACE

BUSINESS PARKS REIT

January 29, 2024

To,
The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. BSE Limited
Exchange Plaza, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Plot No. C/1, G- Block, Dalal Street,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai- 400001

Bandra (E), Mumbai- 400051.

Scrip Symbol “MINDSPACE” (Units) Scrip Code “543217” (Units) and
Scrip Code “973069”, “973070”, “973754”,
“974075”, “974668”, “974882” and “975068”
(Debentures) and Scrip Code: “726151”
(Commercial Paper)

Subject: Outcome of the meeting of the Board of Directors of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers
Private Limited, (“Manager”) to Mindspace Business Parks REIT held on January 29, 2024

Dear Sir / Madam,

We wish to inform you that the Board of Directors (“Board”) of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers
Private Limited (“Manager”), Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT (“Mindspace REIT”) at its
meeting held on January 29, 2024, has, inter-alia:

1. noted that proceeds raised through issuance of following Commercial Paper by Mindspace REIT
during the quarter ended December 31, 2023 have been utilized in line with the
objects/purposes as stated in the Letter of Offer without any deviations or variations in the
stated use of proceeds.

Security Description ISIN BSE Scrip Code

3000 Rated, listed, unsecured, commercial papers series | INEOCCU14021 | 726151
2/2023-24 aggregating to Rs.1500 million (Rupees one
thousand five hundred million) at a face value of Rs.
5,00,000 each

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)
Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U68200MH2023PTC406104
Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, C-30, Block ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
Phone: +91 - 22- 2656 4000 | www.mindspacereit.com
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Further, we have enclosed: -

1. Details of extent and nature of security (ies) created and maintained with respect to each of the
Debentures are set out at Note No.15 of the Unaudited Condensed Standalone Interim Financial
Statements and at Note No.21(A) of the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements of Mindspace REIT for the quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2023,
(pursuant to Regulation 54(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations), 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”) as Annexure 1.

2. Security Cover Certificate pursuant to Regulation 54(3) of the SEBI LODR Regulations, as Annexure
2.

3. Statement of utilization of issue proceeds under Regulation 52(7) of SEBI LODR Regulations, as
Annexure 3.

The above information shall also be made available on Mindspace REIT's website viz;
https://www.mindspacereit.com/home under investor relations tab.

Please take the same on your record.

Thanking you,

Yours sincerely

For K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited

(Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)
(acting as Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

BHARAT Digitally signed by BHARAT
KANAKLAL 5 oaaoros 17110
SANGHAVI +05130

Bharat Sanghavi

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Membership No.: A13157

Encl.: as above

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)
Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U68200MH2023PTC406104
Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, C-30, Block ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
Phone: +91 - 22- 2656 4000 | www.mindspacereit.com
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ANNEXURE 1

H Chartered Accounta
D e I 0 I tte Lotzrs Clt;erporat:‘l‘): rk "
< 1st Floor, Wing A-G
CTS No. 185/, Jay Coach
Haskins & SellsLLP G ettt Expete oy
Goregaon (East)

Murnbai-400 0632
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED STANDALONE INTERIM
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To

The Beard of Directors,

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment
Managers LLP} (The “Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT}

Introduction

1. We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements
of MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT (the “REIT”), which comprise the unaudited Condensed
Standalone Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2023, the unaudited Condensed Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the unaudited Condensed
Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2023, the
unaudited Condensed Standalone Statement of changes in Unitholders’ Equity for the nine months
ended December 31, 2023, and the unaudited Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow for the
quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2023, as an additional disclosure in accordance with
paragraph 4.6 of Chapter 4 to the Security Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated July 06, 2023 ("SEBI Circular”) along with summary
of the material accounting policies and setect explanatory notes (together hereinafter referred as the
“Condensad Standalone Interim Financial Statements”).

2. The Ceondensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the
Investment Manager and approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager, have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations,
2014 as amended from time to time read with Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/P{CIRf2023/116 dated July 06, 2023 ("SEBI REIT Regulations”); Regulation 52 and Regulation 54
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”); Indian Accounting Standard {(Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed
in Ruie 2(1)(a) of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI REIT
Regulations. Qur responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Condensed Standalone Interim
Financial Statements based on our review.

Scope of review

3. We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE} 2410
‘Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity’, issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim financial information
consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Investment Manager's personnel responsible for
financial and accounting matters and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued
by ICAI and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of
all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit

opinion.
L2

i@r g, 32nd floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road {West), Mumbai-400 013, Maharashtra, India.
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Conclusion

Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 above, nothing
has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying Condensed Standalone
Interim Financial Statements have not been prepared in accordance with SEBI REIT Regulations, Ind
AS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended} and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI REIT Regulations and has not disclosed the
information required to be disclosed in terms of the Listing Regulations, including the manner in
which it is to be disclosed or that it contains any material misstatement.

Emphasis of matter

. We draw attention to Note 13(a) of the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements, which
describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” to comply with the SEBI REIT Regulations.
Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Nilesh Shah
Partner
Membership No. 49660
Mumbai, January 29, 2024 UDIN: 2Yoyqs (0 BKFefBHM2]




Mindspace Business Park REIT
RN:IN/REIT/15-20/003
Condensed Standalone Interim Balance Sheet
{all amounts are in Rs. million unbess otharwise stated)

Particulars Hote As at As at
31 December 2023 31March 2023
[Unaudited) {Audited}
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Financial assets
- Investments 4 1,53,103 153,103
- Loans 5 30,453 29,879
- Other financial assets [3 22 S64d
Other non-current assets 7 11 2
Total non-current assets 1,83.589 183,543
Current assets
Financial assets
- Loans 8 10,881 1,980
- Cash and cash equivalents 9 3,044 2,984
- Qthers financial assets 10 826 4
Other current assets 11 19 8
Total current asseis 14,720 4976
Total assets 1,98,359 1,88,524
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Corpus 12 0 o}
Unit capital 13 1,62,839 1,62,839
Other equity 14 3,186 3.202
Total equity 1,66,225 1,66,041
LIABILITIES
Mon-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings i5 20,304 19,892
- Other financial liabilities 16 26 540
Total non-current liabilities 20,430 20.432
Current liabilities
Financial lizhilities
- Borrowings 17 10,925 1,996
- Trade payables 18
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 1 1
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than 8 16
micro and small enterprise
- Qther financial liabilities 19 766 28
Other current liabilities 20 3 7
Current tax liabilities (net) 21 1 2
Total current liabilities 11,704 2,051
Total liabllities 32,134 22,483
Total equity and liabilities 1,98,359 1,588,524
Material accounting policies 3
See the accompanying notes to the condensed standalone 4-36

interirn financizl statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration number: 117366W/W-100018
g
e

Nilesh Shah
Partner
tembership number: 29660

\

Flace: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
K Rahefa Corp lovestment M Private Li

4

B

_ {Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

" {acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Pars REIT)

» ()
— /,.;ﬂ;- 3 . 1! Y}HA/
Nael €. Rafieja Ramesh Nair

\ee

Dirgctor Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 00023010
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date : 29 January 2024 Date : 29 January 2024

p IL_LA_}._J;‘“-H
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Preeti N. Chheda
Chief Finoncial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024
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Mindspace Business Park REIT
RN:IN/REITS/19-20/003

Cond d Standalone Interim i of Cash Flaws
[all are in Rs. million wless otherwise stuted}
Particulars For the quarter For the guarter  For the quarter ended Forthe nine monthe  For the nine menths  For the year ended
ended ended endad ended
31 December 2023 30 Septermber 2023 31 Dacemnber 2022 31 Decamnber 2023 31 Dacember 2072 31 March 2123
[Unaudited)* [Unaudited}* {Unanditad]* {Unaudited) [Unaudited) [Auditad)
A Cash flows from operating activitias
Profit bafors tay 2,917 2,280 2,918 8,731 8559 11,509
Adjustments for:
Interest income {935} [250] |1584) 12,530} [1,514] 2,123]
Dividend Income {2,640) {2.612) 12,577) (7,906) {7,854) (10,662)
Guarantee commission fees 12} [§1] {4} 4} {13} (18]
Gain on redemption of mutual fund units {2) {2 1] 12} {15) 21)
Finance costs 617 533 306 1,604 204 1,13%
Opersting profit before warking capital changes 35) {47) {42) {t17) {135) 1174}
Mavement in warking capital
[Increase) / Dacraase in other inandal assets and othar asssts 2 12) 4 (24) {15) 15}
{Cacraasa) / Incraase in finandal and other liabilitias {2} 16 4 17 5 o
|Decrease] / Incraass in trade payables 81} 1) (1} & 1) 7
Cath {used in) / genarated from operations {36} (43} 135) (132) (145) (182]
Income tax paid [net) 3} 3} 15] [t]] i10) 117}
Net cash (used in) / ganerated from operating activities [A) {29] [46) (40) {1409 {155] [199)
B Cash flows from investing activities
Loans repaid by SPY 9,270 6,205 5,915 25,210 3,775 45025
Loans glven to 5PVs {8.748) {11,154) |6,958) 134,685) 32,797} 150,615)
Maturity proceeds of fixed deposits - - - E E06 806
Investment in fived deposit - - - - (800] (200}
investmant in Mutual Fund 910} {729 {4,120) 5,329) 8,316) {13,305)
Praceeds from rademption of mutual fund 91z 7a1 4,136 6,341 8,331 12,330
Dividend Received 2,640 2,612 2672 7,906 7,854 10,662
Interest received B40 7E0 504 2,254 1,856 2588
Net cash (used in] / generated from invasting activities (8} 4,006 {1,615} 2,140 657 8,803 487
€ Cosh flows from finandng actiwitiss
Proceeds from issue of Commaercial Paper 1,448 =3 g3 1446 aes g3
Redemption of Commercial Papar . - . - - {o83)
Procesds from issue of debentures - 5000 - 10,000 5,000 10,500
Rademption of debeniures {2,000] - - {2,000) 15,0001 {5,000}
Distribution to unit holders {2,241) 2,846 12,917] {8,539) 18,362) 11,208}
F. v Exp Fund Dep - . {1] (] 11}
Interest paid {530) |455) 225} (1,34€) {1,004) 1,351)
Debantures kssue expenses i 28] = 155) {26/ 58]
Wet cazh [used in) / generated from financing activities [ C} {3,532| 1,672 [2.059) [#97] |8.500) {7.118)
Net (decrease] fincrease in cash and cash equivatents 35 it 41 &0 154 17
Cash and ¢ash equivalents at the beginning of the period /
year 3,009 2.998 2,927 2,584 2,814 2814
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period f year 3,044 3,009 2,968 3,044 2,965 2,984
€ash and cash equivalants comprise:
Cash on hand - - ] 0 -
Balance with banks
- in current accounts 2044 3,009 2,968 3,044 2,968 2,984
- in escrow actounts - = - - = .
Cazh and cash equivalents at the and of the peried / year [refar
nate 9} 3.034 2009 2,968 3,044 2,98 2,984
Iatarial accounting policies 3
Sea the ing notes to the condensed al
interim financial statemants. 4-36

*rafer note 33
As per our report of even date attached.

For Deloitte Haskins & Selis LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration number; 117366W/W-100018

/W/b/l&b'/

Nitesh Shah
Partner
Membership pumber; 43650

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 lanuary 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Diractors of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
|Fgrmerly known as K faheja Corp Investment Managers LLP}

(i Eiﬁn'g as the WMarfiger to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

N Y
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frekl C\Rahejd
Dire f?&

DiNsponzdain

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024
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éame.sh Nair
Chiaf Executive Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024

IS AIZ Caa

Preeti N. Chheda
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 Janyary 20024



Mindspace Business Park REIT

Cond d Standalone Interi t of Changes in Unlt holder's Equity
{al amounts are In Rs. Millions unless otherwise stated)

Corous

Particulars Amount
Batance as on 1 April 2022 o
Add : Changes durlng the year

Balance as on 31 March 2023 o
Balance as on 1 April 2023 Q
Add : dur  the

as at 21 December 2023

Balance as on 1 April 2022
Add : Changes during the period
Closing balance as at 31 December 2022

Unit Capital

Particulars Amount
Batance as on 1 April 2022 1,62,839
Add : Changes during the year

Balance as on 31 March 2023 1.62.839
Balance as on 1 April 2023 1,62,839
Add : Changes during the period

Closine balance a5 at 31 December 2023 1.62.839
Balance as on 1 April 2022 1,62,835
Other equity

Particwlars Retained Earmings
Balance as on 1 April 2022 2,920
Profit for the yaar 11,452
Other comprehensive income for the year

Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 31 hMarch 2022* (2,724)
Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 30 lune 2022* (2.811)
Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter andaed 30 September 2022* (2.817)
Less: Distribution to Unit hotders for the auarter anded 31 December 2032 2 846}
Balance at 31 March 2023 3.202
Balance as on 1 April 2023 3,202
Profit for the period £,724
Other comprehensive income for the peried

Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023% |2,852)
Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023° [2,846)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 Seoctamber 20234 28411
Balance at 31 Decamber 2023 33868
Balance as on 1 April 2022 2,920
Profit for the perlod 8,545
Other compreheanzive income for the paricd

Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 31 March 2022 {2,734)
Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 30 June 2032* {,811)
Less: Gistribution to Unit holders for the auarter ended 30 September 2.817)
Balance at 31 December 2002 3,103

*The distributlons made by Mindspace REIT to its Unit holders are based on the Mat Distributable Cash flows (NDCF) of Mindspace REIT under the
REIT Regulations.

See the accompanying notes to the condensed standalone 4-36
interim financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Deloltte Hasking & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Baard of Directors of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
Chartered Accountants known az K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)
Firm's registration number: 117366W/\W-100018 the Manager to Parks REIT)
Nilesh Shah Ramesh Nalr ) Preetl M. Chheda
Partner Chief Exacutive Officer Chief Financial Officer
fembership number: 49660
Place: Mumbai Flace: Mumbai Flace: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024 Cate : 29 January 2024  Date: 29 January 2024 Date : 29 January 2024

A



{all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

S.no

w

10

Description

Cash Hows received from Asset 5PVs including but
not limited to:

interest

dividends [net of applicable taxes)
. repayment of REIT Funding

proceeds fram buy-hacks/ capital reduction
{net of applicable taxes)

redamption proceeds from preference shares
or any othar similar instrument

Add: Praceeds from sale of investments, assets,
sale of shares of Asset SPVs, liquidation of any other
asset or investrment (incl. cash equivalents) or any
farm of fund raise at Mindspace REIT level adjusted
for the following:

applicable capital gains and other taxes, if
any

debts settled or due to be settled from sale
praceeds
transaction casts

proceeds re-invested or planned to be
reinvested in accordance with the REIT regulations

any acquisition

investments as permitted under the REIT
regulations

lending to Assat SPVs

as may be deemed necessary hy the Manager

Add: Praceeds from sate of investmeants, assets or
sale of shares of Asset SPVs not distributed
pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest in
accardance with the REIT Regulations, if such
proceeds are not intended to be investad
subsequently

Add: Any other income received by Mindspace REIT
not captured herain

Less: Any other expenses paid by Mindspace REIT
not captured herein

Less: Any expense in the nature of capital
expenditure at Mindspace REIT evel

Less: Net debt repayment f (drawdown),
redemption of preference shares / debentures / any
other such instrument / premiums £ any other
obligations / liabilities, etc., as maybe deemed
necessary by the Manager

Add/fLess: Other adjustmeants, including but not
limited to net changes in security deposits, working
capital, etc., as may be deemed necessary by the
Manager

Less: Interest paid on external debt borrowing at
Mindspace REIT level

Less: incoma tax and other taxes (i applicable) at
the Standalone Mindspace REIT level

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF}

#

For the quarter
ended

31 December
2023
{Unaudited)

540
2,640

5,906

{3,926)

2}

(2,000}

i45)

530}

i3

2,872

For the quartes
ended

30 September 2023

Unaudited!

760
2,612

7,124

(7.124)

{14]

{46}

[455)

3]

2,855

For the quarter
ended

For the nina
months ended

31 December 31 Decermber 2023

2022
{Unaudited)

504
2,672

3,743

{3,743)

(9

(28)

{225)

(s)

2,855

[Unaudited!

2,254
7,906

24,715

[22,735)

12

{37)

{2,000)

{169)

{1,348)

(8

8.590

For the nine
months ended

31 December 2022

[Unaudited)

1,856
7,954

27,830

(26)

{22,813}

{24)

{5,000

{213]

(1,094)

{10)

8,494

For the year ended

31 March 2023

{Audited}

2,328
10,662

43,449

(26)

[37.440)

31

(34)

(5.933)

324)

(1.351)

17)

11.355



Mindspace Business Park REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Met Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Chapter 3, Paragraph 3.20 ta SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116

{all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Hotes:

1 The Board of Directors of the Manager to the Trust, in their meeting held on 29 January 2023, has declared distribution to unitholders of Rs 4.80 per unit which aggregates to Rs. 2,846 million for
the quarter ended 31 December 2023. The distributions of Rs 4.80 per unit comprises Rs. 4.2% per unit in the form of dividend, Rs, 0.50 per unit in the form of interest payment and Rs. 0.01 per

unit in the form of other income.

Along with the distribution of Rs. 9.59 per unit far the half year ended 30 September 2023, the cumulative distribution for the nine months ended 31 December 2023 ageregates to Rs. 14,39 per

unit,

2 Repayment of REIT funding which s further lent to SPVs has been captured under "Liquidation of assets"
3 Lending ta and repayment from $PVs within the same period has been adjusted under "Other Adjustments” and Includes loan given by REIT to SPY out of surplus funds or repayment of such loans.

4 NDCF is calculated on quarterly basis and amount presented for the nine months and year end is mathematical summation of quarterly numbers.

As per our report of even date attached:
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s regictration number: 117366W,/W-100015

/\Jwﬂ/

Nitesh Shah

Fartner
Membership number; 49660

Flace: Mumbai
Date: 29 January 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
K Raheja Carp Investment Managers Private Limited

(Rormerly known as K Rahe]a Corp Investment Managers LLP)
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1

Mindspace REIT Information

Mindspace Business Parks REIT {'Mindspace REIT or 'Trust') was set up on 18 November 2019 at Mumbai, Maharashtra, India as a contributory,
determinate and irrevocable trust under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882, pursuant to a trust deed dated 18 November 2019,
Mindspace REIT was registered with Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI") on 10 December 2019, at Mumbai as a Real Estate
Investment Trust (‘REIT') pursuant to the SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including
guidelines and circulars issued thereunder ('REIT Regulations'} having registration number IN/REIT/19-20/0003. The Trust's principal place of

business address is at Raheja Tower, Level 8, Block 'G', C-30, Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai - 400 051,

Anbee Constructions LLP {ACL) and Cape Trading LLP {'CTL’) are the sponsors of Mindspace REIT. The Trustee to Mindspace REIT is Axis Trustee

Services Limited (the ‘Trustee’) and the Manager for Mindspace REIT is K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (the ‘Manager').

The objectives and principal activity of Mindspace REIT is to carry on the activity of a real estate investment trust, as permizsible under the REIT
Regulations, to raise funds through the REIT, to make investments in accordance with the REIT Regulations and the investment strategy and to
carry on the activities as may be required for operating the REIT, including incidental and ancillary matters thereto.

The units of the Trust were listed on the BSE Limited {BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited {NSE) on 7 August 2020.
The brief activities and shareholding pattern of the Special Purpose Vahicles ('SPVs') are provided below:

Name of the SPYV

Activities

Equity Shareholding {in
percentage)
as at 31 December 2023

Equity Shareholding [in
percentage)
as at 31 March 2023

Mindspace Businass Parks
Private Limited {MBPPL)

The SPV is engaged in real estate development
projects such as Special Economic Zone ({SE2),
Infarmation Technology Parks and other commercial
assets. The SPY has its projects in Airoli (Navi
tMumbai}, Pune and Pacharam (Hyderabad). The 5Py
is a deemed distribution licensee pursuant to which
it can distribute power to the SEZ tenants within the
Park. It commenced distribution of electricity in its
project at Airoli, Navi Murnbai from 9 April 2015 .

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Gigaplex Estate Private
Limited {Gigaplex]

The 5PV is engaged in real estate development
projects such as Special Economic Zone (SEZ),
Information Technology Parks and other commercial
assets. The SPV has its projects in Airoli {Navi
Mumbai). The SPV is a deemed distribution licensee
pursuant to which it can distribute power to the SEZ
tenants within the Park. It commenced distribution
of electricity in its project at Airoli, Navi Mumbai
fram 19 April 2016,

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Mindspace REIT : 100%
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Name of the SPV

Activities

Equity Shareholding (in
percentage)
as at 31 December 2023

Equity Shareholding {in
percentage)
as at 31 March 2023

Sundew Properties Limited
(Sundaw)

The SPY s engaged in development and
laasingflicensing of Information Technology {IT) park,
SEZ to different customers in Hyderabad.

Mindspace REIT : 89%
Telangana State [ndustrial
Infrastructure Corporation
Limited {11%)

Mindspace REIT : 89%
Telangana State Industrial
Infrastructure Corporation
Limited (11%)

Intitme Proparties Limited
(Intime})

The SPV is engaged in development and
leasing/flicensing of IT park to different customers in
Hyderzbad.

Mindspace REIT : 85%
Telangana State Industrial
Infrastructure Corporation
Limited {11%)

Mindspace REIT : 89%
Telangana $tate Industrial
Infrastructure Corporation
Limited (11%)

K. Raheja IT Park
{Hyderabad) Limited {KRIT)

The 5PV is engaged in development and
leasing/licensing of (T park to different customers in
Hyderabad.

Mindspace REIT : 89%
Telangana State Industrial
Infrastructure Corparation
Lirnited [11%)

Mindspace REIT : 85%
Telangana State Industrial
Infrastructure Corporation
Lirnited {11%)

KRC Infrastructura And
Projects Private Limited
{(KRC Infra)

The SPV is engaged in real estate development
projects such as Special Economic Zone (SEZ) and
Information Technology Parks. The 5PV has its
project in Kharadi Pune.The SPV is 3 deemed
distribution flicensee pursuant to which it can
distribute power to the SEZ tenants within the Park.
It commenced distribution of electricity in its project
at Kharadi, Pune from 1 June 2019,

The SPV is also engaged in Facility Management
services.

Mindspaca REIT : 100%

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Harizonview Properties
Private Lirnited
{Horizonview)

The SPY is engaged in development and
leasing/licensing of IT park to different customers in
Chennai.

Mindspace REIT - 100%

Kindspace REIT - 200%

Avatado Properties and
Trading Private Limited
[Avacado)

The SFY has developed an industrial park for the
purpose of letting out to different customers in
Paradigm building st Malad-Mumbai and is being
maintained and operated by the SPV. The 5PV also
has a commaercial project in Bandra Kurla Complex,
Murnbai.

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Mindspace REIT : 100%

-~ S‘Q'
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2

b}

€}

d

Basls of Preparation

The Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements of Mindspace Business Parks REIT comprises the Condensed Standalone Interim
Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2023, the Condensed Standalone Interim Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprebensiva
income, the Condensed Standalone Interimn Statement of Cash Flow for the guarter and nine months ended Decamber 31, 2023, the Condensed
Standalone Statement of Changes in Unitholders Equity for the nine months ended Dacember 31, 2023, and the Condensed Standalene Interim
Statement of Net Distributable Cashflows of Mindspace Business Parks REIT for the quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2023, and a
summary of the material accounting policies and select explanatory information and other additional financial disclosures.

The condensed standalone interim financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange
Board of India {Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including guidelines and circulars issued
thereunder read with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated & July 2023 [“the REIT regulations”); Regulation 52 and
Regulation 54 of the SEBL (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, as amended from time to time {"Listing
Regulations”); Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2{1)(3) of the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended) and other accounting pringiples generally accapted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with
the REIT regulations. {refer note 13 on presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” instead of compound instruments under Ind AS 32 - Financial
Instruments: Presentation).

Accordingly, these condensed standalone interim financial statements do not include afl the information required for a complete set of financial
staternents, These condensed standalone interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the standalone financial staternents of
the Trust for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initizlly adopted or a revision to an
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

These condensed standalone interim financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of
Directors of the Manager on January 29, 2024,

Statement of compliance to Ind-AS

These Condensed Standalone financial statemenis for the quarter and nina months ended 31 December 2023 have been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”,as prescribed in Rule 2{1){a} of the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended) to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT regulations as more fully described above and Note 13 to the
condensed standalone financial statements.

Material accounting policies

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also Mindspace REIT functional currency in which
Mindspace REIT operates. All financial information presentad in Indian Rupees has baen rounded off to the nearest million except otherwise
stated.

Basis of measurement

These Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
{refer accounting policy regarding financial instrument) measured at fair values.

Use of judgments and estimates

The preparation of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in tndia {Ind
AS) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported arnounts of assets, fiabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which tha estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most material effect on the amounts recognised in the
Condensed Standalone Financial Statemends is included in the following notes:

(i) Presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” in accordance with the SEBI REIT Regulations instead of compound instrument {Note no 13}

{ii) Bnpairment and Fair valuation of Investments in SPVs and Impairment of loans to SPVs.

{ili) recognition and measurement of provisions for contingencies and disclosure of contingent liabilities {Note 30 {a))

Current versus non-current classification

Mindspace REIT presents assets and liabilittes in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification:

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consurmed in normal cperating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- Itis expected to be settled in normat operating cycle;

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at [east twelve months after the reporting period.
Mindspace REIT classifies all ather liabilities as non-current. i
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. //@k'” ?\’}\
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their rgalidaiion in cadyan
Mindspace REIT has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. U
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3.5

Measurement of fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly cbservable or estimated using another valuation
technigue. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
and how market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Mindspace REIT accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and
Mindspace REIT regularly reviews significant uncbservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used to measure
fair values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet
the requirements of Ind &S, Including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, Mindspace RE'T uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are
categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation tachniques as follows:

» Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or llabilities that entity can aceass on measurement date.

» Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or
indirectly [i.e. derived from prices).

« Level 3: inputs for the asset or lfability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement.

Impairment of assets

Mindspace REIT assesses at each reporting date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
trust estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of the assets (or where applicable that of the cash generating unit
to which the asset belongs) is estimated as the higher of its net selling price and its vafue in use. Value in use iz the present value of estimated
future cash flows {discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset) expected to arise from the continuing use of the assets and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be
tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGU. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or the ¢ash-
generating unit to which it belangs, exceeds its racoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised in the Condensed Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset [or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment foss been recognised for the asset [or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Asset Acquisition

if the acquisition of an asset or a group of assets does not constifute a business, Mindspace REIT identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired {including those assets that meet the definition of, and recognition criteria for, intangible assets in Ind AS 38,
Intangible Assets) and liabilities assumed. The cost of the group is allocated to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase and no goodwill is recognised.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions. Exchange differences
arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the period/ year are recognised in the Staternent of Profit and Loss of the period/ year.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the end of the period and not covered by forward
contracts, are translated at the end of the period at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the
Condeansed Standzlone Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instrurments issued by Mindspace REIT are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial Hability and an equity instrument. A conversian
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Trust’s own equity
instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible
instruments. This amount is recorded as a liabiiity on an amortised cost basis using the effective interast method uniil extinguished upon
conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the falr value of the
compound instrument as a whole, Thisis recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible instruments are allocated to the lisbility and equity components in proportion ta the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating
to the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the lives of the convertible
instrument using the effective interest method.

Embedded derivatives
A derivative embedded in 3 hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a
separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not ciosely related to the host; 3 separate instrument with the same terms as
the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair vatue through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is
either a change in the terms of the cantract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financia! asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category. .
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Tax expense .

income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. It is recognised in the Condensed Standalone Staterment of Profit
and Loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive incorne in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in equity and other comprehensive income respectively.

a} Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the period and any adjustment to the tax payable ar
receivable In respect of previous years, The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by
end of reporting period.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset onty if thare is 3 legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to
realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously,

b} Deferred tax
Deferred tax asset/ liability is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Condensed
Standalone Financial Statements and the corrasponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, using the tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pericd.

The measurement of deferred tax lizbilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
Mindspace REIT expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all
deductible terporary differences 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
termnporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in 3 transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to aliow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities, and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assats and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when Mindspace REIT has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Trust will be required to settle the obligation, and a refiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
pravision is the best estimate of the constderation net of recoveries if any, required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific {o the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but will probably not, require an cutflow
of resources. When there is a possible obligation of a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no
provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received under it, are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources ermbodying econcmic
benefits will be raquired to settle a prasent obligation as a result of an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of such obligation. if the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted.

A contingent asset is disclosed when there would be a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence of non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of Mindspace REIT,

Pravisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
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a}

b}

<l

d)

Investment in SPVs

The Company has elected to recognize its investments in SPVs at cast in accordance with the option available in Ind AS 27, “Separate Financial
Statements’. The details of such investments are given in Note 4.

Assets representing investments in SPVs are reviewed for impairment,whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that carrying
amount may not be recoverable, Such circumstances include, though are not limited to, significant or sustained decline in revenues or earnings
and material advarse changes in the economic environment,

Financial Instruments

1

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and/or financial labilities are recognised when Mindspace REIT becomes party to a contract embodying the related financlal
instruments. All financial assets, financial Fabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from as the case may be, the fair value of such assets or liabilities, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities a1 fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets:

Classification of financial assets:

{i) Mindspace REIT classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsaquently at fair value {either through other comprehensive income, or through the Statement of Profit
and Loss), and
- those measured at amortised cost.

{li)  The classification Is done depending upon Mindspace REIT business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

{iil}  Forinvestments in debt instrumants, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held.

{iv] Mindspace REIT reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

<uly + B "

{iy  Investment in Debt instruments:
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on Mindspace REIT business modeal for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categaries into which the Trust classifies its debt instruments:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective isto
hold thesa assets in order to collect contractual ¢ash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principat amount outstanding

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCH)

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held
within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely
payments of principal and interest an the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Financtal assets are subsequently rneasured at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss unless it is measured at amortised
cost or fair valug through other comprebensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Impatrment of financlal assets:
The Mindspace REIT applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measurad at amortised cost,
lease receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset. For trade receivables, the Mindspace
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime
expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Mindspace Group has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109,
This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and
adjusted for forward-looking information.
Derecognition of financial assets:
A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:
m the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or
{iiy  Mindspace REIT has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset; and
Mindspace REIT has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
Mindspace REIT has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety (pther than investments in equity instruments at FVOCI), the differences between
the tarrying amounts measured at the date of derecognition and the consideration received is recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by Mindspace REIT is recognised as a separate asset or
liability.
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{a) Classification as debt or equity
Financlal liabilities and equity instruments issued by Mindspace REIT are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Financial Liabilities
Recognition, measurement and elassification
Financial Yiabilities are classified as either held at a) fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss, or b) at amortised cost. Management

determines the classification of its financial liabilities at the time of initial recognition or, where applicable, at the time of reclassification.

Mindspace RE(T financial liabilities incfude trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and derivative financial instruments. Subsequent
measurernent of financial liabilities depends on their classification as fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss or at amortised
cost. All changes in fair value of financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortised cost
category is applicable to loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. After initial recognition the financial fiabilities are measured at
amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate methed.

Derecognltion

A financial liability is deracognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Gains and losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lass when the liabilities are derecognised.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and presented on net basis in the Balance Sheet when there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention either to setile on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilitias
simultaneously.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated. Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are constdered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated. Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are separated
only if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of

the host and are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a lass it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are measured initially at the fair value and in accordance with Ind AS 109 unless on a case to case basis elected to
be accounted for financial guarantee as Insurance Contracts as specified under Ind AS 104,

Revenue Recopnition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. This inter alia involves discounting of the consideration due to
the present value if payment extends beyond normal credit terms.

Revenue is recognised when recovery of the consideration is probable and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which Mindspace REIT's right to receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrurment to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

In calcutating interest incorne, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired). However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of
interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs {including exchange differences refating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitatised as

part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the financial instrument to the amortised cost of the financial liability. In calculating interest
axpense, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost of the liability.
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3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17
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3.19

3.20

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at bank and cn hand, demand deposits, other short term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
¢hanges in value.

Cash distribution to unit holders

Mindspace REIT recognises a liability to make cash distributions to Unithclders when the distribution is authorised and a legal obligation has
been created. As per the REIT Regufations, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Manager. A
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash flows

Cash flow is reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash recelpts or payments. The cash flows from aperating, investing and financing activities of
Mindspace REIT are segregated.

For the purpase of the Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Mindspace REIT's cash management.

Subsequent events

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are adjusted to reflect events that occur after the reporting date but before the Financial
Statements are issued. The Financial Staternents have their own date of authorisation. Therefore, when preparing the Financial Statements,
management considers events up to the date of authorisation of these financia? statements.

Earnings per unit

The basic eamings per unit is computed by dividing the net profit/ {loss) attributable to the unit holders of the REIT by the weighted average
number of units outstanding during the reporting period. The number of units used in computing diluted earnings/ {loss) per unit comprises the
weighted average units considered for dariving basic earnings/ (loss) per unit and also the weighted average number of units which could have

been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential units.
Dilutive potential units are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been issued at a later date. in

computing diluted earnings per unit, only potential equity units that are dilutive and which either reduces earnings per share or increase loss per
units are included.

Earnings before finance costs and tax

Mindspace REIT has elected to present earnings before finance cost and tax as a separate line item on the face of the Condensed Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss. Mindspace REIT measures earnings before finance cost and tax on the basis of profit/ {loss) from continuing
operations. In its measuremeant, Mindspace REIT does not include finance costs and tax expense,

Errars and estimates

Mindspace REIT revises its accounting pelicies if the change is required due 1o a change in Ind AS or if the change will provide mere relevant and
reliable information to the users of the Financial Statement. Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively,

A change in ap accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets or liabilities or ta profit or loss is applied
prospectively In the period{s) of change.

Discovery of errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, liabilittes and aquity of the earliest prior
period in which the error is discovered. The opening balances of the earliest period presented are also restated.
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3.1

3.22

Distributions
The Net Distributable Cash Flows of Mindspace REIT are based on the cash flows generated from Mindspace REIT's assets and investments.

In terms of the Distribution Policy and the REIT Regulations, not less than 50% of the NDCF of each of the Asset SPVs is required to be distributed
to Mindspace RELT, in proportion of their shareholding in the Asset SPV, subject to applicable provisions of the Companies Act. Presently, NDCF
to be received by Mindspace REIT from the Asset SPVs may be in the form of dividends, interest income, principal loan repaymant, proceeds of
any capital reduction or buyback from the Asset SPVs, sale proceeds out of disposal of investments Iif any or assets directly held by Mindspace
REIT or as specifically permitted under the Trust Deed or in such other form as may be permissible under the applicable Jaw.

The Manager is required to and shall declare and distribute at least 90% of the NDCF of Mindspace REIT as distributions {(“REIT Distributions”) to
the Unitholders. Such REIT Distributions shall be declared and made for every quarter of a Financial Year.

Amended standards
{a) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to

amend the following Ind AS which are effectiva from April 01, 2023:

tnd AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of
primary users of general purpose financial staterents. This amendment does not have any significant impact in the financial statements.

Ind AS 12 = Incame Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The
amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption] so that it no
langer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temparary differences. This amendment
does not have any significant impact in the financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in
accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if
accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty, This amendment
does not have any significant impact in the financial statements.

There were certain amendments to standards and interpretations which are applicable for the first time for the nine months ended 31
December 2023, but either the same are not relevant or do not have an impact on the condensed standalone financial statements.
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4 Non-current investments

As at 31 December 2023 As at 31 March 2023

Particulars

Unquoted Investments in SPVs (at cost}{rafer note below)

- 39,75,000 (21 March 2023: 39,75,000) equity shares of Avacado Properties and Trading Private 9,482 9,482
Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up

- 11,765 (31 March 2023: 11,765} equity shares of Horizonview Properties Private Limited of 0 0
Rs.10 each, fully paid up

- 5,88,235 {31 March 2023: 5,88,235) equity shares of KRC Infrastructure And Projects Private 65,868 6,368
Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up

-1,96,01,403 {31 March 2023: 1,96,01,403) equity shares of Gigaplex Estate Private Limited of 13121 13,111
Rs.1 each, fully paid up

- 2,50,71,875 {21 March 2023: 2,50,71,875) equity sharas of Sundew Properties Limited of Rs.10 33,722 33722
each, fully paid up

- 12,032,033 (31 March 2023; 12,03,033) equity shares of Intime Properties Limited of Rs.10 each, 15,478 15,478
fully paid up

-1,78,00,000 (31 March 2023: 1,78,00,000) equity shares of K. Raheja IT Park {Hyderabad) 25,618 25618
Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up

- 81,513 (31 March 2023: 81,513) equity shares of Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited of 48,814 48,814
Rs.10 each, fully paid up

Total 1,53,103 1,53,103

Note: The Trust has issued units as consideration ta acquire these investments wherein the tradable REIT Unit has been issued at Rs 275 each.

Refer Note 1 for details of % shareholding in the SPVs held by Mindspace REIT.
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5 Loans (Non current)

Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to SPVs- refer Note 29 30,453 29,879
Total 30,453 29,879

Note : Mindspace REIT has given loan amounting Rs. 34,685 million and repayment done by SPVs amounting Rs. 25,210 million during
the nine months ended 31 December 2023 to Gigaplex, Avacado , Horizonview, Sundew, KRC Infra, MBPPL and KRIT and the
outstanding balance as at end of 31 December 2023 is Rs. 41,334 million {including Loans to 5PVs of current nature amaounting to Rs.
10,881 million} {31 March 2023 Rs. 31,859 million, including Loans to SPVs of current nature amounting to Rs. 1,980 million) { refer
note §).

Security: Unsecured

Interest : 8.55% - 8.60% per annum for the period ended 31 December 2023 (31 March 2023 - 7.22% - 8.40% per annum] in
accordance with interest rate policy adopted by Mindspace REIT.

Terms of repayment:

a) Bullet repayment of Rs. 9,978 million on date falling 15 years from the first disbursement date or such other date as may be
mutually agreed between the Lender and the Borrower in writing. (31 March 2023 - 9,969 million}

b} Bullet repayment of Rs. 4,470 million is due on 17 May 2024 and accordingly the same has been classified as current as on 31
December 2023. {31 March 2023 - 4,470 million} {refer note 8)

¢) Bullet repayment of Rs. 1,980 mitlion is made on 16 December 2023 during the quarter ended 31 December 2023 and accordingly
the same was classified as current as on 31 March 2023, {refer note 8}

d) Bullet repayment of Rs. 4,965 million is due on 31 December 2024 and accordingly the same has been classified as current as on 31
December 2023. {31 March 2023 - Rs. 4,965 million) (refer note 8)

@) Bullet repayment of Rs. 4,975 million is due on 27 July 2027. {31 March 2023 - Rs. 4,975 million)

f) Bullet repayment of Rs. 5,500 million is due on 13 April 2026. {31 March 2023 - Rs. 5,500 million})

g) Bullet repayment of Rs. 5,000 million is due on 30 June 2026. (31 March 2023 - Rs. Nil]

h) Bullet repayment of Rs. 5,000 million is due on 10 December 2026. {31 March 2023 - Rs. Nit}

i}Bullet repayment of Rs. 1,446 million is due on 06 June 2024 and accordingly the same has been classified as current as on 31
December 2023, (31 March 2023 - Rs, Nil) {refer note 8)

& Other financial assets (Non-current)

Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Intevest receivable on loan to SPYs s 530
Other receivables from related parties {refer Note 29) 19 31
Deposits 3 3
Total 22 564
7 Other non-current assets
Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Prepaid expenses 11 2
Total 11
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8 Loans (Current)

Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to SPVs- refer Note 5 and 29 10,881 1,980
Total 10,881 1,980

9 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Cash on hand - -
Balances with banks
- in current accounts* {refer Note 29) 3,044 2,984
Total 3,044 2,984

*Includes balance with banks of Rs. 0 million {31 March 2023 Rs. 0 million } for unpaid distributions.

10 Other financial assets {Current)

Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Interest receivable on loan to SPVs {refer Note 29} 806 -
Other receivables from related parties {refer Note 29] 19 4
Other receivables from others 1
Total 826 4

11 Other current assets

Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Advance for supply of goods and rendering of services 2 1
Prepaid expenses 15 6
Balances with government avthorities 2 1
Total 19 8
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13

(a)

ib)

{c}

Corpus

Particulars Amount

Balance as at 1 April 2022
Additions during the yaar

Balance as at 31 March 2023

Balance as at 1 April 2023
Additions during the period

ol olo|g ©

Balance as at 31 December 2023

Unit Capital

Particulars No. Amount

As at 1 April 2022 59,30,18,182 1,62,839
Moavement during the year 5 =
As at 31 March 2023 £9,30,18,182 1,62,839
As at 1 April 2023 £9,30,12,182 1,62,839
Movement during the period T =

Closing Balance as at 31 December 2023 £9,30,18,182 1,62,839

Terms/rights attached to units and other disclosures

Mindspace REIT has only one class of Units. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in Mindspace REIT. Each holder of Units is entitled to one vote
per unit. The Unitholders have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust at least once in every six months in each financial
year in accordance with the REIT Regulations. The Board of Directors of the Manager approves distributions. The distribution will be in proportion to the number
of Units held by the Unit holders. Mindspace REIT declares and pays distributions in Indian Rupees,

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, Mindspace REIT is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the net distributable cash flows of
Mindspace REIT for each financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital contains a contractual obligation of the Mindspace REIT to pay to its Unitholders
cash distributions. Hence, the Unit Capital is a2 compound financial instrument which contains equity and Jiability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 -
Financial Instruments: Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Circular {No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated 6 July 2023) issued under the
REIT Regutations, the Unitholders’ funds have been presented as “Equity” in order to comply with the requirements of Section H of Chapter 3 to the SEBI Master
Circular dated 06 July 2023 dealing with the minimum presentation and disclosure requirements for key financial statements. Consistent with Unlt Capital being
classified as equity, the distributions to Unitholders is also presented in Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity when the distributions are approved by the
Board of Directors of the Investment Manager.

Unlt holders holding more than 5 percent Units in Mindspace REIT

Name of the unit holder As at 31 December 2023 As at 31 March 2023
No of Units % holding Nao of Units % holding
Platinum (llurmination A 2018 Trust 543,75,000 217% 5,43,75,000 9.17%
Anbee Constructions LLP 3,54,04,850 5.97% 3,54,04,350 5.97%
Cape Trading LLP 3,54,38,895 5.98% 3,54,04,890 5.97%
Chandru Lachmandas Raheja 3,26,34,433 5.50% 3,26,34,432 5.50%
Capstan Trading LLP 4,10,95,719 6.93% 4,10,95,719 6.93%
Casa Maria Properties LLP 4,68,20,719 7.90% 4,68,20,719 7.90%
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 4,10,95,719 6.93% 4,10,95,719 6.93%
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 4,20,04,546 7.08% 4,19,37,069 7.07%
K Rahgja Corp Private Limited 3,65,96,296 6.17% 3,65,96,296 6.17%

The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of uaits from the date of registration till the balance sheet
date. Further, the Trust had issued an aggregate of 38,363,600 Units for cash at Rs. 275 per unit and 556,654,582 Units at a price of Rs. 275 per unit for
consideration other than cash during the pariod of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date,
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Note 1

Other Equity
Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Reserves and Surpius
Retained earnings*® 3,386 3,202
Total 3,386 3,202

*Refer Condensed Standalone Interim Statement of Changes in Unit holder's Equity for detailed movement in other equity balances.

Retained earnings
The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained and is recognized and accumulated under the heading of retained eamings. At the end of
the period, the profit after tax is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to the retained earnings account.

Borrowings (Non-current)

Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023

10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected — market linked, - 3,741
redeemable, non-convertible debentures {“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2"} {net of issue expenses, at
amortised cost) (31 March 2023 ;: 3,741 million) {refer Note 1}

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemabla non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 1} (net =

of issue expenses, at amortised cost] {31 March 2023 : Nil) {refer Note 2)

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures {NCD Series 2) (net - 750
of issue expenses, at amortised ¢ost) {31 March 2023 : 750 million) {refer Note 3}

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures {NCD Series 3] (net - 4971
of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : 4,971 miilion) [refer Note 4}
Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures {NCD Serigs 4] (nat 4,974 4,959
of Issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : 4,969 million) (refer Note 5)

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures (“Mindspace 5,468 5461
REIT Green Bond 17] (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost) {31 March 2023 : 5,461 million) {refer Note &)

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures {NCD Series 6) 4,975 -
{net of issue expenses, at amortised cost] {31 March 2023 : Ni) {refer Note 7}

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures {NCD Series 7)

[net of issue expenses, at amortised cost) { 31 March 2023: NIL} (refer Note 8) 4,987 -

Total 20,404 19,892

In March 2021, Mindspace REIT issued 3,750 10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected — market linked,
redeemable, non-convertible debentures {“Market Linked Dabentures / MLD Series 2”) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 {Rupees ten lakhs only) each,
amounting to Rs. 3,750,000,000 {Indian Rupees three thousand seven hundred fifty millions only). The tenure of the said MLD Series 2 is 38 months from 18
March 2021, being date of allotmant of the MLD Series 2 and coupon, if any shall be payable on the Scheduled Redemption Date i.e. on maturity on 17 May 2024,
The coupon payoff structure is linked to condition where the payoff will be fixed on the final fixing date i.e. 16 April 2024. If identified 10 year G-Sec's last traded
price as on final fixing date is greater than 25% of its last traded price as on initial fixing date i.e. 18 March 2021, the coupon rate will be 6.65% p.a. If identified 10
year G-Sec’s last traded price as on final fixing date is less than or equal to 25% of its last traded price as on inftial fixing date, the coupon rate will be zero percent.
As per the valuers report in respect of valuation of these MLD Series 2, the probability of occurrence of such an event {last traded price of identified 10 year G-Sec
on final fixing date being fess than or equal to 25% of its last traded price on Initial fixing date) is remote and hence the value of the option considered as zero.

This MLD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021.

Securlty terms

MLD Series 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the Debenture Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge being created by way of equitable mortgage on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 13,71,442 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in
buildings no. 124 and Units of Building 12B of Madhapur, Hyderabad {approx. 12,69,140 sq. ft. in building no.124 and approx. 1,02,302 sq. ft in building no. 12B)
togather with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 29,842 sq. mtrs on which the
said two building no.124 and 12B, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situsted, lying and being in Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal,
Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad {“Mortgaged Properties”), for MLD Series 2.

b) First ranking exclusive charge created by way of a hypothecation over the Hypothecated Properties of MLD Series 2.

¢) A charge on the escrow account created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties of Sundew shall be received, save and except any common area
maintenance charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged prupery_e's%ﬁlz_:‘_\
d) Corporate guarantee executed by Sundew. / I~ S S
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Note 2

Note 3

Redemption terms:
a) MLD Series 2 are redeemable by way of buliet payment at the end of 32 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 17 May 2024 and accordingly the same has
been dassified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 31 December 2023 {Refer Note 17}

b} The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating
downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade. The Investors shall have the right to accelerate the MLD Series 2 if the rating is
downgraded to A+,

¢} Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not Jess than 30 {thirty} business days natice to the Issuer require
the Issuer to redeem in full, all the Debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each
Debenture.

In December 2020, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 2,000 secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
{"NCD Serias 1) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 {Rupees ten lakhs only} each, amounting to Rs. 2,000,000,000 {Indian Rupees two thousand millians only) with
a coupon rate of 6.45% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of alletment i.e. 31 March 2021, with last coupon
payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 16 December 2023. The tenure of the said NCD Series 1 is 36 months from 17 December 2020, being date of
allotment.

This NCD Series 1 was listed on B5E Lirmited on 21 December 2020.

Security terms

NCD Series 1 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee {holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately
414,539 5q. Ft. or thereabouts in buildings no. 1 and 5 of Commerzone Yerawada (approx. 43,200 sq. ft. in building no. 1 and approx. 371,299 in building no. 5)
together with the propertionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 18,264 sq. mtrs on which the
said two building no. 1 and 5, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated, lying and being In Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune
[“Maortgaged Properties”) of NCD Series 1.

b} A charge on the escrow account in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received save and except any common area maintenance charges
payable to MBBPL with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

) Corporate guarantee was executed by MBPPL.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 1 were redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 36 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 16 Decernber 2023 3nd accordingly the
same was classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 31 March 2023 {Refer Note 17}

b} Interast was payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March, 2021]) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢} The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating
downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty] business days’ notice to the issuer require
the lssuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each
debenture.

In March 2021, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 750 securad, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures {"NCD
Series 27} having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 {Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 75,00,00,000 {Rupees seventy five crores only} with a coupon rate of
£.6861% p.a. payable guarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotment i.e. 30 June 2021, with last coupon payment on the
scheduled redemption date i.e. 17 May 2024. The tenure of the said NCD Series 2 is 28 months from 18 March 2021, being date of allotment.

This NCD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021.

Sacurity terms

NCD Series 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom} on the aggregate leasable area of approximately
151,460 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in building no. 4 of Commerzone Yerawada togethar with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally
demarcated land admeasuring approximately 9,561 5q. mirs on which the said building, out of all those pieces and parcels of Jarger land that are situated, hying
and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune ["Mortgaged Properties”} of NCD Series 2.

b) A charge on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area

maintenance charges payahle to MBPPL with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.
c) Corparate guarantee executed by MEPPL,

2
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Note 4

Note 5

Redemption terms:
a) NCD Series 2 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 38 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 17 May 2024 and accordingly the same has
been dassified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 31 December 2023 [Refer Note 17)

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 June, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date.

c) The Coupan shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating
downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 [thirty) business days’ natice to the Issuer reguire
the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal ta the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each
debenture.

In February 2022, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 5,000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures (“NCD Series 3”) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ien lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 5,000,000,000 {Indiar Rupees five thousand
millions only) with a coupon rate of 6,.35% p.a. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day ,be
prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be pavable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the
Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The Issuer hereby aknowledges and agrees that there
shall be no maratoriurn period for the payment of Coupon.The first Coupon payment Date is 31 March 2022, with last coupon payment on the scheduled
redemnption date i.e. 31 December 2024. The tenure of the said NCD Series 3 is 35 months from 1 February 2022, being date of allotment.

This NCD Series 3 was listed on 8SE Limited on February 04, 2022.

Security terms

NCD Series 3 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a} First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage on the carpet area of approximately 552,974 Sq. ft. { save and except entire 2nd floor
admeasuring 11,883 5q. Ft. carpet area in building no. 2} {the building no. 2 ) situated on the Mortgage land along with proportionate covered and open parking
spaces, in Bullding 2 together with all the beneficial rights, title and interest of the Assets SPV in appurtenant to Building 2 and all erections. The Building 2 is
situated on a portion of the Mortgage Land admeasuring 8.04 Hectares, which portion is notified as a Special Economic Zone & first and exclusive charge being
registered by way of simple mortgage on the identified units with aggregating to carpet area of approximately 4,61,527 Sq. Ft. {identifiad units of building no. 3 )
situated on the Mortgage land along with proportionate covered and open parking spaces, in Building 3 together with all the beneficial rights, titte and interest of
the Assets SPV in appurtenant to Building 3 and all erections {(“Mortgaged Properties”) of NCD Series 3 as further detailed in transaction documents,

b} A charge on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area
maintenance charges payable to Gigaplex with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties
c) Corporate guarantee executed by GIGAPLEX.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 3 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 35 months from the date of allotment, i.e 31 December, 2024 and accordingly the same
has been classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 31 December 2023 {Refer Note 17)

b} Interest is payable on the Jast day of each financial quarter in a year {starting from 31 March, 2022) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢} The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating
downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 hps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty] business days’ notice to the Issuer require
the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanging by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each
debenture.

In July 2022, Mindspace Business Park REIT isstted 5,000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures of face value of INR 1,000,000 {Indian Rupees One Mitlion) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5,000,000,000/- (Indian Rupees
Five Thousand Million Only) with 3 coupon rate of 7.95% p.a. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from
day to day, be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Perlod and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment
date to the Debanture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date, The first Coupon payment Date is 30 Sept
2022, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e, 27 july 2027. The tenure of the said NCD Series 4 is &0 months.

This NCD Series 4 was listed on BSE Limited on July 29, 2022
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Note b

Security terms

NCD Series 4 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee {holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of an equitable mortgage on carpet area of approximately 779,466 sq ft in building 12 D (identified
units in building] along with the common areas, usage and access rights appurtenant to the units mortgaged in Building 12D as mentioned in the trust deet,
situated on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 17414.77 square metres (equivalent to 4.30 acres], forming part of a portion of land
admeasuring 14,02 hectares equivalent to 34.64 acres or thereabout declared as *Special Economic Zone’ Jand from and out of the larger piece of land bearing
Survey no. 64(part), lying, being and situated at Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad.

b) A charge on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be recefved, save and except any common area
maintenanca charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.
c] Corporate guarantee executed by Sundew.

Redemption terms:

3} NCD Series 4 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 60 months from the date of allotment, i.a. 27 July, 2027.

b] Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year {starting from 30 September, 2022) until the scheduled redemption date.

c] The Coupon shall ba increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating
downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon otcurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Dabenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require
the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each
debenture.

On 15 March 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 55000 Green Debt Securities in the form of listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable,
redeemable non-convertible debentures (“Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1”) having nominal value of Rs. 1,00,000 {Rupees One Jakh only) each, amounting to Rs.
5,500,000,000 {Rupees Five thousand five hundred millions only) with a coupon rate of 8.02% p.a. payable gquarterly beginning from the end of first quarter from
the date of allotment i.e. 15 March 2023, with |ast coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 13 April 2026 The tenure of the said Mindspace REIT
Green Bond 1 is 3 year and 30 days from 1S March 2023, being date of allotmeant. The date of payment of first coupon is 31 March 2023.

Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 was listed on BSE Limited on March 16, 2023,

Security terms
Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Cebenture Trustee [holding for the benefit of the NCD Halders) as
more particularly described in the transaction documents, summarized as follows.

a} First and excdusive charge registered by way of equitable mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom} on the aggregate leasable area of approximately
1.067 million square feet or thereabouts in buildings no. 5B and 9 of Madhapur Hyderabad {approx. 245,977 sq. ft. in building no. 5B and approx. 821,717 building
no. 9) together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in (i) the notionally demarcated Jand admeasuring approximately 7,169.90 square metres
{equivalent to 1.7717 acres) on which Building 5B is situated, and {ii) the notionally demarcated Jand admeasuring approximately 16,871.82 square metres
{equivalent to 4.17 acres) on which Building 9 is situated.

b} A charge on the escrow account in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be payable to Intime Properties Limited,

c) Carporate guarantee executed by Intime Properties Limited.

Redemption terms:
a) Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 years and 30 days from the date of allotment (date of allotment
being 15 March 2023 and date of redemption being 13 April 2026).

bl Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year {starting from 31 March, 2023) until the scheduled redemption date and on the scheduled

redemption date.
c} The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating

downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 {thirty) business days’ notice to the issuer require
the $ssuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by payving an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each
debenture,
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Note 7

Note 8

In June 2023, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 50,000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
of face value of INR 1,00,000 {Indian Rupees One Lakh only) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5,000,000,000/- [Rupees Five Thousand
Million Only) with a coupon rate of 7.75% p.a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the cutstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed
from day to day, be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Pericd and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon
Payment date to the Debanture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The first Coupon payment Date is 30
June 2023, with Jast coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 30 June 2026. The tenure of the said NCD Series & is 3 year and 29 days.

This NCD Sertes 6 was listed on BSE Limited on June 06, 2023,

Security terms

NCD Series 6 are securad by each of the following security in favour of the Debentura Trustee {holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of a registered simple mortgage on identified units in buildings 6, 7 and 8 of Commerzone Yerwada
adding to a curnulative carpet area of approximately 0.7msf across these 3 huilldings at Commerzone Yerwada, Pune along with the common areas, usage and
access rights appurtenant to the units mortgaged in Bulldings 6, 7 and 8 as mentioned in the trust deed, situated on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring
approximately 26,162 square metres , forming part of a portion of land larger land admeasuring 1,03,919 square metres {after deducting 21 square metres for
road from total extent of 1,03,940 square metres) at Village Yerwada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune and within the limits of Pune Municipal Corporation

b) A charge on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any cornmon area
maintenance charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 6 are redeemable by way of bultet repayment at the end of 3 year and 29 days from the date of allotment i.e. 20 June 2026.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year {starting from 30 June 2023) until the scheduled redemption date.

t} The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating
downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d} Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require
the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each
debenture.

In September 2023, Mindspace Business Park REIT Issued 50,000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures of face value of INR 1,00,000 {Indian Rupees One Lakh only] per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5,000,000,000/- (Rupees Five
Thousand Million Only} with a coupon rate of 8.03% p.a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and
cormputed from day to day, be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant
Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The first Coupon Payment
Date is 30 September 2023, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 10 December 2026. The tenure of the said NCD Series 7 is 3 years
and 3 months.

This NCD Series 7 was listad on BSE Limited on September 13, 2023.

Security terms

MNCD Series 7 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenturg Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

3] first ranking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of an equitable mortgage on identified units in buildings 2A, 28 and 10 of Mindspace Madhapur adding
to a cumulative carpet area of approximately 0.73 msf across these 3 buildings in buildings 24, 2B and 10 as mentioned in the trust deed, situated on a notionally
demarcated land admeasuring approximately 36,258 square metres, being and situated at Mindspace Madhapur, Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal,
Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad.

b} first ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of a hypothecation over Coflection Account and Escrow Account and all amounts standing to the credit
of or accrued or accruing on, receivables, movable assets pertaining to Mortgaged Immovable Praperties as further specified in transaction documents,

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by KRIT.

Redemption terms:
a) NCD Series 7 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 year and 3 months from the date of allotment i.e. 10 December 2026.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year {starting from 30 September 2023) until the scheduled redemption date with last payment
falling on the scheduled redemption date.

c} The Coupon shall be ncreased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade In the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating
downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 hps for each upgrade.

d} Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuingnat[€ssthan 30 {thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require
the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then cutstanding by paying an amaun’p/'e/‘gfk_:_ﬂ'l" n'_lr.ﬁg}?- i;-t\iﬁ mandatory redemption amount in respect of each
debenture. [ X/ * N

Refer note 36 for Ratio disclosure.
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16

17

Note 1

Note 2

Other financial liabilities [Non-current)

Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Interest accrued but not due on debentures - 522
Other payables to related party {refer Note 29) 26 18
Total 26 540
Borrowings {Current)
Partlculars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Secured
Current maturities of long-term debt
10 year G-Sec linked secured, fisted, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected — market linked, 3,747 -
redeemable, non-convertible debentures {“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2”) {net of issue expenses, at
amortised cost) {31 March 2023 : 3,741 million} {refer note 15 (1))
Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 1) (net - 1,996
of issue expenses, at amortised cost] {31 March 2023 : 1,996 million} {refer note 15 {2))
Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 2] (net 750 -
of issue expenses, at amortised cost} {31 March 2023 : 750 million} (refer note 15 (3))
Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 3} (net 4,982 =
of issue expenses, at amortised cost} (31 March 2023 : 4,971 million) {refer Note 4)
Unsecured
Commerdial Paper {Series -1) {31 March 2023 : Nil) {refer Note 1 below) - =
Commercial Paper {Series -2) {31 March 2023 : Nil] (refer Note 2 below) 1,446 -
Total 10,925 1,996

On 20 December 2022, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 2,000 Commercial Papers with a face value of Rs. 5,00,000 {Rupees five lakhs only) each, at a
discount of 7.2% per annum to the face value. The discounted amount raised by the REIT through MREIT CP/1 was Rs. 982,556,000 (Rupees nine hundred eighty
three millions only) and the value payable on maturity is Rs. 1000,000,000 {Rupees one thousand miflions anly). Discount on Commercial papers is amortized over
the tenor of the underlying instrument. The commercial papers were listed on BSE and matured and repaid on 20 March 2023,

On 19 December 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 3,000 Commercial Papers with a face value of Rs. 5,00,000 {Rupees five lakhs only) each, at a
discount of 8.0% per annum to the face value, The discounted amount raised by the REIT through the commercial paper was Rs. 1,44,61,17,000 {Rupees one
billion four hundred forty-six million one hundred seventeen thousand anlyl and the value payable on maturity is Rs. 1,500,000,000 {Rupees one billion five
hundred million only). Discount on Commercial papers is amortized over the tenor of the underlying instrument, The commercial papers are listed on BSE and

shall mature on 06 June 2024,
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18

15

20

21

Trade payables
Particulars As at As at

21 December 2023 31 March 2023
Trade payables

- Total cutstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 1 1
- Total outstanding dues other than micrg and small enterprises g 16

Total 9 17
Other financial liabilities {Currant)
Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Interast accrued but not due on debentures 733 3
Interest accrued and due on others 0 D
Unpaid Distributions Q a]
Otber liabilities
-to related party* {refer Note 29) 32 26
- to others 1 .
Total 766 29
* expense of Rs. 17 million {31 March 2023 Rs. 17 million) is payable to the Manager for Mindspace REIT Management Fees.
Other current liabilities
Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Statutory dues 3 7
Total 3 7
Current tax liabilities
Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Provision Tor Income Tax [Net of Advance Tax) 1 2
Total 1 2
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22

23

24

25

Interest Income
Particulars

Interest income

- on fixed deposits

- on loans given to SPVs {refer note 29)
Total

Other income
Particulars

Guarantee commission fees
Gain on redemption of mutual fund units
Total

Other expenses

Particulars

Bank charges

Filing and stamping fees

Travelling and conveyance

Marketing and advertisement expenses
Membership & subscription charges
Foreign Exchange Loss

Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Finance costs
Particulars

Interest expense on debentures (refer Note 15

and 17)
Guarantee commission charges
Total

2

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended

31 December 2023
{Unaudited)

935
93s

For the guarter ended

31 December 2023
{Unaudited)

2

2

4

For the quarter ended

31 December 2023
{Unaudited)

4
{0)
1
5
i}
1
1

For the quarter ended
31 December 2023

{Unaudited)
615

617

30 September 2023
{Unaudited}

851
351

For the quarter ended

30 September 2023
{Unaudited)

1

2

For the quarter ended

30 September 2023
{Unaudited)
Q

7
0
1

=0

For the quarter ended
30 September 2023

{Unaudited)
535

538

21 Decemnber 2022
{Unaudited)

584
584

For the quarter ended

31 December 2022
(Unaudited)

4

b

10

For the gquarter ended

31 December 2022
{Unaudited)

0

4

{0)

v]

[

For the quarter ended
31 December 2022

{Unaudited)
305

306

For the nine months
ended

31 December 2023
{Unaudited)

2,530
2,530

For the nine months
ended
31 December 2023
{Unaudited})

4

12
16

For the nine months
ended
31 Decamber 2023

{Unaudited)

For the nine months
ended
31 December 2023
{Unaudited)

1,597

1,604

For the nine months
ended

31 Decemnber 2022
{Unaudited)

6
1,510
1,516

For the nine months
ended
31 December 2022
{Unaudited}

13

15
28

For the nina months
ended
31 December 2022

{Unaudited)

For the nine months
ended

31 December 2022
{Unaudited)

201

804

For the year ended

31 March 2023
{Audited)

2,117
2,123

For the year ended

31 March 2023
{Audited)

16

21
37

For the year ended

31 March 2023
(Audited)

0

18

~N oo Qo

25

For the year ended

31 March 2023
{Audited)
1,135
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26 Tax expense

Particulars For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the nine manths For the nine months For the year ended
ended ended
31 December 2023 30 September 2023 31 December 2022 31 December 2023 31 December 2022 31 March 2023
{Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) [Audited)
Current tax 2 4 7 14 18

Deferred tax charge
0 4 7 14 13

27 Earnings Per Unit (EPU)
Basic EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable 1o unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period. Diluted EPU amounts are
calculated by dividing the profit attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of units that would be issued on

conversion of all the dilutive potential units inta unit capital.

The following reflects the profit and unit data used in the basic and diluted EPU computation

Particulars For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the guarter ended For the nine months For the nine months For the year ended
ended ended
31 December 2023 30 September 2023 31 December 2022 31 December 2023 31 December 2022 31 March 2023
{Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Audited)

Profit after tax for calculating basic and diluted 2,924 2,880 2,914 8,724 8,545 11,491
EPU
Weighted average number of Units {Mos) 59,30,18,182 59,30,18,182 59,30,18,182 §9,20,18,182 59,30,18,182 59,30,18,182
Earnings Per Unit
- Basic {Rupees/unit) 4,93 4.86 491 14.71 14.41 19.38
- Diluted {Rupees/unit) * 4,93 4.86 4.91 14.71 14.41 19.38

*Mindspace REIT does not have any outstanding dilutive units

28 Management Fees

REIT Management Fees
Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 21 November 2019, the Manager is entitled to fees @ 0.5% of REIT Met Distributable Cash Flows which shall be payable either in cash or in

units or a combination of both, at the discretion of the Manager. The fees has been determined for undertaking management of the REIT and its investments. The REIT Management fees (including
GST} accrued for the quarter and nine months ended 31 December 2023 is Rs. 17 million and 51 million respectively and Rs. 17 million and Rs. 51 million for the quarter and nine months ended 31

December 2022 respectively). There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Manager.

wing

2%
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29  Related party disclosures
A Parties to Mindspace REIT as at 21 December 2023

$L Mo.  Particulars Name of Entitles Promoters/Pannaers* Directors
Bxis Bank Uimited Ms. Deepa Rath
1 Trustes Axis Trustee Services Limited [Refer note below} Mr. Rajesh Kumar Dahiya
Mr, Ganesh Sankaran
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Nael C. Raheja Mr. Ravi C. Raheja w.e.f. fuly 7, 2023
Mr. Neel C. Raheja w.e.f. July 7,
2023
Mr, Deepak Ghaisas w.e.F. July 11,
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private 2023
or Limited (formarty known as K Raheja Corp Mr. Bobby Parikh w.e.f. July 11,
Investment Managers LLP) 2023
{Refer note 34} Ms. Manisha Girotra w.e.f. July 11,
2023
Mr. Manish Kejriwal we.F July 11,
2023
Mr. Vinod Rohira
w.ef. September 1. 2023
Mr. Ravi C. Rahefa
Mr. Neal C, Raheja
3 fnbee Constructions LLP Mr. Chan‘dru L faheja
Mrs. lyoti C. Rahafa
Ms. Sumati Raheja
Sponsors
Mr. Ravi C, Raheja
Mr. Nes| C. Rahaja
4 Cape: Trading LLP Mr. Chandry L Rahsja

Mrs. Jyeti C. Raheja

Mr. Chandru L Raheja
Mr. Ravi C. Rahaja
Mr. Neel C. Rahsja
Mrs. lyoli C. Raheja
his. Sumnati Raheja

- T ]

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Heel C Rabeja

10 Capstan Trading LLP Mr. Chandru L Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C Rahaja

Mr. Ravi . Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
onsors Gro : ;
1 b up Casa Maria Properties LLP Mr. Chandru L Raheja

Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja

Mr. Neel C. Raheja
12 Raghukool Estate Developement LLP Mr. Chandru L Rahaja

Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja

Mr. Neel C. Raheja
13 Shelter Estate Development LLP Mr. Chandry L Raheja

Mrs. lyott C. Raheja
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14 Sponsors Group

K Rahefa Corp Private Limited

Mr. Chandru L Rahe[a Jointhy with
Mrs. Jyeti C. Raheja

Mrs. Jyeti C. Raheja Jointhy with
Mr. Chandru L Raheja

Mr. Ravi C. Rahejfa Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L Raheja Jointhy with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. iyoti C. Rahejs

Anbee Constructions LLP

Cape Trading LLP

Capstan Trading LLP

Casa Maria Proparties LLP

Raghukool Estate Developement LLP
Falm Sheltar Estate Development LLP
Mr. Meel C, Raheja Jointly with

M. Ramesh M. Valecha

Ravi C. Raheja

Neel C. Rahefa
Ramezh Valecha
Ramesh Ranganthan
Sunil Hingarani

15

Sponsors Group

Wory Property Trust

Chandru L Raheja

Jyotl C. Raheja

Ivory Properties & Hotels Pyt Lid
Ravi C. Raheja

Nes| C. Raheja

[all are trustees}

Genext Hardware & Parks Private Lid.

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Jeinthy with
Mr. Chandru L Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Rahaja

W, Nesl C. Raheja Jointhy with

Mr. Chandru L Raheja lointly with

Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Chandru L Raheja jointly with Iyoti C.
Raheja, on bahalf of the bensfciarias of
Ivory Property Trust.

Ravi C. Raheja

Neel C. Raheja
Ramesh Valecha
Ramesh Ranganthan

17 Names of 5PVs / subsidiarles

1. Avacado Properties and Trading {India) Private

Umited

1. Gigaplex Estate Private Limitad

3. Horizon Properties Private Limited

4. KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private
Limited

S5, Intime Properties Limited

6. Sundew Properties Uirited

7. K. Raheja IT Park {Hyderabad) Limited
8. Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited.




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes te the Condensed Standalone mterim Financlal Statements
[all amounts in Rs. miRlons unless otherwise stated)

Board of Directors/Governing Board

Mr. Deepak Ghaisas {Independent Member)

Ms. Manisha Girotra (Independent Member)

Mr. Bobby Parikh {Independent Member)

Mr. Manish Kejriwal {Independent Member)

Mr, Ravi C. Raheja {Mon Executive Non
Board of Directors/Governing Board| Independent Member]

and Key Managerial Personnel of the|Mr. Meel . Rsheja  [Mon  Executive Non

18 |Manager (K Raheja Corp | t| independent Membar)
Managers Private Umited ) [Refer|Mr. Vinod Rohira (Non E ive Non Independent
note 34} Member} w.e.f. September 1, 2023

Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Ramesh Nair (Chief Executiva Officar] w.e.f.

September 1, 2023

Mr. Vincd Rohira (Chlef Exscutive Officer)
resigned w.a.f August 31, 2023

Ms. Preeti Chheda {Chief Financial Officer}

Brookflelds Agro & Development Private Limited
Grange Hotels And Praperties Private Limited
Immensa Properties Private Limited
Movel Proparties Private Limited
Entities controlied/jointly controled | Pact Real Estate Private Limited

by members of the Board of Paradigm Logisties & Distrbution Private Limited
Directors/Key Managerial Personnel

of the Managar Aqualine Real Estate Private Limited

K Raheja Corp Real Estate Private Limited
[Formerly known as "Feat Properties Private
Limited™) {till Bth August 2023}

Carin Properties Private Limited

Asterope Properties Private Limited

Content Properties Private Limited

Sundew Real Estate Private Limited

Gencoval Stretagic Services Private Limited
Stemade Biotech Private Limitad

Hariom Infrafaciitties Servicas Private Limited
K. Raheja Corp Advisory Services {Cyprus} Private
Limnited

Conveyx Properties Private Limited

M/s Babbw Farikh & Associat

* only when acting collectively

Mote:

Axis Bank Lmited, being a promoter of Axis Trustee Services timited {"Trustee”), trustee to Mindspace Business Parks REIT, also a Debenturs Trustee regulated by SEBI, is
considered a5 a related party of Mindspace REIT in line with the SEBI REIT Regulations based on recent directions from SEB( dated 12 June 2023,




Mindspace Business Park REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Interim Financlal $tatements

(all amounts are in Rs. milllons unless otherwise stated)

29 Related party disclosures

Transactlon with related parties during the period/year

For the quarter|  For the quarter|  For the quarter For the nine For the nine| For the year
ended ended ended| months ended months ended ended
Particualrs 31 December 2023| 30 September 2023| 31 December 2022( 31 December 2023| 31 December 2022 31 March 2023
[Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited}) {Unaudited) {Audited)
Unsecured loans given to
Avacado Properties & Trading {India) Private Limited 240 140 175 970 2,385 2,485
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 1,680 854 2,513 6,974 14,773 18,950
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 450 3,550 170 6,830 1,170 2,328
Sundew Properties Limited 640 460 500 1,690 3,745 5,125
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 1,910 2,160 1,740 7,765 5,830 14,167
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 1,576 3,140 1,460 6,386 3,275 5,690
K. Raheja IT Park {Hyderabad) Limited 1,350 850 400 4,070 1,620 1,870
Unsecured loans repaid by
Avacado Properties & Trading (India) Private Limited 120 120 175 1,550 5,005 5,135
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 1,300 1,150 1,260 2,570 10,875 12,445
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 530 840 1,220 3,210 1,910 2,680
Sundew Properties Limited a0 290 £30 3,570 2,230 3,510
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 2,250 1,060 770 5,630 2,580 9,170
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 1,730 2,370 1,480 5,305 8,415 9,985
K. Raheja IT Park {Hyderabad) Limited 2,680 375 320 3,375 760 2,100
Trustee fee expenses
Axis Trustee Services Limited 0 1 1 2 2
Bank Charges
Axis Bank Limited 0 0 0 0 0




Mindspace Business Park REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements
{all amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

29 Related party disclosures
8  Transactlon with related parties during the peried/year

For the guarter|  For the quarter| For the quarter For the nine For the nine| For the year
ended ended ended|  months ended months ended ended
Particualrs 31 December 2023| 30 September 2023| 31 December 2022| 31 December 2023| 31 December 2022| 31 March 2023
(Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited}) {Audited)
Dividend Income
Avacado Properties & Trading (India) Private Limited 259 208 450 962 1,393 1,618L
Sundew Properties Limited 201 623 516 1,780 1,388 2,047
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 310 830 620 2,110 2,075 2,565
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 312 534 801 2,092 2,136 3,204
intime properties Limited 267 267 285 712 962 1,228
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 100 150 - 250 - -
Interest Income**
Avacado Properties & Trading (India) Private Limited 13 11 29 a5 100 126
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 366 363 150 1,016 473 692
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 175 136 107 431 299 386
Sundew Properties Limited 15 12 56 77 112 159
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 240 222 131 673 298 455
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 8z 68 45 196 173 223
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 44 39 26 52 55 78
Reimbursement of Expenses
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited I 0 4 1 22 23
*Includes fees paid to M/s Bobby Parikh & Associates for the quarter ended 31 December 2023 is Nil, Rs. 0 million for the quarter ended 30 September 2023, Rs, 0 million for
the quarter ended 31 December 2022, Rs. O million for the nine months ended 31 December 2023, Rs. O million for the nine months ended 31 December 2022 and Rs. 0
million for the year ended 31 March 2023,

g




Mindspace Business Park REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Interim Finandial Statements

{all amounts are In Rs, millions unless otharwise stated)

29 Related party disclosures

Transaction with related parties during the period/year

For the quarter| For the quarter| For the quarter For the nine For the nine| For the year
ended ended ended| months ended months ended ended
Particualrs 31 December 2023| 30 September 2023| 31 December 2022| 31 December 2023| 31 December 2022 31 March 2023
{Unaudired) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Audited)
Investment Management Faas
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited 17 17 17 51 51 67
Legal & Professional Fee
M/s Bobby Parikh & Associates - - - 2
Guarantee commission fees from SPV
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 1 1 2 0 1
Sundew Properties Limited < - 4 4
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited a 2 1 5 7
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited a 1 6 &
Guarantee commision fees to SPV
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 5 {1} = 1) {2)
Sundew Properties Limited . - < 5 5
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited (1} : 0 10 3 3
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited (0 ? : 7 > -
Intime properties Limited - - 6

4




Mindspace Business Park REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed $tandalone Interim Financial Statements

{all amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

29 Related party disclosures

Transaction with related parties during the pertod/year

For the quarter| For the quarter| For the quarter For the nine For the nine| For the year
ended ended ended months ended months ended ended
Particualrs 31 December 2023| 30 September 2023| 31 December 2022| 31 December 2023| 31 December 2022| 31 March 2023
{Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Unaudited} {Audited)
Distribution paid to Sponsors, Sponsors Group, Board of
directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Anbee Constructions LLP 170 170 168 510 499 163
Cape Trading LLP 170 170 168 510 499 163
Mr. Ravi L. Raheja 16 16 13 46 38 12
Mr. Neel C. Raheja 57 57 53 167 157 51
Mr. Chandru L, Raheja 156 157 155 470 260 150
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja 19 19 18 56 55 18
{Trustee for and on behalf of beneficiaries of lvory
Property Trust)
Mrs. Jyoti C, Raheja 7 71 71 214 210 69
Capstan Trading LLP 197 197 195 592 579 139
Casa Maria Properties LLP 224 225 222 €74 660 216
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 197 197 195 592 579 189
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 2m 202 199 605 591 193
Genext Hardware And Parks Private Limited 110 110 109 330 323 106
K Raheja Corp Private Limited 175 176 174 527 516 169
Mrs. Sumati K. Raheja LY 40 40 121 119 a9
Mr. Bobby Parikh o 0 0 0 0 0
Mr, Manish Kejriwal 1 1 0 2 1 0
Mr. Vinod Rohira c 0 8] 1 1 0
Mr. Ramesh Nair C 0 - =




Mindspace Business Park REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements

{all amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

28 Related party disclosures

Transaction with related parties during the period/year

For the quarter| For the quarter| For the quarter For the nine For the nine| For the year
ended ended ended months ended months ended ended
Particualrs 31 December 2023| 30 September 2023| 31 December 2022| 31 December 2023| 31 December 2022| 31 March 2023
{Unaudited) [Unaudited)] {Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Audited)
Non cash transactions
Corporate Guarantee extended to Mindspace Business - z 4,300 4,900
Park Private Limited towards Bonds lssued
Corporate Guarantee extended to Mindspace Business - 7 2,000
Park Private Limited towards Loan taken
Corporate Guarantee extended by Sundew Properties i T 5,000 5,000
Limited towards Debentures issued
Corporate Guarantee extended by Intime Properties 5 5,500
Limited towards Debentures issued
Corporate Guarantee extended to KRC Infrastructure and 2,100 2 2,100 3 2,440
Projects Private Limited towards Loan taken
- 5,000 =
Corporate Guarantee extended by Mindspace Business
Park Private Limited towards Debenture Issued
%000 - 5,000 ¥ o)
Corporate Guarantee extended by K. Raheja T Park
{Hyderabad) Limited towards Debenture Issued
**after Ind AS Adjusiments




Mindspace Business Park REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Interim Financlal Statements
{all amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

29

Related party disclosures
Closing Balances

As at As at
Particualrs 31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Unsecured Joan receivable (non-current)
Avacado Propertias & Trading {India) Private Limited 663 793
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 12,170 11,983
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 4,833 4,490
Sundew Praperties Limited 475 2,105
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 9,281 7,857
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 2,450 2,445
K. Raheja IT Park {Hyderabad) Limited 571 116
Unsecured loan receivable [current)
Avacado Properties & Trading (India) Private Limited i 450
igapiex Estate Private Limited 5,013 E0D
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 3477 200
Sundew Properties Limited 10 170
KR Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 1,070 260
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 1,066
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 240 -
Investment in equity share of 5PVs
Avacado Properties & Trading (India) Private Limited 5,482 9,452
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 13,121 13,121
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 0 0
Sundew Properties Limited 33,722 33,722
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 6,968 6,868
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 48,814 48,814
K. Raheja (T Park (Hyderabad) Limited 25,618 25,618
Intimea properties Limited 15478 15,478
Interest receivable {non-current)*
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 95
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 26
Sundew Properties Limited ! 185
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 107
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 95
K. Raheja IT Park {(Hyderabad) Limited 21
Interest receivable {current)*
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 240 -
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 64 =
Sundew Properties Limited 201 e
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 152
Mindspace Business Park Private Lirnited 117
K. Raheia IT Park {Hyderabad} Limited 32




Mindspace Business Park REIT
RN:IN[REIT,{lBJD[DDB

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements
{all amounts are in Rs. milllons unless otherwise stated)

29 Related party disclosures
C Closing Balances

Particualrs

As at
31 December 2023

As at
31 March 2023

Guarantee commision fees recelvable {non-current}
Horizonview Properties Private Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited
Mindspace Business Park Private Lirnited

Guarantee commision fees recelvable {current}
Horizonview Properties Private Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited

Other Financial Liabilities {non-current other payables)
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

Mindspace Busingss Park Private Limited

K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad} Limited

Intirne properties Limited

Other Financial Liabilities {current other liabilities)
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

Mindspace Business Park Private Limited

Intime properties Limited

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited

Co-Sponsor Inftial Corpus
Anbee Constructions LLP
Cape Trading LLP

Current Sccount
Axis Bank Limited

Dividend Account
Ails Bank Limited

Corporate guarantees issued and outstanding
Horizonview Properties Private Limited
Sundew Properties Limited

KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited

17

o W g

oo W e

17

3,044

4,000
8,535
1,700

13

2,984

1,175
4,000
5,859
5,400




Mindspace Business Park REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Interim Flnancial Statements
{all amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

29

Related party disclosures
Closing Balances

As at As at
Farticuakrs 31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Security and Corporate guarantee extended by Sundew towards debentures
Sundew Properties Limited 8,750 8,750
Security and Corporate guarantee extended by MBPPL towards debentures
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 750 2,750
Security and Corporate guarantee extended by GIGAPLEX towards debentures
Gigaplex Estate Private Lirnited 5,000 5,000
Security and Corporate guarantee extended by INTIME towards debentures
Intime Properties Limited 5,500 5,500
Seturity and Corporate guarantee extended by MBEPL towards debentures
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 5,000 5
Security and Corporate guarantee extended by KRIT towards debentures
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 5,000

*after Ind AS Adjustments




Mindspace Business Park REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003
Notes 1o the Condensed Standalone Interim Finandal Statements
{all amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

30 Commitments and contingencles
a) Contingent Lizbilkties

Mindspace REIT has provided corperate guarantees for loans availed by KRC Infra, MBPPL and Sundew and the ding gl is Rs. 14,235 million (31 March 20232 Rs. 16,434
millian}

b) Commitments

There are ne | as at Dy ber 31, 2023 and March 31, 2023

31 Financll (nstrements
{a) The carrying value and fair value of Anandal Instruments by categories are as befow:

Particidars Carrying walua Carrying value
21 Dacember 2023 31 March 2023
Financlal assets . >
Fair value through profit and loss - -
Falr value through other prehensive income - -
Measured at amortised cost
Leans {Mon current] 30,453 29,879
Loans {current) 10,681 1,980
Cash and cash equivaients 3,0d4 2,984
Ceher financial assets 847 568
Total Assets 45,225 35,411
Financial liabilities
Faiwr value through profit and hoss - -
Falr value through other comprehensive income - -
Measured at amortised cost
Berrowings (Non Current) 20,404 19,892
Bortowings (Current) 10,925 1,99
Other Financial Liabilities 92 569
Trade Payables 9 17
Total liabRities 32,130 4714

The management considers that the carrying amounts of above financial assets and financial liabilithes approximate their falr valuas.

(b} Measurement of falr values
The secti plains the judg, and 2stimates made in datermining the fair yaluse of the financial instruments that are:

2] recognised and measurad at fair value
b} measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosad in the Condensed Standalone financial statements.

To provide an indication about the refiability of the inputs used in determining fair value, Mindspace REIT has classified its financial instruments into the three levels preseribed under the
accounting standard. &n explanation of sach level is mentioned balow:

Fair value herarchy
Level 1 - Quoted prices {unadiusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Lavel 2 —Inputs other than quoted prices included within Lavel 1 that are observable for the asset or liabllity, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Leve! 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs}.

{c} Financial instruments
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurament hierarchy for assets as at 31 December 2023;
[Particutars | Total | Level 1 | Level 2 | Level 3 | Total
fFina ncial assats & liabilities d at fair value [ = [ - | = I - l

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2023:
| Particulars | Total | Leval 1 [ Level 2 | Laval 3 | Total

|Financial assets & libiliti ed at fair value | - | - | 2

(d) Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 during the pariod ended 31 December 2023 and 31 March 2023.




Mindspace Business Park REIT

RN:IN/REIT/18-20/003

Notes to the Condi d Standalone Interlm Fi ial St
{all amounts are ln Rs. milllons unless otherwise stated}

(e} Determination of fair values

33

35

Fair valuzs of financial assets and liabilites have been determined for it and/er discl based on the following methods. When applicable, further information

about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed In the nates specific to that assat or liability.

i) The fair value of mutual funds are basad on price quotations at reporting date.
ii) The fair values of other current financial assets and financial kabilities are considered to be equivalent ta their carrying values.,
jii) The fair values of borrowings at fixed rates are considered to be equivalent to present value of the future cted cashfl di d at the current markst rate.

Segment Reporting
Mindspace REIT doas not have any reportable operating segments as at 31 December 2023 and 31 March 2023 and hence, disclosure under Ind 45 108, Operating segments has not been
provided in the Condensad Standalone fi Tal

a) The figures for the quarter ended 31 Decemnber 2023 are the derived figures betwesn the figures in respect of the ning months ended 31 December 2023 and the figures for the half yaar
ended 30 September 2023, which are subjected to imited review.

b} The figures for the quarter ended 31 December 2022 are the darived figures betwean the figures In respect of the nine months ended 21 December 2022 and the figures for the half year
ended 30 Saptember 2022, which were subjected ta limited review.

¢} The figures for the quarter ended 30 September 2023 are the derived figures betwsen the figures in respect of the half year ended 30 September 2023 and the figures for the quarter
ended 30 June 2023, which are subjected to limited review

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLF {Manager) is corverted inte a private company as per Rule 5 of Companies {Authorised to Register] Rules 2014, Since the Manager has received
approval for the conversion effective July 07, 2023, The Manager, therefore, stands converted into a private company i.e., K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited effective July
07, 2023,

"0" represents value less than Rs. 0.5 million.




RNAN/REITS19-20/003
Notes to the Condensed Standaslone Interim Financlal Statements
(all amounts are In Rs. miMon unless otherwise stated)

36 In accordance with SEBM (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2021 and Other requivements as per SEBI circular [No.
SEBI/HO/DDNS/DDHS/OR/P/2018/71 dated 13 April 2018) for Issuance of debt securities by Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) and Infrastructure Investment Teusts (InviTs).,
Mindspace REIT has disclosed the following rathos:

- ap O N O W W

L3

oli}
ofiil

= m F S C =™

v

Ratlos

Asset cover Series
Security f Asset cover {NCL Series 1} (refer note alil}
Security f Asset cover {MLL Series 2) (refer note afil))
Securiky / Asset cover {NCL Serias 21 [refer note afiiitl
Securitv / Asset cover (NCL Series 3] [refer note alivi}
Security / Asset cover {NCD jeries 4)irefer note afvil
Security / Asset cover {Min Ispace REIT Grean Bond 1} [refer nota
aiwil)
Security / Asset cover {NCL Series 6] {refer note alviily
Securitv / Asset cover (NCL Series 7] {refer note afviii)y
Debt-equity ratio (in times] refer note bl
Debt service coverage ratio in times) (refer note ci
Interest service coverage re io (in timesi [refer note d1
Outstanding redeemable pr rference shares (quantity and velue)

Capital redemption reserve

Debenture redemotion rese ye (4 In Re. millions)

Net worth iAmount in Rs. ni llions)

Net, profik after tax thmoun in Rs. millions]

Earnings per unit - Basic

Earnings per unit - Diluted

Current Ratio {in times} irel ' note f}

Long term debt (non currer | to working capital (in times) (refer
note hj

Bad debits to account receiv ible ratio (in times) (refer note 1)

Current liability ratic {in tin 25 {refer note il
Total debt to tokal assets fir times] Irefer note it
Debtors Turnover [in times [refer note il
Inventory Turncver®

Operating Margin {in %} (re er note mi*

Net Profit Margin {in %) (re sr note nl

Sector Specific equivalent r. tio®

*Hot Applicable (HA)

31 December
2023

2.27

217
2.52
2,15

2117
2,16
c1s
5.74
5.74

166.223
2924
4.93
493
1.26
6.66

0.36
0.16

4%

Quarter ended
30 September
1023

257
227
242
216
2.52
2,15

217
2.16
0.20
626
6.26

1,6€.,135
2871
486

4 86
142
8.46

0.22
0.16

Bi%

31 December
2022

25
2.30
243
217
237

o1
1052
10.52

1,65941
2,914
491
4.91
196
510

017
¢10

89%

Perlod ended Year ended
31 bDecember 31 December 31 March 2023
2023 2022
.56
227 230 2.28
2.34 241 PR3
217 217 2.16
252 237 2.50
115 215
2.17
216
0.19 011 0.13
b.44 1165 11.10
6.44 11.65 11.10
1.66.223 1.65.841 1,66,041
834 $.545 11,491
1471 14.41 19.38
1471 14.41 19.38
1.26 196 2.43
E.6E 5.10 B.98
036 0.17 0.09
016 0.10 0.12
BE%: B9 90%
wins
s o
]
0 b
= =
- o



Mindspace Business Park REIT

19-20f003

Motes ta the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements
{all amounts are In As. miMon unless otherwise stated)

36 In accordamce with SEBI (LSTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2021 and Other requirements as per SEBI clrcular (Mo.
SEBIFHO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P{2018/T1 dated 13 April 2018} for Issuance of debt securltles by Real Estste Investment Trusts (REITs} and Infrastructure Investment Trusts {InwTs).,
Mindspace REIT has disclosed the following ratlos;

Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows basis condensed standalone financial statements -

ali)
afil
alii}
alil)
aliv)
alv]
alvi)
alvily
alviii)
by
bl
<

d]

&)

f)
g
h)
i}
]
3]
]
m)

n)

Sacurity / Asset cover ratio (MLD Series 1} = Fair value of the secured assets as c
accrued thereon)

puted by independant val £ (Outstanding principal amount of MLD Series 1 + Interest

Security / Asset cover ratio [NCD Series 1) = Lower of Fair value of the secured assets as computed by two independent valuers / [(Outstanding principal amount of NCD Series 1+
Interest accrued thereon)

security / Asset cover ratio (MLD Series 2) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuer / {Dutstanding principal t of MLD Series 2 + Interast
aceryed thereon)

Security / Asset cover ratic [NCD Series 2} = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by indepzndent valuers / [Dutstanding principal amount of NCD Series 2 + Interast
accrued thereon)

Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Series 3) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / (Outstanding principal amount of HCD Series 3 + Interest
accryed thereon)

Security / Asset cover rat'lo; {NCD Series 4} = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / [Qutstanding principal t of NCD Series 4 + Interest
accrued thereon)

Securlty / Asset cover ratio (Green Bond 1} = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independen valuars / (Outstanding principal amount of Mindspace REIT Green
Bond 1 + Interest accrued thereon)

Security / Asset cover fatio {NCD Series 6} = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / (O ding principal of NCD Series 6 + (nterest
accrued thareon)
Security / Asset cover ratio [NCD Seres 7) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent | / (Qutstanding principal amount of NCD Serles 7 + Interest

accrued thereon)

Total Debt = Long tesm borrowings + Short term borrowings + Interest accrued on debls [current and non-current)

Debt Equity Ratio = Total Debt/Total Equity

Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings befare interest {net of capitalization], depreciation, exceplional items and tax / (Interest expenses {net of capitalization} + Principal
repayments made during the period which excludes bullet and full repayment of external borrowings)

Interest Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before interest {net of capitalization], depreciation, exceptional iterns and tax { [
Net worth = Corpus + Unit capital + Other equity

Current ratio = Current assets/ Current liabilities

Long term Debt = Long term borrowings {excluding current maturities of long term debt} + Interest accrued on debts (Mon-current)
Long term debt to working capital ratio = Long term debt/ working capital (i, Current assets less current liabilities)

Current liability ratic = Current liabilities/ Total liabilities

Total debt to total assets = Tatal debt/f Total assets

Dabtors Turnover = Revenue from operations (A lised) { A ge trade receivab!

Bad debts to account receivable ratio = Bad debis {including provision for doubtful debts) / Average trade receivable

Mindspace REIT's income I5 earned from its investment In asset SPVs and classified as income from investment activity and therefore, operating margin ratio is pot applicable and
not disclosed

Net profit margin = Profit after exceptional iterms and tax/ Total Income

p {net of capitalisation}}
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To

The Board of Directors,

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment
Managers LLP) (The “Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Introduction

1. We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements of MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT ("the REIT"/ “the Parent”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Special Purpose Vehicles”) (together referred as the “Mindspace Group”), which comprise the
unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2023, the unaudited
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the
unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the quarter and nine months ended
December 31, 2023, the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of changes in Unitholders’
Equity for the nine months ended December 31, 2023, and the unaudited Statement of Net
Distributable Cash Flow of the REIT and each of its special purpose vehicles for quarter and nine
months ended December 31, 2023, as an additional disclosure in accordance with paragraph 4.6 of
Chapter 4 to the Security Exchange Board of India (SEBI} Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated July 06, 2023 (“SEBI Circular®) along with summary of the material
accounting policies and select explanatory notes (together hereinafter referred as the “"Condensed
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements”).

2. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the
Investment Manager and approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager, have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations,
2014 as amended from time to time read with Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated lJuly 06, 2023 (“*SEBI REIT Regulations”); Regulation 52 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations”); Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1){(a) of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI REIT Regulations.
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements based on our review,

Scope of Review

3. We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410
‘Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity’, issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim financial information
consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Investment Manager's personnel responsible for
financial and accounting matters and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued
by ICAI and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of
all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit

opinion.
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4. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements include the financial information of the
entities listed in Annexure A to this report.

Conclusion

5. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 above, nothing
has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying Condensed Consolidated
Interim Financial Statements have not been prepared in accordance with SEBI REIT Regulations,
Ind AS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)}{a) of the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI REIT Regulations and has not
disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of the Listing Regulations, including the
manner in which it is to be disclosed or that it contains any material misstatement.

Emphasis of matter

6. We draw attention to Note 42(5)(a) to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
regarding freehold land and building thereon (Paradigm, Malad) held by Avacado Properties and
Trading {India) Private Limited (Special Purpose Vehicle) which is presently under litigation. Pending
the outcome of proceedings and a final closure of the matter, no adjustments have been made in
the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements for the quarter and nine months ended
December 31, 2023. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

7. We draw attention to Note 19(a) of the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, which
describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as “"Equity” to comply with the SEBI REIT Regulations.
Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter,

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

N el

Nilesh Shah
Partner
Membership No. 49660

Mumbai, January 29, 2024 UDIN: 2Upyq4(0 BK FKFCEYB'Y‘
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Annexure "A”

List of entities included in the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
A. Parent entity

i. Mindspace Business Parks REIT

B. Special Purpose Vehicles

i. Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited
it. Horizonview Properties Private Limited

iii. KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited

iv. Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

v. Sundew Properties Limited

vi. Intime Properties Limited

vii. K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Lirnited

viii. Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited
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VIINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:TN/REIT/19-20/003

Cond dC lidated Interim Financial Statements
Consolidated Balanee Sheet

{AIl amounts in Rs. million wnless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Non-corrent assels
Property, plant and equipment
[nvestment property
Investment property under construction
Other Intangible assels
Financial assets

= Investmenis

- Other financial assets
Deferred wax assets (net)
Notcurrent Tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
[nveniories
Fmancial assets
- Trade receivables
- Cash and cash equivalents
- Other bank balances
- Orher tinancial assets
Other currenl assets
Total corrent assets
Total assets before regulatory deferral account

Regulatory deferral account - assets

Total assets

Note

Y- TS

14
154
I5B

17

As at Asat
31 December 2023 31 March 2023
{Unaudited) (Audited)

1,223 1,296

205,765 205144
12,836 7.867

1 |

33 29

3,020 2526

352 473

949 928

1,020 580

225,199 15 844

52 T2

635 LY#

3,356 4.062

2,804 206

3925 2,335

687 586

11,459 8,033
236658 226877

49 354

136,907 337231




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Al amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Corpus

Unit Capital

Other equity

Equity attributable to unit holders of the Mindspace REIT

Non-controlling interest
Total equity
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

= Borrowings

- Lease liabilities

- Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (neq)
Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
« Borrowings
= Lease habilities
- Trade pavables
- total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micre enferprises and small enterprises
- Other financial liabilitics
Provisions
Other current Liabilities
Current Tax liabilities (net)
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities before regulatory deferral account

Total equity and liabilities before regulatory deferral account

Regulaiory deferral account - Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

Material acconnting policies

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated

[nterim Financial Statements

As per our report of even date adtached.
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number; 117366W/W-100018

= =y

A

MNote

18
19
20

47

21

2
23

25

26

27

28
29
30
3

4.55

Az at Asat
31 December 2023 31 March 2023
{(Unaudited) {Audited)

0 (

162,839 162,839
{19.486) (15,012}

143,353 147,827

7.664 7,955

151,017 155,782

47,001 45,842

125 114

3,585 4,153

74 67

3.669 2,494

446 482

54,900 53,152

19,997 8,693

13 13

56 133

829 576

8835 7,690

7 34

1,199 1,127

54 25

30,990 18,297

85,890 71,449

236,907 227,231

236,907 2272

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Linrited (Formerly known as
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

{a_cimg as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT}

R S

)
Nilesh Shah Riulheja Ramesh Nair Preeti N, Chheda
Partner Lingetgr Chief Executive Officer  Chief Financial Gfficer
Membership number: 49660 DIN: 00029010
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date : 29 January 2024

Dats ; 29 January 2024

Date : 29 January 2024

Date : 29 January 2024



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:N/REIT/19-20/003

Condeased Consolidated Interina Fi fe
Consolidated Statoment of Prafit and Loss

(A1l amannts im Rs. million unless stherwise stated)

Income and gains

Revenue fom Operations

Interest Income

Other lncome

Total income and gains

Expenses

Cost of work contract services

Cost of materials sold

Cost of power purchased

Employee benefits expense

Cost of facility management services
Trusiee fees

Valuation fees

[nsurance expense

Audit fees

Management fees

Eepairs and maintenance

Legal & professional fees

Other expenses

Tetal Expenses

Earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation,
regulatory income / expense, exceptional items and tax
Finance cost

Depreciation and amortization expense

Profit before rate regulated activities, exceptional items and tax
Add : Regulatory income! (expense) (nel}
Add | Begulatery income/{expense ) (net) in respect of eaclier periods**

Frofit before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional Ttems {refer notz 514 and 51B)

Note

32
33
34

35
36

39
46

For the quarter ended
31 December 2023

Tor the guarter enuded

Foi the quanter ended

For the nine months ended

For the nine months

For the year ended

0 Septomber 2023 31 Decerabey 2022 31 December 2023 ended ) December 31 March 2023
{Unaudited)* {(Unaudiled)* (Unauditedy* {Unaudited) 2022 {Unaudited) {Audited)

6,001 $.293 5558 18,192 17,154 22821
% 13 31 203 127 157
28 - 15 133 37 63

6,108 6,403 5,604 18,528 17,318 23,041
37 240 153 591 1.914 213

1] 1 3 1 13 15
200 179 191 603 638 817
75 Th B0 229 220 285
202 186 147 544 393 594
1 0 2 2 2 2

0 ? 1 3 7 ki
3l 14 22 51 63 87
3 3 3 17 14 25
130 155 150 437 421 565
222 212 144 615 446 682
31 39 44 98 133 180
S . 667 _ . 585 1,796 1.563 20403

1,57% 1,779 1,527 5017 5,827 T.445

4529 4,624 4077 13,511 11,491 15,596

1161 1,150 905 3,375 2454 3,431

i 8735 925 1,887 2,634 3.554

2,389 2,499 2.247 T.249 6,403 8,611

[k} L8} 45 (16) 169 05
% 1307 = (88) = (64)
1,351 1,451 2292 7045 6,572 8,752

(1.368)




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:INREIT/1%-20/003

Condensed Consokdated Interim Financial Statewents
Consolidated Statement of Prefit amd Loss

(Al amounts in Rs, milliow wnless otherwise stated)

MNote
Profit before tax
Cuirent tax 41
Defenved 123 chage 41

Tax expense

Profiti{Loss) for the periodfyear

Profit/{(Loss) for the periodfyear attributable to unit holders of Mindspace REIT

Profit/(Loss) for the periodfyear attributable to non-controlling
interests

Other comprehensive income
A. (i) 1tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Gaind(Loss} on remeaswements of defined benefit liability/ (asset)
(ii} Income tax relating to above

B. (i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
{ii} Income tax relating to above

Other comprebensive income attributable to unit holders of Mindspace REIT

ive income attrit

Other compreh
interests

le to non controlling

Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the period/ year

Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the period / year
attributable to unit holders of Mindspace RELT

Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the periodfyear attributable
to non controlling interests

For the quarter ended Fer the yuaiier ended For the quaner ended For the nine months emded  For the nine manths For the year ended
31 December 2023 30 September 2023 11 Decembes 2012 3 December 2023 ended 31 December 31 Macch 2023
{Unaudited)* {Unaudited)* {Unavdited)* (Unzmdrted) 2022 (Unaudited) {Audited)

1,351 2451 2,192 7.0145 6,572 7,384

492 514 498 1,507 1414 1,895

eyl 432 528 1,296 1,736 2.404

B8 946 _Lo2r 1,803 3,150 4,199

1,468 1,505 1,265 4,342 3.422 3.088

1,378 1412 1,159 4,065 3,126 2,836

90 93 106 277 296 244

- : - - )
. . s - )

e 1.468 L5080 1.265 4.342 3422 3079
1,378 1,412 1.159 4,065 3126 2 830

o0 93 106 77 266 249




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:ANREITALY=20:003
o | Comsolid

Comselidated Stavement of Profit and Lass

{AR amasnnds im Rs. milkon unbess otherwise slated)

1 Interin B 141 &

Earning per unit

Before net movement in Regulatory Deferral Balances
-Basic
-Diluted

After net movement in Regulatory Deferral Balances:
-Basic
~Dilured

Material accounting policies

See the accompanying notes 10 the Condensed Consolidated [nterim
Financial Statements

*Refer Note 50

Mote

44

4-35

For he quarter ended
31 December 2023
(Unaudited)”

.39
.3

132
23z

** True up adjustment for the quarter and year ended March 2023 based on MERC order dared March 31, 2023

As per our repon of even date attached:
for Dreloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accounlants
Finm's registiarion mumbes: 117366 WW-100018
i [ ,L'\-’
NVE
Nilesh Shah

Partnes

Membership number: 49660
Place: Mumbai

Date : 29 January 2024

T dhe quarter ended
30 Septemben 20271

For the quarter ended
31 December 2022

For ihe nine months ended
31 December 2023

Fou the nine months
ended 31 December

For the year ended
31 March 2023

(Unaudited)® {Unaudited}* {Unandited) 2022 {Unaudited) tAudiled)
2 46 | 38 7403 500 4.54
246 138 7.03 5.00 4.54
238 1 95 6.85 5.27 478
138 1.95 6.85 527 478

{1 and on behalf of the Boad of Directors of
4 Raheja Corp Jnvestment M.

tacting as the Manuger to Mindspace Business Park

s REIT)

Meek( i.i‘:_llwli‘.f ~

Ihrector
DIN.Gnezqp10

Place: Miumiy >
Date - 29 Janugg 2024

N

)

Ramesh Nair™

s Excemtive Officer

Place: Mumbai

Dhate : 29 Janvary 2024

s Private Limited (Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLF)

Lo w ehete—

Preeti N. Chheda
Chief Financiel Cifficer

Place: Mumbai
Drate : 29 January 2022



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RMNINREIT/19-20/003

Cand | lidated 1 Financial S
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
(ALl amoumis jn Rs. milkon wnbess otherwise stated)

For the quarter ended Far the quarier ended Eot the quarter ended For ibe nine months Fou the mne months For the year cinded
31 December 2023 3} Septembes 2023 31 December 2022 ended 31 December 2023 ended 31 December 2022 31 Maich 2023
{Unaudiie=d)* {Unaudired)* (Unaadited} {Unandited} {Audited)
A Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before lax 2,351 2,451 2,292 7,145 6,572 7,384
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and smortisation expense 979 975 G925 2,887 2,634 3,554
Finance costs 1,161 1,150 505 3,375 2454 3431
Interest income (76) (84) (14 {171) (33} 47
Provision for Unbilled ievenue - 57 - 57 - -
Provision for doubtful debts (net) (2) 5 5 3 35 50
Assets written off? Demolished - it 69 i1 179 187
Gain on redemption of mwual fund units (] {7) (€3] (27) {25) (38)
Forefgm exchange fluctuation loss (net) 1] )] - 1 1 1
Liatalities no longer requited wiitien back {1 i12) &3} {34y () {17
Exceptional lters {refer note 514 and 51B) - = - - - - 1.368
Operating cash Mow belore working capital changes 4,394 4,546 4,171 13,187 11,813 15,873
Movement in working capital

{[ncrease} ! decrease in mventories (1 19 {2) pi1] (32) {46)
{[ncrease} / decrease in ade receivables )9 (301} %17 {66) 437 708
{Increage}/ decrease in other financial assets and other assels (243) 25 133 (403) ] {1,093}
[ncreaself I(decrease} in other financial liabilities, other liabilities 32 (374} 47 29 496 161
and provisions

{_De_c‘rgase)f increase in regulatory defermal account {assets / 39 a7 an 108 {169) (141)
liabilitiss)

{Decrease) / increase in trade payables 49 {35} = (2293 176 (12) 4
Cash generatedf(used in) from operations 4,670 3,930 4,990 13,046 11,764 15,666
Direct taxes paid ner of 1efund received (665) {506 {4761 {149 il.327N {1.736%
Net cash generated/f{used in) from operating activities (A) 4,005 3424 4,514 11,547 10,437 13,930




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:INREIT/19-204003

Cond i C d Interim Fi il 5
Consolidated Siatemend of Cosh Flow

(Al arnomnts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

B Cash flows from invesling activities

Expenditure incurred on investment property and investment
property under construction including capital advances, net

af capital creditons and asser acquisition (Mote 5b)
Expenditure incumed on Property, Plants and Equipment and
Capital work-in progiess

Procesds from sale of investment property, & property plant and
equipments

[nvestment in Govemnment Bond

[nvestment in mutual fund

Proceeds tiom iedemption of mutal fund

Movement in fixed deposiisfother bank balances

Interest received

Met cash {used in) / generated from investing activities ( B )

€ Cash flows from Nnancing activities

Proceeds from external bomowings

Repayment of external bonowings including nor-¢onvertible
debentures and bonds

Proceeds from issue of non-convertible debentres and bonds
Proceeds from issue of Commercial Paper

Nen-convertible debentures issue expenses

Redemption of Cormnmercial Paper

Paynwent towards lease liabilities

Distribution to unitholders and dividend to Non-Connolling [nferest
holder {including tax)

Recovery Expense Fund Deposits

Finance costs paid

Net cash penerated /(used in) tinancing activities (C)

Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+HB+HC)

For the quenter ended

For the quarier ended For the quanter endhed Far the nine months Fenr the nine mauths For the yea ended
31 December 2023 30 Seplembey 2023 3 Doventber 2022 emileil 31 December 2023 ended 31 December 2022 31 hiarch 2023
{Unawdited)” [Unawhited]* [Unamhitedy* {Unaudited) {(Unaudited) {Audited)

{2,911) {3.169) (2,328} {8,554) (53,751) {7,634}
3 (" (a 23 2% (26}
4 3 28 28
1 - = @ (6} {6)
(2,565) 11979 (5,407 {10,344) (15372} (22,501
2,573 |, 986 5429 10,370 15,396 22537
51 238 = {3.828) {123) ki)
1z 40 e 65 34 46
287 {2,8/8) (2,808 (12,315) _ {58517 (7,506)

4.93% Ti6 2148 13.730 5035 9,30
{3,361) (2,153) (987} (14,200} {9.226} {12319
- 5,000 - 10,000 9.900 15,400
1,446 - G983 1,446 983 983
(8) (26) (55) (50 {81}
- i . 5 E (983)
| - | - {13}
2,011} {3.023) (3015} (9,106) {8.916) {12,009}
5 . < {0} n ()
[ANETN g2y (877 (3.196) (2,920 (3.871)
{L175) (608} (1,750) (1,481) (5,195) (4,563}
12 [er )] (44) {2,249 (573) 1,361




MINDSPACE BUSINESS FARKS REIT

RN INFREIT/ 1920003

Comd | Consolidated bitering Fi 12l %
Cangalidated Statement of Cash Flow

{AN amaunds i Rs, millien umless otherwise stated)

For the quarter emded For ihe emart: wded Fan the vuiatier ended Fur the nine months For the mee months For the year ended
31 December 2023 30 Sepremben Hi23 31 Decvriber 2022 ended 31 December 2013 ended 31 Decenber 2022 M March 2023
(Unaadited)* 1 Unawdied {Unaudied)” {Unnudited) {Unaudited) {Audited)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the periodiyear 583 658 o 451 2,843 982 982
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the peried / year 594 583 407 594 407 2,843
Cash and ¢ash equivalenis comprises {refer note ne. 15A & 26)

Cash on hand 3 3 3 3 3 3
Balanee with banks

-~ in cuirent accoints 3178 317N 3,070 3,178 3.070 3,17
~ N eSCrow accounts 60 35 l 60 L 3
-in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than three months 115 80 45 115 43 880
Less : Bank overdiaft (2.762) B . B . ) | {2.762) 2.712) (1219
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period / year 504 583 407 594 407 2,843

Moaterial accounting policies - refer note 3

Note: | The above Cash Flow Statemnent has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Accounting Standard (TND AS) 7 - "Statement of Cash Flows"
Mote: 2 Refer nete 6a) for non cash hansactions

See the accompanying nofes o the Condensed Consolidated Interim

Financial Statements 4-55
*Refer Note 50
As per our report of even date attached:
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Dnectors of
Chartered Accountanls K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP}
Firm’s registiation number: 11 7366W/W-100018 {acting as 11" lnnauer te Mindspace Business Parks REIT)
/ i .
A k g < A Chdar
e {,> . = - Wﬁ"’ W /s}
Nilesh Shah . =] —
Puriner Reel C. Ryl ekt Womesh Nair 7 Preeti N. Chheda
Membership number: 49660 Divector 7 Chicf Executive Officer Chief Finuncicl Officer
DIM e (0 -
Place: Mumbai Place Mumbas ’J Place: Mumbai Place: Muombai
Date : 29 January 2024 Date 29 Tauiiih _"-.g | Date : 29 January 2024 Date : 29 January 2024

A



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit helder's Equity
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

A. Corpus

Balance as on 1 April 2022

Changes during the year

Balance as on 31 March 2023

Balance as on 1 April 2023

Changes during the period

Closing balance as on 31 December 2023

Corpus

Balance as on | April 2022
Changes during the period
Balance as on 31 December 2022

B. Unit Capital

Balance as at 1 April 2022
Changes during the year

Balance as at 31 March 2023
Balance as at 1 April 2023
Changes during the period
Balance as at 31 December 2023

it Capital

Balance as at 1 April 2022
Changes during the period
Balance as at 31 December 2022

C. Other equity

Retained Earnings

Balance as at 1 April 2022

Add: Profit for the vear attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT

Add: Other comprehensive income/{(expense) attributable to the unithelders of Mindspace REIT
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2022*

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2022*

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2022*

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2022*

Less: Transfer to/from Debenture Redemption Reserve**

Balance as at 31 March 2023

Balance as at 1 April 2023

Add: Profit for the period atiributable to the unithelders of Mindspace REIT

Add: Other comprehensive incomef{expense) attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT
Less: Distribution to Unithelders for the quarter ¢nded 31 March 2023*

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023*

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2023*

Less: Transfer to/fiom Debenture Redemption Reserve™*

Balance as at 31 December 2023

Other equity
Retained Earnings

Balance as at 1 April 2022

Add: Profit for the period atiributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT

Add: Other comprehensive incorme attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2022*

Less: Distribution te Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2022*

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30

Less: Transfer to Debenture Reserve**

Balance as at 31 December 2022

Amount

Amount

Amount
162,839

162,839
162,839

162,839

Amount
162,839

162,839

Amount
{6,743)
2,836
(6}
(2,734)
(2.811)
(2,817)
(2,846)
(425)
(15,546)
(15,546)
4,065

(2,852)
(2,846}
(2,841}

134

(19,386)

Amount
6,743)
3,126

(2,734)
{2.811)
(2,817

{12,318)



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's Equity

(All amounts in Rs. million unless atherwise stated)

Debenture Redemption Reserve** Amount

Balance as at 1 April 2022 109
Transfer to retained earnings (5)
Transfer from retained earnings 430
Balance as at 31 March 2023 534
Balance as at 1 April 2023 534
Transfer te retained earnings (165)
Transfer from retained earnings 21
Balance as at 31 December 2023 400
Debenture Redemption Reserve** _ Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2022 109 ]
Transfer from retained eamings 339
Balance as at 31 December 2022 448

* The distributions made by Trust to its Unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash flows (NDCF) of Mindspace REIT under the REIT

Regulations.
** Refer Note 20

Material accounting policies - refer note 3

See the accompanying noles to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements 4-35

As per our repont of even rlate sitached:

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration aumber: 117366 W/W-100018

ﬂ;{ .Hl ~
-V

Nilesh Shah

Partner

Membership number: 49660
Place: Mumbai

Date : 29 January 2024

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as K Raheja
Corp Investment Managers LLP)

‘r:u-f.i'-'-_.' as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

| A VA oy ’

| f “1. La |¥ 174 T ( B
Ve L 2 [l [ M Chtis—,
\ \( & 7 AL
% i&fi . \!m_;w}a-/ Ramesh Nair Preeti N. Chheda
T ' Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

]Tj o™
I 00029010
Place*Mumbai

Date : 29 Janvary 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024



MINDEPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:TN/REIT/ 19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated 1nterim Financinl Statements

Disclosure pursuant to SEBI master circulnr no. SEBIVHO/DDHS-PoD-2/PACIR/202311 16
(All amounts in Ry, million vnless otherwise stated)

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF)} pursuant to guidance under Chapter 3, Parageaph 3.20 to SER] misster tirenlar no. SERITHO/DDH S PoB-2/ 2/ CIR2023/116

(i) Mindspace REIT Stanial

Sr. no. Deseription

For the quarter ended
31 December 2022

Fou the guarter ended
30 Seplember 2023

For the quarter ended
31 December 2023

1. Cash flows 1eceived fiom Asset $PVs mcluding but not limited to:
Interest
dividends {net of applicable taxes)
repayment of REIT Funding
proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction {met of applicable taxes}

redemption proceeds from preference shares or any other similar
mstnumnent

2 Add: Proceeds from sale of investments. assets, sale of shares of Asset SPVs,
liquidation of any other asset o1 vestmen {incl cash equivalents) o any form of

fund raise at Mindspace REIT level adjusted For the following,
applicable capiral gaina and other taxes, iCany
debits settled or due to be senled from sale proceeds

transaction cogts

with the

: N
d it agco

proceeds re-invested or planned 1o be
REIT regulaticns
any acquisition
investments as permitied undes the REIT regulations
lending 1o Asset SPVs
as maybe d d ¥ by the M
30 Add: Proceeds Gom sale of investiments. assets or sale of shares of Asset SPVs not
diziributed parsuant 1o an earliar plan to re-invest in accordance with the REIT
Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequeatly

Fon ihe nine months ended  For the nine months ended  For the year ended

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

31 March 2023

{Unaudired)* {Unaudiled)* (Vipaudited)* (Unaudited) {Unaudited} {Andited)
240 ol 504 2254 1856 2,388
2,640 2612 1672 7.906 7.954 10,662
5,506 FAPL] 37143 24715 27839 43 449
. - (26) (26)
{3920 (7.124) (3.743) (22,735) {22,813) (37.440)




- Add: Any other income teceived by Mindspace REIT not captured herein 2 ? § 12 25 3
Less: Any other exp paid by Mindspace REIT not captured herein (3] LY 4] 1371 (243 {34y
Less: Any expense in the nature of capital expenditure at Mindspace REIT level - - - -
Less: Met debt repayment / {drawdown), redemption of preference shares /

- kA R

debentures / any other such instrument / premiums / any other obligations / (2.000) B (2,000) (5.000) (3.983)
liabilites, etc , as maybe d d v by the M.
8 .
Add/Less: Other adjustments, including but not limited 16 nel changes in security
, o 45 83 169 213 324
deposits, working capital, ete., as may be d d v by the M o s e 3 (e @13 (324
% Less: Intevest paid on extemal debt bonowing ar Mindspace RETT level 1530) 455) 1225) {1.348) {1094} (1.351)
. ; [iaabl ol it
10 :.,ess_ Income tax and other taxes (if app Jat the Iy pace REIT (3 3) ) %) (109 (17
gvel B o — = = —_—
Met Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) 2,872 1,855 2,455 8.590 8,494 11,355
MNotes:

L. The Board of Directors of the Manager 1o the Trust, in their mesting held on 29 January 2024, have declared distribution 1o unitholders of Rs 4 80 per unit which aggregates 1o Rs. 2,846 million for the quarter ended 31 December 2023, The
distributions of Rs 4 80 per unit comprises Rs 4 29 per unif in the form of dividend, Rs. 0.5G per unit in th form of interest payment and Rs 0 01 per unit in the form of other income Along with the disiriburion of Rs 9.59 per unit for the half year ended
30 September 2023, the cumulative distribution for the wine months ended 31 December 2023 agpregates I Rs 14 39 per nnul

2 Repayment of REIT funding which iz further lenr to 8P Vs has been captured under “Liquidation of assets”

3. Lending to and repayment from SPVs witlin the same period has been adjusted onder "Other Adjustments” and includes loan given by REIT to SPV out of surplus funds or repayinent of such loan

4. WDCF is caleulated on quarterly basis and amowat presented for the nine months and year end is mathematical summarion ol quarterly numbers

A per out report of even dale attached

for Deloitte Hasking & Sells LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Divectons of
K Raheja Corp Investment Manapers Private Limited {Farmerly known as K Raheja Corp lovestment Managers LLP)
Chartered Accountants

Firnt"s vegistration number: 117366WW-100018 (acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Paiks REIT)

P

Nilesh Shah (e Precti N, Chheda
Panner Dirveing— ="y Chief Eveentive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Membership numbe:: 49660 DIN: hoﬁlon 10

\
Flace: Mumbai Flace: .\rh]\ G Place: Mumbai Place: Mum-ai
Date : 29 January 2024 Deate © .‘_‘)i.l:n iy 2024 Drate . 29 Januery 2024 Date : 29 January 2024
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RMN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Cond 1C lidated Interim Financial Statements

Disclosure pursuant to SEBI master circular ne. SEBYHO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116
(All amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Additional disclosures as required by Chapter 3, Paragraph 3.20 to SEBI master circular no. SEBIHOQ/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/1 16
Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) prrsuant to gnidance under Chapter 3, Paragraph 3.20 to SEBI master cireular no, SERI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116
(ii} Calculation of net distributable cash flows at cach Asset SPV

For the quarter ended 31 Decemnber 2023 pursuant to guidance under Chapter 3, Paragraph 3.20 to SERI master circular no. SERVHO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116™

Sr. no, Description Avicado MBPPL  Horizonview Gigaplex KRC Infra Intime KRIT Sundew Elimination Total
i
[ Profit after tax as per Statement of profit and Joss/income and expenditure (stan:faTn;e; {A} 138 60z (151} 6) 27 223 163 530 - 1,528
2. Add: Depreciation and amertisation as per Statement of profit and loss/income and expenditure 28 147 44 158 86 18 iz 121 = 640
3. Addfless- Loss/gan on sale of real estate assels - - - - - - - - -
4. Add: Proceeds from sale of real estaie assets, liquidation of any other asset or investment {incl cash 120 246 420 380 = - - - (1,166) -

equivalents} or any form of fund raise at the Asset SPV level adjusted for the following:

debts settled or due 1o be settled from sale proceeds . = = = = &
transaction costs . . -
proceeds re-invested or planned to be reinvested in accordance with the REIT - - - . - = = =4 =
Regulations
any acquisition
investment 1n any form as permitted under the REIT Regulations - . = - - - . - - -
as may be deemed necessary by the Manager . = = - - s
5. Add: Proceeds from sale of real estate assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, - - - - - - - - -
if' such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently

6. Addfless: Any other item of non-cash expense / non cash income (net of actual cash flows for these 14 a0 17 76 71 35 23 164 - 460
items}, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager
For example. any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability recognised in : - - - - - - - - -
statement of profit and less/income and expenditure on measurement of the asset or the liability a1
fair value, interest cost as per effective interest rate method, deferred tax, lease rents recognised on
a straight line basis, ¢tc
7 Add: Cash flow received from Asset SPY and investment entity, if any including (applicable for - - - - = - - - - -
Holdeo only. to the extent not covered above)
repayment of the debt in case of investments by way of debt - - - - - - - - -
proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction - - = - = - - - -
8. Add: Tnterest on borcowings from Mindspace REIT ¥ 13 75 162 317 224 - 38 12 - 841
9 AddfLess: Other adjustments, including but not lirsited to net changes in security deposits, working 137 122y (14 (46} 325 34 (116) 71 - 196
capital, efc , as may be deemed necessary by the Manager ' €'




10 Less: Any expense in the nature of capital expenditure including capitalized interest thereon (to the (16) {286) {86) (395} (1,236) (39) (780} {153) - (2,997)
parties other than Mindspace REIT), overheads, etc !

I'l. Less: Net debt repayment / (drawdown) / redemption of preference shares / debentures / any other 126 (224} (180} 1,164 40 2,368 174

- 3,469
such instrument / premiums / accrued interest / any other obligations / liabilities etc . to parties other
than Mindspace REIT, as may be deerned necessary by the Manager
12. Less: Proceeds to sharcholders other than Mindspace REIT throogh buyback of shares/ capial - = - - {33) {39 (59 - {171)
reduction/ dividend paid on preference or equity capital, buyback distribution tax if any paid on the
sanwe, and {urther including buyback distribution tax, if applicable on distribution to Mindspace
REIT
Total Adjustments {B) i 123 347 31 310 634 35 1.526 290 {1.166) 2438
Net Distributable Cash Flows (C}~(A+B) 61 949 168 304 661 278 1,691 820 (1,166) 3,966

Mote 1: For the purpose of eliminations, repayment of Inter SPV loans and repayment of loans to REIT (furthe: kenl Lo Asset SPVs) is considered
Nete 2: Borrowing from and repayment to REIT, if any within the same quarter has been adjusted under "Othe: Adjusiments”

Note 3. As per Chapter V, clause 16(a) of Secucities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate lnvestment Trusis) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time, the entity is required to distribute not less than 90% of net
distributable cash flows of the entity to Mindspace REIT in proportion of its holding in the SPV subject tw applicable provisions in the Companies Act, 2013 As per distribulion policy adopted by the board of directors of
Mindspace REIT s Manager (K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Privale Limited), any proceeds to sharcholders other than Mindspace REIT is reduced to amive at net distributable cash flows (NDCF)

The above note has been prepared as per the distribution policy adopted by the board of directors of Mindspace REIT’s Manager, which is forming part of the Final ofter document of Mindspace REIT and does not represent
amount available for declaring dividend as per section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Declaatien xnd Payment of Dividend Rules 2014

Note 4: During the quarter ended December 31, 2023, in case of Horizonview and MBPPL a tetal amount of Rs £5 million and 22 mullion respectively hove been transferred from capital expenditure to other adjustments pursuant o
lease commencement of fit-outs

Note 5: Interest on borrowings from Mindspace REIT includes the interest paid to Mindspace REIT and the intevest accrued but not paid is consklered in the item no 9 (Add/Less: Other adjustiments, including but not limited to net
changes in security deposits, working capital. etc., as may be desmed necessary by the Manager)

Mate 6: [n case of Horizonview, the balance in bock overdraft disclosed under Other Current Financial liabilities are added to delermine net disiributable cash flow for the curent quarter
As per our report of even date attached-

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP for imd on behall of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants K Raheja Corp Investinent Managers Private Limited {Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment
Managers LLP)

Firm’s registration number | 17366W/W-100018 (e e Manager 1o the Mindspace Businiss I‘::r}?llil'l')

—

AL~ . = L stk Ll A Chasss

Nilesh Shah \ Netl € Ramesh Nair Preeti N, Chheda
Partner A Y Chicf Executive Gfficer Chief Financial Qfficer
Membership number 4966( [ ATI20010

Place: Mumbai Plige? Fumba Place; Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date ; 29 January 2024 L3415 29 January 2024 Date : 25 January 2024 Date ; 29 January 2024



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:AN/RETT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

Disclosure pursuant to SEBT master circular ne. SEBIVHO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/1 16
(All amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Addifional disclosures as required by Chapter 3, Paragraph 3,20 te SEB] master circular no. SEB#/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2U23/1 16
Net Distribuiable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Chapter 3, Paragraph 3.20 to SEBI master cireular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116
(i) Calculation of net distributable cash fMows at each Assei SPY

For the quarter ended 30 September 2023 pursvant to guidance under Chapter 3, Paragraph 3,20 to SEBI master circular ne. SEBIHO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116™

Sr. no. Description Avacado MBPPL  Horizonview Gigaplex KRC Infra Intime KRIT Sundew Elimination Total
th
L. Profit after tax as per_S-fﬂtel_llcnt of profit and lossfincome and expenditure (stand:;lc;ne_){_;\“) T 136 628 (154) (26) 9 232 182 558 - 1,603
2. Add: Depreciation and amortisation as per $tatement of protit and lossfincome and expenditure 28 146 37 138 85 18 37 128 - 637
3. Addfless: Lossfgain on sale of real estate assets - - - - - - - - -
4. Add: Proceeds from sale of real estaie assets, liquidation of any other asset or investment {incl cash 20 770 2710 - 1,106 - 475 170 {256) 4,989

equivalents) or any form of fund raise at the Asset SPV level adjusted for the following:

debts settled or due 10 be settled from sale proceeds -
transacbon costs s - -
proceeds re-invested or planned to be reinvested in accordance with the REIT s = = 2 - = =
Regulations

any acquisition ¢ . " " . "
investment in any form as permitted under the REIT Regulations - - - - - - - - -
as may be deemed necessary by the Manager ~ . = = = = & -
5. Add: Proceeds from sale of 1eal estate assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, - - - - - - - - -
i’ such proceeds are nol intended te be invested subsequently
6 Addfless: Any other 1tem of non-cash expense / non cash income {net of actual cash flows for these 7 48 10 -3} 36 52 60 152 - 426
items), as may be deemed necessary by the Manager
For example, any decrease/inciease in carrying amount of an asset or of a lability recognised in - . - - - - - = - "
statement of profit and loss/income and expenditure on measuremnent of the asset or the liability at
fair value, interest cost as per effective interest rate method, deferred tax, lease rents recopnised on
a straight line basis, ete
7. Add: Cash flow teceived from Asset SPV and investment entity, if any including (apphcable For - - - - - - - - -
Holdco only, to the exient not covered above)
repayment of the debt in case of investments by way of delit - - - - - - - - - -
proceads from buy-backs! capital reduction : - . . B - - - - -
8. Add: Tnteres! on borrowings from Mindspace REIT ¥ 1 6l 123 315 208 - 3 g = 760
9. AddfLess: Other adjustments, including but not limited to net changes in security deposits. working 55 338 (346} 122 250 (18} (104) {13) - 102
capital, efc . as may be deemed necessary by the Manager ' &




10. Less: Any expense in the nature of capital expendliture including capitalized interest therean {to the {53} (264) (1,439 (160 {1,006) 26 {262) (75) - {3,233)
parties other than Mindspace REIT), overheads, etc ™' %

IT. Less: Net debt repayment / {drawdown) / redemption of preference shares / debentures / any other 25 (827 {606} 86 {378) - 211 {220) - (1,709)
sueh instrument / premiums / accrued interest / any other abligations / Tiabilities etc , to parties other
than Mindspace REIT, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager

L2, Less: Proceeds to shareholders other than Mindspace REIT through buyback of shares/ capital - - - - 33y {66) {77 - (176)
reduction/ dividend paid on preference or equity capital, buyback distributien tax if any paid en the
same, and further including buyback distribution tax, if applicable on distribution to Mindspace

REIT
Total Adjustments (B) _ 93 2 269 582 295 45 34 71 (256) 1,775
Net Distributable Cash Flows (C)=(A+B) 1T 920 115 556 354 277 866 629 (256) 3,380

Note 1: For the purpose of elminatiens, repayment of' Inter SPV loans and repayment of loans to REIT {futher lent to Assel SPVs) is considered
Note 2: Borrowing from and repayment to REIT, if any within the same quarter has been adjusted under "Other Adjustments"

Note 3: As per Chapter V, clause 16(a} of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time, the entity 1s required ta disiribute not less than 90% of net
distributabic cash flows of the entity le Mindspace REIT in propontion of its holding in the SPV subject 1o applicable provisions in the Companies Act, 2013. As per distribution policy adopted by the board of directors of
Mindspace REIT's Manager (K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited), any proceeds to shareliolders other than Mindspace REIT is reduced to ariive at net distributable cash flows (NDCF)

The above note has been prepared as per the distribution palicy adopted by the board of directors of Mindspace REIT's Manager, which is forming part of the Final offer document of Mindspace REIT and does not represent
amount available for declaring dividend as per section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Declaration und Fayment of Dividend Rules 2014

Note 4. During the quarter ended September 30, 2023, in case of Horizonview, Intime, Sundew and Gigaplex a tstal amount of Rs 671 millien, 60 million, 70 million, and 70 million respectively have been transferred from capital
expenditure to other adjustments pursuant to lease commencement of fit-outs

Note 3: Interest on borrowings from Mindspace REIT includes the interest paid to Mindspace REIT and the interest accrued but not paid is considersd in the item 00.9 (Add/Less: Other adjustments, including but not limited to net
changes in security deposits, working capital, etc . as may be deemed necessary by the Manager}

MNote &: In case of Horizonview, Refer Note 3(b) [or asset acquisition

As per our report of even date attached:

for Deloitte Haskins & Selts LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants K Ruheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment
Managers LLP)

Firm's registration number; 117366W/A-100013 (acting as Mangger to the Mimdspace Business Parks REIT)

Yoirdr rare P Cja _

Nilesh Shah Neel ( Baligla Preeti N. Chheda
Partner Divelitol, = == Chief Execntive Offices Chief Finaneial Officer
Mermnbership number- 49660 DIN. (1025010

Place: Mumbai Place Munba Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date : 29 January 2024 Date 29 !meI{:TZOZLI Date : 29 January 2024 Date : 29 Janvary 2024
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

BN:IN/REIT/19-20:003

Condensed Consolidated Jaterim Financial Statenients

Disclosure pursuant to SEB] master circolur no. SEBVHO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CLR/2023/116
{All amounts are in Rz. million unless otherwise stated)

Additional disclosures as requived by Chapter 3, Paragraph 3.2 to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR20231 16
Net Disiributable Cash Flows {(NDCF) pursusnt to guidance under Chapter 3, Paragraph 3.20 to SEBI master circular no. SEBVHO/DDHS-PaD-2/P/CIR/2023/116
(i} Calculation of ner distributnble cash flows at each Asset SPV

For the quarter ended 31 December 2022 pursuant te guidance under Chapter 3, Paragraph 3.20 to SEBI master circular no. SEEI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2P/CIR/2023/116 ™

Sr. no, Description - Avacado  MBPPL  Horizonview Gigaplex KRC Infra  Intime  KRIT Sundesy  Elimination i Total
1. Profit after tax s per Statement of profit and loss/i and expenditure (standalone) (A) - B (195 (209) 39 a7 376 40 = T 1482
2. Add: Depreciation and amortisation as per Statemient of profit and Tossfincome and expenditue 25 142 kM 147 &5 16 39 107 - 576
3. Addfless: Loss/gain on sale of real estate asseis - - . - - - . - - -
4 Add: Procesds fiom sale of real estate assets, liquidation of any other asset or investment fincl vash equivalears) o any 300 - = 1.253 “H i} 73l 200 (2,460) 1044

form of fimd raise at the Asset SPV level adjusted for the following:

debts seuled or due to be settled fiom sale proceeds = 5 . z =
Bansachion cosis = = - 3
P ds re-invesied or pl | to be rei d in accordmece with the REIT . 5 - - - - . - .
Regulanions “t
any acquisition - - - - - -
investment in any foim as pecmitted under the REIT Regulations . - - s = - = E =
as miay be deemed necessary by the Manager - - - - - =
5. Add: Proceeds Fiom sale of eal estate assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to 1e-invest, if such pioceeds are ot - - - - - . - - - -
intended to be invesied subsequently
6. Addfless: Any other ilem of non-cash expense / non cash income {net of actual cash flows for (hese items), as may be | 164 19 162 6 {16) 1 86 - 503
A A y 'l,’I lhﬁ kA,
For example. any decreasefinurease in canying amount of an asset o of a lisbility recognised in statement of profil and - - - - - - - - - -
lossfincome and expenditure on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value, interest cost as per elfective interest
rate method, deferred rax, lease rents recopnised on a straight line basis etc

7. Add: Cash flow 1eceived fiom Asset SPV and investment entity, if any including {applicable for Holdco only, to the eitent - - - - - - - - - -

net covered above)
repayment of the debt in case of investments by way of debt - - - - - . . - . -
proceeds fiom buy-backs/ capital 1eduction . . - -

3. Add: Interest on boswowings Fom Mindspace REIT ™ 29 38 99 166 102 - 22 48 - 504

9 Add/Less: Othr adjustiments, including but not limited to net changes in secwity deposits, working capital, etc , a: may be (60 47) {8) 40 971 14 {17} 129 - 1,053
deemed necessary by the Manager 2 %1%

10. Less: Any expense in the nature of capital expenditure including capitalized i i (1o e parties oiher than 1 {175) {16) (636) {1,796 (23)  (104) (114) - 2,933)
Mindspace REIT), overheads, etc

11 Less: Net debt repaymwent / (drawdown) / redemption of preference shaies 7 debentures / any other such instuient 7 1133) e 1.215 (706) (257 - {40} {187 1.200 1,135

premiums / acerued interest / any other obligations / labililies etc, to parties other than Mindspace REIT. as may be
deemed necessary by the Manage: !
2. Less: Proceeds to shareholders other than Mindspace REIT thiough buyback of shares/ capital reduction/ dividend paicl on - - . - - (35) (99 (64} - (193)
preference o1 equity capital, buyback distribution tax if any pard on the same, and firther including buyback distibution tax,
if applicable on distnibation w Mindspace REIT

Total Adjustments (B) o i) 198 1,344 376 8l & 533 204 (1,260) 1,683
Net Distributable Cash Flows (Cy(A+B) N _=___ o 479 664 1149 167 _loo 278 809 750 (1.260) 3,136




Note 1: For the purpose of eliminations, repayment of Inter SPY loams and repayment of loans to REIT (further lent 10 Asset $7Ve} 15 considered
Note 2: Borrowing from and repayment to REIT, if any within the same querter has been adjusted under “Other Adjustments”

Note 3: As per Chapter V. clause 16(3 ) of Seeurities and Exchangs Bomd of Indin (Renl Fstate Liyvestment Trusts) Regulaions, 2014 as amended from time i time. the enlity is required to distribute not less than 0% of net disteibutable cagh flows of the entily to
Mindspace REIT in propuition of s holding m thie SPY silyect to applicable proyisions m the Companies At 2013, As per dishiibution policy adopled by the board of directors of Mind: pace REIT's Manager (K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limted),
any proceeds Lo shareliolders other Uon Mindspace REUT 15 reduced ko prove a1 pet distributable csh flows INDCT),

The above note has been preparcd as per the disbibution policy adopted by the board of directors of Mindspace RE)T s Mavagper. which is formmag put of the Final offer document of Mindspace REIT and does not 1 T amount available for declaring dividend as

per section 123 of the Cormpunies Act, 20013 read with Declaration and Payment of Dividend Rules 2014.

Note 4: [n March 2022, Mindzspace Business Parks Private Limited (“MBPPL"), one of the Asset SPVs of Mindspace Bussoe . ¢ Parks RETT concludei the sale ofland admeaswring approsimatcly 39.996 acres located ut Pocharum, Hyderabad, to K. Raheja Corp
Private Limited {"KRCPL")} for & consideration of Rs. 1,200 Million as per the approval of the Board of Directors ol MBPPL, and the Board of divectos of the Manager and other terms and cotidilions as set out in the Mamorndun of Understanding dated D I\
16, 2019 read with the exlension letter dated September 1, 2021 ("MolF} and sale deed dated 30th March 2022

The shove eonsideratinn is not envisaged for an i liate. re-in opportunity. In view of the same. it 15 proposed ta pay out the sals consideration as per the terms of the REIT Regulations Accordingly. NDCF for the quarter ended December 31. 2022,
includes Rs, 450 mullions on aceount of distibution of part of such sale proceeds by way of dividend 1o unitholders,

Note 5: Interest on borrowings from Mindspace REIT includes the interest paid to Mindspace REIT and the inlerest scerued bul not peid is considercd in the item no 9 {Add/Less: Other adjusiments, including but not linited 10 net changes in security deposits,
working capital, etc., o: 1y he o | y by the Manager),

Note 6: In KRC Infra, regiouped Rs 31 million pertzining to acerued interest from Point No 9 {Add/Less: Other adjustments including but not limiled to nel changes in secority deposits. working capital, etc., as may be d 1 y by the Manager ) to Poinr
No 11 (Less: Ner debt repayment / (drawdown) / redemption of pref: shares / debentures / any other such instiunent / premiums £ acorued interest /£ any other obligations / liabilities efc., 1o parties other than Mindspace REIT, as may be deemed neceszary by the
Manaper) for Hhe quaiter ended 31 December 2022

Ag per our report of even date anached:

for Dedoitte Haskins & Sells LLP for and au behalfof the Board of Divectors of
K Raheja Corp Investrnent Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment
Chartered Accountants Managers L1P)
Fuom's regostration number: 1173665 -1000] % (autiygeds Manager to the Mindspace Dusiness P REETY
/ ya -~ i/ #
iad- I fa AR A S
('. AV >

Nilesh Shah Rfmesth Nate—— Preeti N, Chheda
Partner Clvief Executive (TTer Chict Financial Officer
Membeiship numbe : 49660
Place: Mumbai Plyge: Mumlig Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024 1::1;\\‘_;‘ U ufisiy 2024 Date ; 29 January 2024 Date : 29 January 2024
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

Disclosure pursuant to SEBI master circular ne. SERI/HO/DDHS-EoD-2/F/CIR2023/116
(All ameunts are in Rs. million nnless otherwise stated)

Additional disclosures us required by Chapter 3, Paragraph 3.20 to SEBF master circular no. SERVRG/BDUS-PoD-2/PiC 12023116

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Chapter 3, Paragraph 3.20 to SERI master circerlar no. SEB/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116
{iiy Calculation of net distributable cash flows at each Asset SPY

For the nine months ended 31 December 2023 pursuant to guidance under Chapter 3, Paragraph 3,20 to SEBI master circular ne. SEBUHO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 ™

Sr. no. Description Avacado MBPPL  Horizonview Gigaplex KRC Infra Intime KRIT Sundew Elimination Total
i
| Profit after tax as per Statement of profit and loss/income and expenditure {standalone) (A) 393 L7647 (65} 135 689 540 1,62] - 4,508
2 Add: Depreciation and amortisation as per Statement of profit and loss/income and expenditure 34 439 117 473 248 53 1o 362 - 1,886
3 Add/less: Lass/gain on sale of real estate assets : . A = 4 = : : = N
4. Add: Proceeds from sale of real estale assets, liquidation of any other asset or investment {incl cash 1336 6332 3,620 4,660 2,475 1476 2,025 170 (12,094} 10,000
equivalents} or any form of fund raise at the Assel SPV |evel adjusted for the following:
debts settled or due 1o be settled from sale proceeds - 5 z 2 = = = = =
transaction costs - - = " - - . "
proceeds re-invested or planned to be reinvested in aceordance with the REIT - - - = = = = =
Regulations
any acquisition . - - - = i z & i
investment in any form as permitted under the REIT Regulations - - - - - . - »
as may be deemed necessary by the Manager . : : 3 = 2 = = & =
5. Add: Proceeds from sale of real estale assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest. - - - - - - - - - -
if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently
6. Add/less: Any other item of non-cash expense / non cash income (net of actual cash flows for these 51 30] 2 155 128 132 133 410 - 1,310
items}, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager i
For example, any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability recognised in - - = - - - -
statement of profit and loss/income and expenditure on measurement of the asset or the Liability al
fair value, interest cost as per effective interest rate method, deferred tax, lease rents recognised on
a straight line basis, ete
7 Add: Cash flow received from Asset SPV and investment entity, if any including (appheable for - - - - - - - - -
Holdco only. to the extem not covered above):
repayment of the debt in case of investments by way of debt - - - - - - - -
proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction - - - - - - - - -
8 Add: Interest on borrowings from Mindspace REIT ™ 43 174 393 &n 627 - 30 61 - 2255
9 Add/Less: Other adjustments, including but not limited to net changes in security deposits. wotking 22 (2.210) 14510) 144 1,435 (1,501 {326) 79 - {2,807}

capital, etc . as may be deemed necessary by the Manager & ™%




10. Less: Any expense in the nature of capital expenditure including capitalized interest thereon (1o the (1) {878) {1,835) (939) (3,238) (82) (1,274) {376) - (8,743)
parties other than Mindspace REIT), overheads, etc * £

L1. Less: Net debt repayiment / (drawdown) / redemption of preference shares / debentures / any other {935) {3,632} (971) (4.201) {599) 40 2,484 1,786 7,922 2736
such instrument / premiums / accrued interest / any other obligations / lighilities etc ., to parties other
than Mindspace REIT, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager

12. Less: Proceeds to shareholders other than Mindspace REIT through buyback of shares/ capital - - - - - {88) {259 (220} - (567)
reduction/ dividend paid on preference or equity capital, buyback distribution tax if any paid on the
same, and further including buyback disiribution tax, i applicable on distribution to Mindspace
REIT
Total Adjustments (B) 1,332 516 875 1,164 1,076 30 2974 2272 (4,172) 6,068
Net Distributable Cash Flows (Cy={A+B) 1725 227 402 1,099 1.211 719 3514 3.893 (4.172) 10,666

Note |: For the purpese of eliminations, repayment of Inter SPV loans and repayment of loans to REIT {further lent to Asset SPVs) is considered
Note 2: Borrowing from and repayment to REIT, if any within the same quarter has been adjusted under *Othier Adjustments”

Note 3: As per Chapter ¥, clause 16(a) of Securities and Exchange Board of India {Real Estate Investment Tiusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended tiom time to time, the enlity is required to distribute not less than 90% of net
distributable cash flows of the entity to Mindspace REIT in proportion of its holding in the SPY subject to applicable provisions in the Companies Act, 2013 As per distribution policy adopted by the board of directors of Mindspace
REIT"s Manager (K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Privale Limited), any proceeds to sharcholders other than Mindspace REIT 1s reduced to arrive at net distributable cash flows (NDCF)

The above note has been prepared as per the distribution policy adopted by the board of directors of Mindspace: REIT's Manager, which is forming part of the Final offer document of Mindspace REIT and doss not represent amount
available for declaring dividend as per section |23 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Declaration and Payment of Dividend Rules 2014

Note 4 In case of Gigaplex, adjusted for reimbursement for powet intiastructure and any ather modification to investment preperty as required and reimbursed by tenant

Note 5: NDCF is calcutated on quartetly basis and amount presented for the half year end 15 mathematical summation of quarierly numbers

Note 6: In case of MBPPL and Intime, Quarter ended June 30, 2023 includes Investment in fixed deposits amounting Rs 2,600 and Rs 1,300 million respectively on account of repayment of imer SPV loans

Note 7: [nterest on borrowings from Mindspace REIT includes the interest paid to Mindspace REIT and the inteiest acerued bul not paid is considered in the item no.9 {Add/Less: Other adjustments, including but not limited to net
changes in security deposits. working capital. e1c , as may be deemed necessary by the Manager}

Note 8: During the period ended December 31, 2023, i case of Horizonview, Intime, Sundew, Gigaplex and MBPPL a total amount of Rs 757 million. 60 million, 70 million, 70 million and 22 millien respectively have been
transferred fiom capital expenditure to other adjusiments pursuant to lease commencement of {it-outs

Note 9: Tn case of Horizonview, the balance in book overdraft disclosed under Other Current Financial Liabilities are added to determine net distributable cash flow for the current period
As per our report of even date attached:

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP for and on behalt of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Privaic Limited (Fermerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment
Managers LLP)
Firm’s registration number: 117366W/AW-100018 (acting as Manager to the Mindspace Business Parks RrElT}
[ . - /g -
/UW — N j /M A AT
. - _; - ¢
Nilesh Shah Neel O, R:\fgjg.;:' Rafies®/'Nair ~ Preeti N. Chheda
Partner Lk ctor Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Gfficer
Membership number: 49660 DINW02901p=
Place; Mumbai Place: My nbi Flace: Mumba Place; Mumbai
Date © 29 January 2024 Dale : 2% .J;i‘wd Ty 2024 Date : 29 January 2024 Date : 29 January 2024
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MINUDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN:REIT /1920003

Cond I Lidated Financial St

Diselosure pursusol to SEB) master circulin no. SEBA IO/ DHS-Polk-2/PACIRI2023/1 16
(AN aniounts are in Ry, million unbess otherw ixe stted)

Additionul disclosures us required by Chapier 3, Pavagraph 3.20 to SEBI master circular no. SEBIHO/DDHS-Pol-LHP/CIRI0EI 16
Net Distributable Cash Flows (NICEF) puoswane do guidsnce under Chapter 3, Parggraph 3.20 to SERBLwwster citolar ne., SEBLTIOVDDHS-FoD-2PCIRAIEN 11O
(i) Colewlation of net disivibuiable cash Nuws at cuch Assel SPY

Far the nine months ended 31 Decenber 2022 pursinnt to guidaice wader Chapier 3, Paragraph 3.20 to SEB) master civcular nu, SEBVHO/DTIHS-PoD-2/PiC IR/2U23/116

Sr. n, . , o Descriptiyn - Avacado  MBEPL_ Horizonview Gigaples  KRC Infra  Intine  KRIT Sundew  Elimination Total
1 Profif affer tax as per Statement of prodit and lossfi and expenditare {standalone) (4) 328 | 429 (536) 39 1493 795 789 1.601 1407
2 Add: Depreviation and amwrisstie as per Skcmient of jaolic and losssincome and cxpenditm e 15 A6 1M 350 179 47 77 kIt ] 1606
3 Adddless: Lossizan on sale ol real citate assels - - - - - - - - .
4 Add: Proceeds Liom sale ol tend catate assets Tiguiddation vl any vther asset or investment Ginel casly vguivalems) o ain
Tonm ot Fund tarse st the Asser $E Jevel adjusted b the Follpweng HM Iy 0 349% 1355 k] 1 964 3335 (6,95 (023
debis sewled v due o he setthed Jiom sale proceeds - - - - - - - - -
Wansaction custs E - . - - - - -
procecds se-invesied v plianeal o be cean ested mageondince with the REIT Repnlaioug E £ : % - 3 z 5
any avyquisiion - . - - - - - -
invesiment man Fon as petnited under the RET Regulations - - » . - - . - .
as nmay be deemed necessary by (he N lunage . . - - - - . - .
5 Add Proceeds Trom sale ul real estie wssets oot disthibuted pursuant 1o an carfier plan b re-maest ol such proceeds we
not intended tu be invested subseguenty s : 3 - 5 . 4
0 Addless Any ather lem ol nonecash expense * non vash nicome (nel of actoal vash Hows Jin these temsr Gs nay be
deemed necessary by the Manager ™ 140 174 11 32 57 W8 4 1232
For example any decreaseimarease i canamg amouni ol an assel o of a labiliy ecogmised i skenion of pralit ad
lossfineome and cxpeidie on megsmenem ol the assel on the liability at Fair vabue, interest cost ss o cliecting
imerest take method, defened s, lease enls cevopnuged on g straieh line basis. ot 3 3 = = b
T Add Cash flow received Bom Asset SPY wod investment entity, if any including (applicable fo Holdew anly 1o the
extenl nut coveed above) - . - - - - - -
repavment of the debt mocase of iestments by way of debt . . . - < = » 3
procezds fiom buy-hacks: capitad seduwsuun - - - = - - - -
& Add. Interest un borowmgs foom Mondspaes KET 2 181} 282 088 23z - 44 85 1,835
Y Addfless Other adjustiments, inchadig but uon imited w net changes i security deposig workimg capial et as may
be deemed nevessary by the Mupagy b s (53} 2 i {441) 857 4 3% 108 11y

10 Less: any expense i e natiee ol captal cspendinre mclading ed interest il e the panbes othu lan
Mindspace REIY, overheads, ete " {7h (Y (501 11.268) (3107 7 (540 (372 10,007}
11 Less: Net debt repayment < idvw down) 7 edemption ot preference shares ¢ debentures 7 sy ol such ishanead -
premivms ¢ aceraed mierest S ony viher obliginons @ abidites ete | w paes other than Mondspace BENE as iy he
deemed ¥ by the Manggen 272 5474 LIST i2487) (L4My - 178 (2,257 2264 5007
12 Less: Proceeds ro shcloldes otlen s Mindspuce RETT thiough buyback o) shaes capnal teducton? dividend pand
on preference of equity capital, buybock distobubon s iF any pad on the sanse, and Tiher uweluding boylack
distribution rax, 1t appheabde on dizobanon o odspace REIT

. . - - - (L 126 (172 {334)
Total Adjustments (B) o Bt S 0 . [ I - S ) 1 L1 175 13T nd [4.0935) 10.271
__ Next Distributable Cash Flows (C)=AH) _ _ 41T 156y 1351 T 32 970 2,168 1985 id.695) 14,679




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS RENT

RN INFREIT/19-20/H13

Condunsed Consolidated Fingncinl Suitcuwents

Disclusure pursoant o SEBD master circolan o, SFBYITODIS-Pol -2 PICTRA IO L6
(Al amounis are in R, million wnbess otherwise staed)

Mot 1= For the purpose ol eliminatons nepaymeon ol Ints S19% luans and sepayment of loaos 0 REND (e Tot o0 Sl 5104500108 comadurnad

Note 2 Boowimg Tom and sepaymen to REET 1/ sy ot the samie quarten has been adpsted gk "Urher Adpiastinonts”

Note 3 Asper Chapler ¥, chiuse [H0a01 ol Seaunines and Fachange Bumd of Tndia (Real Estute lnsesument Trustsy Regnlations. 2004 55 atmended Do tnse w onne the citsty s egued 10 distnbute not less than 9% o8 el distabuotable cish Nows of die
cotity to Mindspace REN in moponnm of i Teldig u the PV subject o applicable prosisioos unihe Compantes e 103 As per distributon polisy scopted by e board of directons of Mindspase RET s 3 (K Rahega Corp bvestmesn Masase
Trovate Dinted) any poceeds wooshan el lders wiben e Mindspace REDD 15 iedoced woounve st el distobutable casin o s £8001

The il e note bas been prepated as per the distiibution policy adopeed by the buard of divectors of Mndspace RED < Mkumger winglo Tmong pait of the Fonal ol fa documem of fmdepace REIT and does nol tepresent smount avioluble Lo declwmg
devidund as pen secten 123 o e Campanies wt, 2003 wad with Declaaton and Pay ment of Dis sdeod Kales 200

E

Note 4 Incase of Gigaples donmg e none months ended Decenbe 2102022, 0 00tal amount of Bs 298 ondlion s e banstened hoon capial expendiwre o othel adgastiments punsiant 16 Jease commencenent of 1 outs

Mok 5 I Macch 2022, Mindspace Buaness Packs Posane Dimited O MBPEL™) one of the Asgsel 5% s ol Sladspace Bogess Porks RETE concluded the sule of L andrcasng appaiesd
Corp Ponate Linnted UKRCPL ¥ Jur o consideraton of Rs | 200 Million as per the approsal of the Boind of Dicewns ol MBPPL and the Boad of duectons of the Managar ond othel e
b December 1o, 2019 wwad witl the enlensiion bener dured Septentber 12021 5 Wolb 1 and sale deed dated 803 b 2023

alely 39 990 actes located al Pochaam. Uydeiabad 1o K Ralya
and comdinons as set oot m the Memaranduos of Linder

whing

The abuve consideraton 1s not eovisigeed 1 an minediade 1e-mvestinent opportunity I view of the same, ol s propsed to pay oul the sade consideration as per the 1ems of the REIT Regulabions: Accordingly, NDCF for the ame months eodid December
120227 weludes R 1 200 aulhions onawceoint ob distobubon o pat ol such sale proceeds by way ol divadensd woaiboliders

Mok 0 MDCF s calenlared on quacie Ty bases wd st preseoted Tor the nuie el 1s peal suaiadon ol yuartet Iy number

Nute T Dterest on bonowmes fiom Mimlspace REH mcludes the interest paid 1o Mindspace RENT and the imterest acened bot it pacd s consulered mothe gemong 9 (addTess Other adjust . including b ued hoasted o el changes 0 secun
dueposits worknng capital. cte . as oy Be deemod pecosaany by the Managee)

Nute 8. 00 KRC Infia, regtouped Bs 30 nnllon pertamoge G geeiusd e
Poinit N FELess: Met debt vepasmacnt Sidmvdaa g edeniplion of
nevesany by the Mamagerk For the nie months ended 31 December 2022

fiom Pont No 9 {Add Less Other adpstinents, aclading but ot hinitad o oet changes mosevunts depasits. waorkog capilal vle |, as may be deeined necessary by the Mamager §
trence shares / debentuies any il sucl mslounwent 2 prepuums— averned interest 2 any vther obligatinns - liabilities cte . 10 parties other than Mindspscs REVE a5 iy be decned

Mot ¥ b Intime . cegrouped Rs 32 snllion pertinig o meome s fion Point No.& (Adddess Any other o ol ionscaly expense o castomeon Loed ) actoad cash Thiws T these itens) as may be deemed necessary by the Mriger § o Ponn Ne 9

(A Less Other adynstimnents, inchieling but not imsted W et changes in secunty deposits, workmg capiial, el s may bre decmed meezsis by the anager) for the nine months ended 31 Decembey 2031

Nate 1 In Honzonvew egiouped Rs 16 nulhon periummg 1o accroed imerest from Pomt Mo L e Metdebi e paroment thasdosud redemption of prefeence staes  debentures 7~ any olber such insuument : prentiums — acered ugerest = i olhivy
obhgatons / halalines cie to pantes other than SMidspace RETT, ay may be deemed oevessory by the Manager) o Pond 3o 9 (A Less Other adistments, mcladog but nol loviked i net changes msecuny, deposits, working capital. cle - as i be
duerned necessary by the Manager ) Jor the mine ooty ended 31 Decemba 2022

A per o cepott ol even dale attiched

Iin Defoitte Haskins & Sells LLP T sl s DchalF ol the Boand of Dwectars ol
K Rabeja Uarp lovestment Managers Private Limised { Foemerly bnown as K Rabejin Corp Investmeom
Clurtered Accountanis \i.llad‘.:"vr: L1.F)
Frimm s ccgistiation pmber L17306W W- 100018 {1011 ™ |14 Av the Mindspace Buspgess Jagkgs BRI
& / = %

/U.W«‘Df"”/ = ay A / P PO e Ak ks

L o < 9 J(‘,é’
ilcsh Shah Neel U I e Hanesh Preeti N, Chheda

Pt [RITEIS N Cluel Exevative Utice et Pt taf € fioer
Stembrership munber 49060 (KR HH‘N; g If‘

Mace Bluimba Mave Wi : Plave tlumbay Place: Munmibai
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MINDSPFACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RMN: IN/RETT/ 1%-20/003

Cundensed Cunsolbdated Interi
Disclosure pursuamt 1o SEBL
{AN sonvumis are in Rs, willien

SEBIIOADHS o D-2PICIR2023/ 116

nless uiberwise stated}

Additivaal dischogures i required by Chaptes 3. Pavageaph 3,20 (v SEBI master circulur oo, SEBVHO/DDLLS-Pol-2/4CTR2023/ 1 10

Nel Distribuinbde Cash Flows INDCF} pinsuant (o goidasce wnder Chapter 3, Paragreaph 3.20 w0 SEBI master civenlar oo SEBVHO/DDINE-PoO-LPICIRZIZ3 16
(il Culewlution o1 net disteibutable cash Dows at encls At SPY

Lur the year eaded 31 Maceh 2023 porsosat 1 goidanee wder Chapler 3, Pacgeaph 3,20 o SEB] master circolar o SESLOGDDIS-FoD-2 HCUR200371 16

Sr Preseripim Wacikiv MEPPL Hovizonsiew Gigaplex KRC Infin  lntime  KRIT  Sundew Elimination ' Total
wo, _ o - - - ’
I Prulit nI'lert_al as pel‘- Statement ol 1] wlil and loss/income amd expendituce (standalone) (4) T o 1724 1T03) unt] IR 522 1.837 - FRUY
2 Add Depreciabion and amorbsatis s pet Statensont of prafitand kissweome and expenditure 1% ANy pats @l 1w 4 - 2194
Y Addiless Lossigan on sale oF real cstabe dasets - - = . i
4 Add Proceeds fion sale ol real estate assers hymdauen of any iher asset o s cstment Ginel g (O] ERIN LE ] 40 2R 110 Tl 10,585

cash equialents) o ey farm ol fund s ot (he Asiel SPY level adjusted for the following
debls settled o due to be settled o sale procecds - . = E £
ICAnEAGIIL C1EIS : = E
proceeds resmyested v plained tr be tonnesicd maccordance with the REIT Regulauons ™ = : - v . z

an¥ acqusdn . = E =
meesiment meany fonm as peovitted wder e REN Regalauons - . =
s iy be deemed Decessary by dhe Monaga - - - - - - =
5 Add Proceeds Tom sale of veal waote sossers wor drstobuted putswnt te an culien plan o ce-avest - = = -
it sch proceeds me not intended 1o be muesed subsequennly
O Addless Any other lem ol non-cish expense 7 non cash nwone qreet of actual cash Nows Ton these (1. I8 37 {hy [ Tud - g |
Mems), as may be deemied necessany by Hie Motae 5%
For example, any decrease moncase mocandy g andnn of o sssel or of o Dabilily revosnised m = - - - - -
statement ol profit atd lugs tcone and sxpendilune on incasinenent of the asset v the labilty a0
Feur value, uikerest eost as pen o Fevtme merest e ntbod, defenied tis, keaze rents recgpinsed on
i stzupht i basis, ele
7 Add Cush flow receied from Asser 5PV and meesiment entity, o any including (pplicable for . - - -
Holdeo only, to the cxlent nul cuneted dluse)
repayment o the debt v case o wivestments by way ol debt - . - - - -
proceeds Truni boy-backs: capual feduction - . - -
B Add Interest wn bubtowings Trom Mindspace RELL g w54 Sod = 63 124 = 258
Y Addfless Ovber adpustmznns, e luding bt ot bl wooe clanges i secunity deposits, wot kg {50 (THo) 250 L5} 4|9 - 1143)
copital ele |, as rway be deemed nevessacy by the Maage ' 571100
1) Less Any expense i the natne ol capial cependiane mcluduig capitalized mterest ther con it The ! 12y (1.220) (ot 1102) (712} 441 - (7446
parties other than Musdspace REIT) vverheads wie 2%
1 Less Net del epayment < (diavdiwen) - sedempiinn of peeFeence shanes £ debentures © any wiber Y4y Y IR (1475 M| 0240d) 4073 4,233
such mstowment - premoums © avciued aerest am ellien obhganions ¢ lisbihes e, b parties

other than Mindspace RETT 5 mag e decined necessaty by the Manage e




12 Less Proceeds W oshacholdis other than Aluadspace RENT thiough boyback ot shanes cupital ‘ {131 (R (231} 140U
teduchon: divadend pach o pretenaiee ancguy capasd oy bach distobiaoon el sy pad on e
same. and Tnther tocluding b back diztobunnn e 1] appleable oo distitunen o Mindspae:

REIT
Totnl Adiustiments (B) . — LAl R 2 1iu i1 1T ILECEIN - A4} 331 5815 13033
Net Disiributable Cash Flows (C=(A+8) } - . 4696 5133 1,406 915 361 M7 43 LK 158150 18000

Nate | Fol the puipose of chommatons repagment ol futer SPY loans and sepayment of loans Lo RETT Ouniber Tenl i Assot 8PS s consdeded

Mote 2 I case of KT wmount meludes wiomen dosen valoe D 5PV of e butldings beanog nus 7 & % aid plast and amzchioe s ad atber tens aitched 1 e buldugs wmowniting B 252 mthon onaccount of deulibon af the sad boldings h
Jras severved concuience o TSHC woc L3 March 2023 T nedevchopent

Nute 3 Baowing fiol

o vepaynvent e KELD b iy saathn tha samte guarker bis been apusted wider *Otle Aalirame ms®

Bt 4 As per Chapter %, vl Lota] ol Sevurinns: amd slisuge Buand of Tredia (Real Estate Investient Tousds ) Beoultivone 204 as aended frens o ot the entiy s regquinsd o disiiilnte nw kess than 90% of net distobwrable cash Dows
ol e ey W Mindspace RETT i proputton ol us heldig mthe S1Y subyser 1o appheable provisions m s © oA 2003 A gl Jutiloinn policsy adepted by e boand ol deectons of Slindspace RELL s Managen (K Raluga Cwp
Ivestinent Mimagars Private Limited), aoy procesds o shancholders other tan Modspace RENT 15 reduced e st net dustubunable cash Ao (NDUL

e wbore note has been prepiied as pec e diloluton peliey adopled by the boand of ditectors wl Mindspuce BEIT 5 Munian which s fmung gl o the Funal wiTer dovunienl of #indspace RETT and does ot epresent amoont asvanlalshe foy
duc g devdend s per seeian 128 of the Conpaie Acl 2003 read with Deckaation and Payment of Ondand Robes 20T E

Note 5 I case of Gigoples, Junng the sean sndel 11 Mach 2023 2 totad ameunt of Ry 298 malbon has been tmsbenad oo pal oxpenditine b wlbier andpustis:nds pustant W leass comrmenvement ot HE s

Note 6 T March 2022, Muilspace Business Fabs Povate Linaled ("MBPFL™, one of the Asset 5PV ol Sindspace Musiness Parks RENT conclinded 1 sale of Tl sndnneasi g appro<mately 309090 acres oeated ot Pocharam, Hydeabad, w K
Raheju Corp Privane Laned ¢ KRUFL Lo i vuismdeinang ol Bs 1200 Belalloom as e the approval of the Buaid of Pieectues of STRPPL anc the Dosud ol dnestons of the Manszer anwd ubther terms and comdiians as sel vl i the Memorandum of
Uinetstanding dated Decamlber 1o 2014 vead waith the extemson letler dated September | 20210 Mul? ) and sake deed dated 30h Viach e nd

Tive abuve congdetation v pot @nviaaed (o al e Tenvesmenl opporlonty 10 vies of e same s proposed 1o pay ot e sile cateaderanoan as per the werms ol the RETT Regols
273, cludes Bs 1,200 jadhons e accunl af diswibutinn ol soch sale procesds by way of deadend b antholders

i Aecordmuly. NDCE {on the yew ended Bach 31

Pt T NOCT 15 caleulated v quantenky hasts snd ameanl presented Gin the yew endsd s maolhematcal summain of guateth nombers
oe 8 b cage of Gyzaphen sdiusted T namlusement o puesen odiosinacion e and any: other maoduication e gt maponts s teguaed wnd poinbased by lenant
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Congolidated Interim Financial Statements
Neotes to Accounts

(Al amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

1

Organisation Structure

The condensed consolidated Interim financial statements {*Condensed Consolidated Imerini Financial Statements') compnse financial statements of Mindspace Business
Farks Real Estate Investment Trust (Mindspace Business Parks REIT/ Mindspace REIT/Trust), its SPVs Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited { MBPPL'}, Gigaplex
Estate Private Limuted (*Gigaplex'), Sundew Properties Limited ("Sundew'} Intime Properties Limited {'lutime"), K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited ('KRIT), KRC
Infrastructore and Projects Private Limited (KRC lnfra"y, Horizonview Properties Private Limited ('Henzonview'), Avacado Properties and Trading (India} Private Limited
{"Avacado') (individually referred to as ‘Special Purpose Vehicle' or “SPV" or "Asset SPV" and together referred to as ‘Mindspace Business Parks Group™/Mindspace
Group') The SPVs are companies domiciled in [ndia

Anbee Constructions LLP {*ACL"}and Cape Trading LLP {*CTL’} collecnively known as (the ‘Sponsors™ or the “Co-Sponsors') have set up the 'Mindspace Business Parks
REIT as an irmevocable trust, pursuant to the Trust Deed, under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and the Trust has been registered with Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) as a Real Estate Investment Trust en 18th November 2019 under Repulation & of the Securities and Exchange Board of Tndia {Real
Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations. 2014 having registration number RN:TN/REIT/19-20/003 The Trustee to Mindspace REIT is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the
‘Trustee’) and the Manager for Mindspace REIT is K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited {Formerly known as K Raheja Corp [nvestment Managers LLP)
{the *Investment Manager™

The objectives and principal activity of Mindspace REIT 15 to carry on the acrivity of a 1eal estate investment trust. as peimissible under the REIT Regulations. to 1a1se
funds through the REIT. te make Investments in accordance with the REIT Regulations and the Investment Strategy and ta carry on the achivities 48 may he required for
operating the REIT, including incidental and ancillary matters thereto

The units of the tiust were listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE Limited) and National Stock Exchange (NSE) on 7 August 2020

The brief achivitics and of the SPVs are ided
. I Shareholding Shareholding
N { the SPV 4 . . =
ame of the SP Activities {in percentage} as at 31 December 23 {in percentage) as at 31 March 2023
vooansaged o oreal Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
o projects such oaz 5 REIT [100% REIT i00%
Zonee (RFZ). Inforn
! nelag, :oand Lol
‘ 5 The has iz s in I
1 Tun Pune Foc 1
MBFPL (Hyderabad) The SPV s a2 deemed

distiibution ficensee pursuam le which il
can distribute power fo the SEZ tenants
within the Park It commenced distnbution
o et Lo meenl o0 Aneli

Sunalian from € Apnl 2015

The SPV s engaged in a2al  estate Business Parks Business Parks
developimenl  projects  such  as  Special 100% 100%,

Econemic  Zome  (SEZ).  Intormation

Technology Parks and  other commercial

assets The SPY has ils projects in Aaroki

(Mavi Wumbai) The SFY is a deemed

Gigaplex distribution licensee pursuant to which it
can distribute power to the 3EZ tenants
within the Park It commenced disiribution
of eleciricity in its project at Airoli, Navi
Mumbai from 19 April 2016
The 5PV is engaged in development and Mindspace REIT : 89% Mindspace REIT : 89%
leazing/hicensing of [nformation Technology

Sundew (IT) park, SEZ to different customers in Telangana State Tndustrial Infrastructure Telangana State Industrial Infrasnucture
Hyderabad Corporation Limited (11%) Corporation Limited {11%)
The SPV 15 engaged in development and Mindspace REIT ; 89% Mindspace RETT : 89%
leasing/licensing of 1T park 1o differemi
custoniers in Hyderabad Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure

Corporation Limited (11%) Corporation Lirited (11%)

Intime
The SPV is engaged in developmen and Mindspace REIT : §9% Mindspace REIT : 89%

ERIT leasing/hicensing of IT pack to different

custeniers in Hyderabad

Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure
NS&J' Corporation Limited (11%) Corporatien Limited {11%)

N



The SPY i3 engaged in real estate|Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
development projects such as  Special|REIT : 100% REIT : 100%

Economic Zoene [3EZ) and lnformation
Technology Parks. The SPV has ts projeci
in Kharadi Pune The SPV 1s a deemed
distribution licensee pursuant to which 0
KRC Infra can distribute power to the SEZ tenants
within the Park It commenced distribution
of electricity w its project at Khacadi, Pune
from | June 2019

The 3PV (s also engaged in Facibty
Management services

The SPV is engaged in development and|Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
Horizonview leasing/licensing of IT park to different|REIT : 100% REIT : 10%%%

customers in Chennat

The SPV has developed an [ndustrial park|Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks

for the purpose of letting out to different|REIT : {00% REIT - 100%

customers in Paradigm building at Malad-
Mumbai and is being maintained and
Avacado operated by the SPY The 3PV also has a
commercial  project in Bandra  Kurla
Complex, Mumbai

Basis of preparation

The Condensed Consolidated Tnterim Financizt Statements of Mindspace Business Patks REIT comprise the Condensed Consolidated Interim Balance Sheet as at
December 31, 2023, the Cendensed Consolidated Interim Statement of Protit and Loss, including other compiehensive income. the Condensed Consolidated Interim
Statement of Cash Flow for the quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2023, the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholders Equity for the nine
months ended December 31, 2023, and the Statement of Met Distributable Cashflows of Mindspace Business Parks REIT and each of the SPVs for the quarter and nine
months ended Decemnber 31, 2023, and a sumumary of the material accounting policies and select explanatory information and other additional financial disclosures

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real
Estate Investiment Trustsh Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to bme including any guidelines and cnculars issued thereunder read with SEBI Circular No
SEBVHO/DDHS-PeD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated é July 2023 (“the REIT tegulations™), Regulation 52 and Regulation 54 of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 ("Listing Regelations”™). Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Intenm Financial Reporting”. as prescribed in Rule 2(1)a} of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepied in India. to the extent not inconsistent with REIT
regulations {refer note 19 on presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity ™ instead of compound instruments under Ind AS 32 - Financial [nstruments Presentation)

The Condensed Consolidated Tnterim Financial Slatements were authorised for izsue in accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Manager on
Jartuary 19, 2024

Statement of compliznce w Ind AS

These Condensed Consolidated Interim financial statements for 1he quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2023 have been prepared in accordance with Indan
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 ~Interim Financial Reporting”as prescnibed in Rule 2{1¥a) of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)
(o the extent not inconsistent with the REIT regulations as more fullv described above and Note 19 to the condensed consolidated financial statements

The accounting policies adopted and methods of computation followed are consisient with those of the previous financial year

The financial statements of all the SPVs and the Trust used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date

Basis of Consolidation

Mindspace Business Parks Group consolidates entities which it owns or contrals The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements comprise the financial
statements of Mindspace Business parks REIT and its subsidiary SPVs as disclosed in note 1. Control exists when the parent has power over the entity, is exposed, o1 has
rights, to variable returns from its invalvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity. Power is demonstrated through
existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities. those which significantly affect the entity’s returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control
commences until the date control ceases.

The procedure for preparing Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of Mindspace Business Parks Group are stated below:
a} The financial statements of Mindspace Business Parks Group are consolidated for like items and intiagroup balances and transactions for assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows between entities of Mindspace Busimess Parks Group are eliminated in full upon consolidation

b) Telangana State Industrzal Intrastiucture Corporation Limited. which is a shareholder in Intime, KRIT and Sundew has not agreed to exchange their equity interest in
the SP¥s (lntime, KRIT and Sundew), thus, Mindspace Business Parks REIT has recorded a non-controlling interests for these SPVs The interest of non-controiling
shareholders may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
The choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis Subsequent to acquisition, the carcying amount of non-controlling inferests is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-contrelling inlerests” share of subsequent changes in equity

¢} The tigures in the notes 1o accounts and disclosures have been Consolidated line by line and Inter-company transactions and balances including unrealised profits are
eliminated in full on conselidation

d) Mindspace Business Parks Group holds 4% of the equity share capital of Staryaze Properties Private Limiled. a company involved in the real estate development
Mindspace Business Parks Group 1s of the view that it is not able to exercise significant influence over Stargaze Properties Private Limited and hence it has not been
aceounted using equity mechod
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Material accounting pelicies

{a) Functional and presentation currency
The Condensed Consolidated laterim Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupess, which is Mindspace Business Parks Group's functional currency and the
currency of the prinary economic envir t in which Mindspace Business Parks Group operates. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been roundad

off to nearest million except otherwise stated

{b) Basis of measurement

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements are on the historical cost basis, except for the following:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities {refer accounting policy regarding financial instrument): measured at fair values;

- Net defined benefit (asset) liability less present value of defined obligations: Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit plan

(¢} Use of judgements and estirnates

The preparation of the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS} requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those
estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are tevised
and in any future periods affected

Informatien about eritical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most material effect on the amounts recognised 10 the Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements is included in the following notes:

Presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” in accordance with the REIT Regulations instead of compound instrument (Note 19}

Estimation of lease term for revenue recogmtion

Estimation of useful hfe of property, plant and equipment and investment property

Estimation of recognition of deferred tax assets, availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used and income taxes

Impairment and Fair valuation of [nvestment Property, [nvestment property under construction, Property, piant and equipment and Capital work-in-progress

Recognition and measurement of provisions for contingencies and disclosure of contingent liabilities

Significant judgements is involved in the allocation cost of acquisition te the identifiable assets and liabilities based on their relalive fair values at the date of

acquisttion m case of asset acquistion

d) Curtent versus non-current classification

Mindspace Business Parks Group presents assets and liabilities in the Condensed Censelidated Balance Sheet based on current/ nen-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is;

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restnicted from bemng exchanged or used (o settle a liability for at jeast twelve months afier the reportmyg penod

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liabiTity 12 current when:

- [t1s expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

- [t iz held primarily for the purpose of trading;

= Ttis due to be setiled wilhin twelve months afier the vepoiting petiod. v

- There i no ancondiiional nighi Lo defer the seiliement of ihe Gabiily for ar feast tnelve mombs afier the reponing penod

Muindspace Business Parks Group cilassities all othe) liabilities as non-curient

Deferred tax assets and babihties are classified as non-corrent assets and liabihties

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Mindspace Business Parks Group has
identified twelve months as its operating cvcle

{e} Measurement of Fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a hability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue [n estimating the fair value of an asset o a liability, Mindspace REIT
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability and how matke1 participants would take those characteristics inte account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date

Mindspace Business Parks Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values. for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
Mindspace Busingss Parks Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurament of fair values.

Mindspace Group regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used to measure fair values then the
M t the evidence obtained from the third pacties to support the conclusien that such valvations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in
the fair valve hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified,

When measuning the fair value of an asset or a liability, Mindspace Business Parks Group uses observable market data as far as possible Fair values are categorised into
different levels i a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

+ Level 1! quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for idemical assels o liabilities that entity can access on measurement date

+ Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly i e as prices) or indirsctly (i e derived from
prices)

« Level 3+ inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs}

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall info different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entiretv in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level it that is giontficant to the entire measurement

Finanocial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract 15 a contract thal requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instiument

Financial guarantee contracts are measured initially at the fair value and in accordance with Ind AS 109 unless on a case to case basis electzd to be accounted for financial
guaraniee as Insurance Contracts as specified under Ind AS 104
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Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Depreciation is charged when the assets are ready for their intended
use. The cost of property, plant and equipment includes freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition or construction of the respective
assets. The cost of such assets not ready for their intended use are disclosed as capital work-in-progress, Purchase price or construction cost is defined as any consideration
paid or fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful Tives, then they are accounted for s separate items (major components) of property,
plant and equipment

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if 1t is probable that the future econemic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to Mindspace Business Parks

Group Subsequent costs are included in the asset's canying amount or recognised as a separale assef, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future econonne
benefils associated with the 1tem will flow to Mindspace Business Parks Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred

Depreciation

Depreciation / amortisation is provided using straight fine method as per the useful life of the assers estimated by the management over the balance useful ife The
estimated useful hives of the assets, which are higher than. lower than or equal to those prescribed under Schedule [T of the Companies Act 2013, are listed in the table
below Depreciation on addition / deletion of property, plant and equipment made during the period is provided on pro-rata basis from / to the date of such addiuon /

deletion
The assets and estimated uzetul life are as under:

[ Estimated Useful Life
Asset group .
{in years)
Power assets Dther assets

Faght ta use - Leaschold land Balance Lease term -
Buildings® 75190 -

Plant and machmery 15 15
Elzctncal installation* 13 15
Computers 3 3
Temporary Structure® - )
Qffice equipment® 4 4
Furniture and fixtuies* - 7

_ Vehicles* . - 5 |

1 these class of ussets. based on technical assessment the management believes the usefil life of the assets is appropriate which is dilferent than those preseribed under
1 C ol Schedule H of W Compantes Act, 20153

+ |

(1) J3ased om internal assessment the management behieves the residual value of all assets except Leasehold Land is estimated to be 5% of the origmal cost of thuse
Jespechve assels at 3PV

12+ Assets indrvrduelty costing less than Rs 5 000 are fully wiitten oft in the vear of acquisition

131 The esumated userut lnes. residual values and depreciation =uthod are reviewed al the end of the reporung peniod with the eltect of any changes n the csiimation
dovidnied 1or ona plospechie bass

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipnient is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 1o arise from the continved use of the assel
Any gain or Joss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant aud equipment is determined as the difterence between the sales proceeds and the
carrving amount of the asset and 1s recopnized in the Cond d Consolidated Stat it of Profit and Loss

Capital work in progress

Property, plant and equipment under construction is disclosed as capital work n progress which is carried ar cost less any recognized impairment losses. Cost comprises of
purchase price and any attiibutable cost such as duties, fieight. borrowing costs. erection and commissioning expenses incurred in bringing the asset to its working
condition tor its intended use

Advance paid and expenditure incuned on acquisition / consiruction of property. plant and equipment which are not ready for their intended use at each balance sheet
date are disclosed under other non current assets as advances on capital account and capital work-in-progress respectively

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is an identifiable nen-monetary asset without physical substance. Inangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are initially
measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less accumulated amortisation and impaitment, if any The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting pericd. with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis [ntangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less impairment. if any

Subsequent expenditare
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it mcreases the future gconomic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure,
including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Stalement of Profit and Loss as incurred

Amortisation
Amortisation 15 calculated over the cost of the asset. or ether amount substituted for cost. less Dts residual value Amortisation is recognised in the Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Protit and Loss on a straight line method over the estimated usctul lives of intangible assets. from the date that they are available for use

Estimated Useful Life
{in years)
Orther assets
3
10
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being acconnted for on a

Asset group
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Dre-recagnition

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal, gains or losses ansing from derecognition of an
i ible asset, d as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset, are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss when the asset is derecognized

Investment property

Recognition and measurement

Properties including land, building and other assets, which are held either for long-term rental yield or for capital appreciation or for both, and which are not occupied
substantially by Mindspace Busimess Parks Group are classified as investment property

[nvestment properties are initially recognised at cost. inclueding related transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment preperties are measured in
accordance with the requitement of Ind AS 16%s requirements for cost model i.e. Cost fess depreciation less impairment losses, if any. Depreciatien is charged when the
investinent property is ready for its intended use Cost comprises of direct expenses like land cost, site labour cost, material used for project construction, project
management consultancy, costs for moving the plant and machinery to the site and general expenses incurred specifically for the respective project like insurance, design
and technical assistance. and construction overheads are allocated on a reasonable basis to the cost of the project

Plant and machinery, furniture and fixtures, office equipment and electrical equipments which are pliysically artached to the commercial buildings are considered as part of
investient propeny

Acqusitions and disposals are accounted for at the date of completion of acquisilions and disposals

If significant parts of an item of Investment property have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items {major compenents) of Invest propery

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s camying amount only when it 15 probable thal future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will fow 1o
Mindspace Business Parks Giroup and the cost of the item can be measured reliably All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred

Depreciation

Depreciation / amortisation is provided using straight line method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the management over the balance useful life The
estimaled useful lives of the assets, which are higher than, lower than or equal to these prescribed under Schedule if of the Compantes Act 2013 and listed in the table
below. Depreciation on addition / deletion of investment property made during the period is provided on pro-rata basis from / to the date of such addition / deietron

Estimated Useful Life
Asgget group X
tro years)
Right 1o use - Leasehold [and Balance Lease term
Buildings* 73/50
| Tnfragteuciuie aind developmoin [
I Loadwark™ 13
| Broauwalh. vontage café ete * 50
| Wiand amd machinery 13
| Office equipment® 4 |
Fusndtre and fixtures® 7
| Cltical installation* 15

" For Ihese class ol assets based on technical asszssment the manazement believes the usetul life of the assets 1s appropriate which s different than thase prescnbed under
Part C of Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2413

{1 Based on internal assessment the management beheves the residual value of all assets exvept Leasehold Land is estimated to be 5% of the original cost of those
respechive assels at SPY

(2) Asses individually costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully writien off in the year ot acquisition

(3) The estmated useful tives. residual values and depreciation methed are reviewed at the end ef the reporting peried with the effect of any changes in the estimation
accounted for on a prospective basis

{4} Useful life of building is restricted te the lease term of leasehold land on which the building is construcred

Fair ¥aluc

Fair value of investment property is based on a valuation by an independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has 1ecent
experience in the location and category of the investment property bemg valued The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the Statement of Net assets at Fail
Value

De-recognition

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the invesiment property is permanenily withdravm from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal Any gain or loss arising on de-recognilion of the property (cafculated as the difference betwesn the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period 1 which the property is de-recognised

In determining the amount of consideration fiom the derecognition of Investment propecties, the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a
significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable tv the buyer {if any)

Investment properties under construction

Property that is being constructed for future use as investinent property is accounted for as investment property under construction until assets are ready for their intended
use

Direct expenses iike land cost, site labour cost. material used for praject construction, project management consultancy. costs for meving the plant and machinery to the
site and general expenses incurred specifically for the respective project like insurance, design and technical assisiance, and construction overheads are taken as the cost of
the project

Ivestment properties under construction represent the cost incurred in respect of areas under construction of the real estate development projects less impairment losses. if
any

Advance paid for acquisition of investment property which are not ready for their intended use at each balance sheet date are disclosed under other non current assets as
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Impairment of assets

Mindspace Business Parks Group assesses at each balance sheet date, whether there is any indication that an asser may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
Mindspace Business Parks Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of the assets {or where applicable that of the cash generating unit
(CGU} to which the asset belongs) is estimated as tlhie higher of its fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Valve in use i3 the preseat value of estimated future
cash flows (discounted using a pre-tax discount rate thar reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset) expected to
arise from the continuing use of the asseis and from its disposal at the end of its wseful life. In determining fair value less casts of disposal, recent market fransactions are
taken into acconnt. For the purpose of impairment testing, assels that cannot be tested individually are grouped together nto the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGU. An impairment loss is recognised whenaver the carrying amount
of an asset or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount Impairment loss is recogmsed in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and

l.oss
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or a cash-generating unit} is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,

so that 1he increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no inpairment loss been recognised for the asset {or cash.
generating unit} in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are atiributable to the acquisition, constructien or production of qualifying assets are treated as direct cost and are considered as part of cast of such
assets. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an enhity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Investment inceme earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. A qualifying asset is an
asset that necessarily requires a substantial peviod of time to get ready for its intended use or sale

Capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs te be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable io the general borrawings

Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The “effective interest rate’ is the 1ate that exactly discounms estimated future cash payments threugh the
expected life of the tinancial instrument 1o the amortised cost of the financial liability In calculating interest expense, the effective interest rate is applicd to the amaitized
cost of the liablity

Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during the extended period in which active development is interrupted Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete

All other borrowing costs are recognised as ap expense in the period in which they are incurred

Borrowing cost incurred by the SPVs on inter-company loans is continued to be capitalised enly to the extent Mindspace Group has incurred external borrowing cost

Inventories

Measurement of inventory

Inventories comprise of building maierial and components Contractual work in progress. in respect of third party customers. is classified as work in progress. Mindspace
Business Parks (roup measures its inventories at tie lower of cost and net realisable value

Cost of inventorics

Tl cost of imventories of building mutenial and compoeners and work in progress comprise all costs of purchasc and other costs incurred in bringing the s entones to
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis

Nei realisable value

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessany to make the sale

Reverne recoguition
Faciiity rentals
Hevelie monm property leased owl under an operatiny lease 1S recognised over the lease term on 2 straight e basis except wihere therg 1= an uncerimty of winmaie

collectinn
Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral pact of the total rental income. The lease term is the non-cancellable penod together with any further 12tm for which

the tenant has the eption to continue the lease, where. al the mception of the lease, the Mindspace Business Parks Gioup is reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise
that option Contingent renfs are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are arned on a receipt basis

Revenue from works contracival services

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when a performance obligation is satisfied by transfer of promised goods or services to a customer in accordance
with the agreement with the customer For works contract arrangement, the performance obligation gets satisfied over time, and therefore, the revenue recognition is done
by measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation from time to time as per the agreement with the customer The progress is measured in
terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date. to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance obligatien The revenue is recognised to the extent of
transaction price allocated to the parformance obligation satisfied. Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for tansterring goods o services to a custonter excluding amounts cellected on behalf of a thitd party

Maintenance services
Maintenance income is recognised over a period of time for services rendered to the costomers

Revenue from power supply
Revenue from power supply is accounted for on the basis of billings to consumers and includes unbilled revenues accrued up to the end of the accounting year. Mindspace
Business Parks Group delermines surplus/deficit i e. excess/ shorifall of aggregate gain over Teturn on equity entitlement for the period in respect of its operations based on
the principles laid down under the respective Tariff Regulations as notified by Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission {MERC), on the basis of the taniff order
issued by it In respect of such surplusideficit, appropriate adjustments as stipulated under the regulations are made duning the period. Further, any adjustments that may
arise on annual performance review by the MERC under the tariff regulations is made after the completion of such review

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation The transaction price of goods sold is net of vanable consideration on account of various discounts offered by the Company as part of the contract Revenue
trom the sale of goods is recognised when the Group performs 1ts obligations 1o its customers and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and recovery of the
consideration is probable The timing of such recognition in case of sale of zoods is when the control ever the same 15 transferred to the customey,

Finance Lease
For assets let out under finance lease. Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises a receivable at an amount equal 10 the net investmenl 1n the lease Rentals recerved are
accounied for as repayment of principal and finance income. Minimum lease payments receivable on finance leases are appestioned between the finance mcome and the
reduction of the outstanding receivable The tinance income allocated to each penod duning the lease term $o as o produce a constant periodic rate of jnterest on the
remaining net investment in the finance lease.

Contingent rents are recorded as income in the periods in which they are earned

Sale of surplusefrrmretting material and serap
i Nygnstruction material and scrap is recognised when control of the goods are
e the sxpects to be entitled in exchange for those goods net of the expected remaoy,

er at an amount that reflects the
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Recognition of dividend income, interest income :

{i} Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which Mindspace RELT group has right to receive payment is established

{ii} Interest income 1s recognised on time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable

{iii) Delayed payment charges and interest on delayed payments are recognised, on time proportion basts, except when there is uncertainty of ultimate collection

Tax expense

[ncome tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or ¢redit. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to an
item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which case, the current and deferred tax are alse recognised in equity and other comprehensive
income respectively

{a} Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received afier considering the uncertainty, if any, related to
income taxes. [t is measured using tax rates (and tax laws} enacted or substantively enacted by end of reparting period

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts. and it is intended to realise the asset and sertle the
liability en a net basis or simultaneously

{b) Deferred rax

{c}

Deferred tax assetliability is recoguised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the compntation of taxable profit, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled. using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax conseqguences that would follow from the manner in which Mindspace Busmess Parks Group expects. at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in 2 transaction that is not 2 business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss at the ime of the transaction: and

- Temporary ditferences related 1o investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint arrangements 1o the extent that Mindspace Business Park Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not

reverse in the foreseeable future;

Deferred 1ax liabilities are generally recognised for sl taxable temporary differences Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
0 the exient that it is probable that taxable profits will be available agamst which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recoguised if the temporary difference anses from the inilial recogrution (other than m a business combination} of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

The existence of unused tax losses 1s strong evidence that future 1axable profit may not be available. Theretore, in casc of a histony of recent losses. the Mindspace
Busineys Parks Group recognises a defeired tax asset only 1o the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there 15 convincing other evidence that
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting penod and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profis will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset iF there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilitics, and they relate o income faxes levicd by the same tax
authiority on the same taxuble entity. or on different tax ennitivs, but they mtend to setile current 1ax habilities and assets on a net basis or ther tax assels and Babalives wall
be realised simntltancously

For operations catried out under tax holidoy period (301A beneflis of Income Tax Act, 1961), deferred tax assels o labilities, if any, have been established for the tax
censequences of those temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases that reverse after the tax holiday ends

In the situations where one or more unils of the Group are entitled to a tax holiday vnder the tax law, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of
temporary differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the concerned unit's gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday
penod Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the temporary differences originate
However. the Group restiicts 1ecognition of deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufficient future laxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes. the temporary diffeiences which originate first are considered to reverse first

Minimum Akernate Tax (MAT)

MAT credit entitlement is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period
In the year in which MAT credit becomes eligible to be recopnized as an assel. the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
and shown as MAT credit entitlement under deferred tax assets. This is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the canrying amount of MAT credit entitlement is written
down to the extent it is not reasonably certain that normal income tax will be paid during the specitied period

Earnings per unit {EPT)):

‘The basic earnings per unit 15 computed by dividing the net profitf {boss) atiributable to the unit holders of Mindspace REIT by the weighted average number of units
outstanding duning the reporting period The number of units used in computing dilnted earnings/ (loss} per unit comprises the weighted average units considered for
derrving basic eamings/ {loss) per unit and alse the weighted average number of units which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive petential units

Dilutive potential units are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been ssued at a later date. In computing diluted eamings per unit,
only potential equity units that are dilutive and which either reduces earings per unit or increase loss per units are included
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Provisions, contingent liabilittes and contingent assets
Provisions are recognised when Mindspace Busi Parks Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that Mindspace
Business Parks Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration net of recoveries if any, required to settle the present obhgation at the end of the reporting
peried, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the ebligation Provisions are detetmined by discounting the expected fulure cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the fime value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but will probably not, require an outflow of resources. When there
is a possible ebligation of a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made

Provisions for oherous contracts, i e, contracts where the expected wnavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected
to be received under it, are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a
result of an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of such obligation 1f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted

A contingent asset is disclosed when there would be a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the ocourrence or non-
occurrence of one o1 more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of Mindspace Rusiness Parks Group
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheel date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange
transactions settled during the year are recognised in the Conselidated Statement of Profit and Loss of the period

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forergn curcency, which are outstanding as at the peviod-end and not covered by forward contracts, are translated at the
period-end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange ditferences are recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Non-monetary
foreign currency items are carried at cost

Leases

As a Lessor

Mindspace Business Parks Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respecl to somie of its investment properties

Leases for which Mindspace Business Parks Group is a lessor is classified as finance or operating leases Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lesses. the contract is elassified a5 a finance lease, All other leases are classified as operating leases

Whan Mindspace Business Parks Group is an intermediate lesser, 1t accounts for the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts The sublease is classitfed 25 a
finance o1 operating lease by reference 10 the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease

RN Incoton fros operatiny leases is recognised on a stevight-hibe basis over the term of 1he relevant lease and presented as unbilled revenue n other financial assets

The dease renm 3 the non-cancellable peniod together with any turther terms for which the tenant has the option 1o continue the lease, where, at the inception ot the J2ase,
ihe Mindspace Groug s seasonably centain that the tenant will exercise that option

gkl dueer costy sbeh as brokerage expenses incurred specifically 1o earn revenues from an operating lease are capitalised to the carrving anmount of lzased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income

Amounts due from ieszees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of Mindspace Business Parks Group's net investment in the leases Finance
lease 1ncome is allocated to reporting penods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on Mindspace Business Parks Group's net investment outstanding in respeet
oF the frane:

Asa Leosse

Mindspace Business Parks Ciroup assesses whether a contract is o1 contaiins a lease, at inceplion of a conltact A conuacl 13, o contains, a lease if the conlract cotveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding lease hallity with regpect to all lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except tor short-term leases { defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less) and leases of low value assets For these leases Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises the lease payments as an operaling expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time patiern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumead

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease pavments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate tmplicit in the
lease. [ this rate cannot be readily determined, Mindspace Business Parks Group uses its incremental borrowing rate

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease Liability comprise:

+ fixed lease payments (inchiding in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

+ variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the cemmiencement daie,

+ the amount expected 1o be pavable by the lessee under residual valee guarantees;

+ payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option 1o tesminate the lease

The lease liability 1s presented separately as part of Financial Liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated balance sheet The lease liability is subsequently measured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability {using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made

Mindspace Business Parks Group remeasures the lease labiliny (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever

* the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate

+ the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change m expecied payment under a guaranteed residual value. 1n which cases the lease liability 15
measured by discounting the 1evised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease paymenis change is due to a change in a tloating interest rate. in which
case a revised discount rate is used)

+ a Jease coniract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as o separate lease. in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease paymenis using a revised discount cate
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The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the cortesponding lease lizbility, lease payments made at or before the commencement day and any mitial
direct costs . They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impainment losses

Whenever Mindspace Business Parks Group incurs an obligation for cests to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the
underlying asset to the condition requited by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under Ind AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories

Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorier period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset
Mmdspace Business Parks Group applies Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets 1o determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss as described in Note 3 5

Yartable rents that do not depend on an index or tate are not included in the measurement the Jease liability and the righi-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised
as an expense in the peried 1n which the event or condition that riggers those payments occurs and are included in the line ™ other expenses™ in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Financial instruments

lnitial recognition and measarement

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognised when Mindspace Business Parks Group becomes party to a contract embodying the related financial instruments
All financial assets/ financial lialities are initially measured at fair value. plus in case of financial assets/ financial liabilities not recorded at fair value throngh profil or
loss (FVTPL}), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or 1ssue of financial assets/ financial liabilities are added 1o or deducted. as the case may be, trom the
fair value of such assets or liabilities Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Trade receivables that do not contain a sinificant financing component are measured at transaction price.

Financial assets:

Classification of financial assets:
Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categones:
- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the Consolidated Statement of Frofit and Loss}, and

- those meazured at amonised cost

The classification is done depending upon Mindspace Business Parks Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the coniractual terms of the cash

(1ii) For investments wn debt instruments, this will depend on thie business model in which the wnvestment is held

{iv) Mindspace Business Parks Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes

(b}
(i)

i}

Subszequent Measuremeat

Debt instruments:

Sihequeni mzassie nent of debs instruments depends on Mindspace Business Parks (iroup's business model far managing the asset amd the vash fow chaacteristics of
the nisei T hizre are thrae measurement categones into which Mindspace Business Parks Group classities its debt instruments:

Fingaeind sysets af amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured ar amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets 1 erder to collect
coniractual cash flows and the contiacival terms of the financial asset give rise on spacified dales to cash Aows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
pring pal amount vitsianding

Frnanuial assets a1 fair value through other comprchensive income (FYTOCH

Fnancial assets are subseguently measured at (ai value through othel comprehensive ncome 11 these nancial assers me held woinn 2 business whese objective 15
achieved by both collect-ng contractual cash flows that give nse on specified dales to solely payments of prineipal and interest on the principal amount outstand mg and by
selliny financial asssts

Financial assets at fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets aie subsequently measured at fair value through the Condensed Consohdaled Statement of Profit and Loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly atiributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are immediately recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statemet of Profit and Loss

Equity instruments:

Mindspace Business Parks Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value There are two measurement categories into which Mindspace Business Parks
Group classifies its equity mstruments:

Investments in cquity instruments at FVTPL:

[nvestments in equity instrunents are classified as at FVTPL, unless Mindspace Business Parks Group irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for equity instruments which are not held for trading

Tnvestments in equity instruments at FVYTOCI:

On initial recognition. Mindspace Business Parks Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instiument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading These elected investments are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
mcome and accumulated in the reserve for 'equity instruments through other comprehensive income’ The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Consolidated
Staiement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments, but is transferred to retained sarnings.




(<}

{d

{a

b

-

-

-—

i<}

d

o

Impairment ¢f financial agsets:

Mindspace Business Parks Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, lease receivables,
trade receivables, other contractual cights to receive cash or other financial asset. Fer trade receivables, Mindspace Business Parks Group measures the loss allowance at
an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, Mindspace Business
Parks Group has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109, This expected credit Joss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into
account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information

Derecognition of financial assets:
A tinancial asset is primarily derecognised when;
(i) the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or
(ii) Mindspace Business Parks Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset; and
Mindspace Business Parks Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. or
Mindspace Business Parks Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assef. but has transferred control of the asset

Cmn derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety (other than investments in equity instruments at RYQCI), the differences between the carmying amounts measured at the
date of derecogmition and the consideration received is recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created
or retained by the SPV is recognised as a separate assel or liability

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instrunients issued by Mindspace Business Parks Group are classified according to the substance of the consractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of Mindspace Business Parks Group atter deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs

Repucchase of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instrument is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised iu the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instruments

Compound financial instroments

The component parts of compound finoncial instruments issued by Mindspace Business Parks Group are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conveision optien that will be settled
by the vxchange of a fixed amoum of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instruments is an equity
nstrument

Al the date of issue. the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is
recorded as 2 habality on an amenised cost basis wsing the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instcument’s maturity date

The convarsion oplion classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability componeni from the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole
This s recogmised and included in equity. net of income 1ax effects. and is not subsequently 1emeasuied

Transaciion costs thal relate to the issuc of the convertible instruments are allocated ta the liability and equity companents th piopoition 1o the atlacation of the aress
proceeds Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recogniscd dicectly in equity Transaction costs relating to the liabilin component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the hves of the convertible instrument using the effective interest method

Financial Liabilities

Recognition, measurement and classification

Financial liabilities are classitied as eiher held at a) fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, or b) at amortised cost. Managenient determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at the time of mitial recognition or, where applicable, at the time of reclasstfication

Mindspace Business Parks Group's financial liabibities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and derivative financial instruments Subsequent
measurement of financial liabilities depends on their clossification as fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss or at amortized cost. All changes in
tair value of financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Proti and Loss  Amortised cosl category is applicable to loans and
borrowings, trade and other payables. Afier initial recognition the financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate method

Drerecognition

A financial ligbility is derecognized when the obligation under the lability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Gains and losses are recognized  the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized

Ofisetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and inancial liabilities are offset and presented on net basis in the Balance Sheet when there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recogmsed
amounts ang there is an infention either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and setthe the liabilities shmultaneously

Embedded derivatives
Derivatives entbedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety swhen determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest

Embedded derivatives closely related 10 the host contracts are nol separated. Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are separated only if the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through
profit or loss
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Casgh and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, demand deposits. other shori-term. highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant cisk of changes in value

Statement of Cash flow
Cash flow is reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any defarrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating. investing and financing activities of Mindspace Business Parks Group are segregated

For the purpose of tiie Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considersd an integral part of Mindspace Business Parks Group’s cash management

As per para § of [nd AS 7 “where bank overdrafis which are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity’s cash management, bank overdrafis are included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdrafi, in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet, is included as ‘borrowings’ under Financial Liabilities

Employee benefits plan

Brisclosure pursuant to Ind AS — 1% *‘Employee benefits’

Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as shori-term employee benefits such as salanes. wages, ete. and are
recognised m the peried in which the employee rendered the related services The undiscounted amount of short-term emplayee benefits expected to be paid in exchangs
for the services rendered by employees is recogmsed as an expense during the period

Long term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when
services are tendered by the employzes Mindspace Business Parks Group's provident fund conmibution, in respect of cettain employees, 15 made to a government
administeced funnd and charged as an expense The above benefits are classified as defined contribution schemes as Mindspace Business Parks Group has no further
defined obligations beyond the menthly contributions

Delined benefit plan

Mindspace Business Parks Group's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. Mindspace Business Parks Group has determined the gratuity liability based on
intemal calculation based on the number of years completed and last drawn basic salary as mentioned in the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 The liability or asset
recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the
faiv vetue of plan asseis, ifany The defined benefit obligation is calculated annualiv by actuaries 7 SPVs using the projecied unit credit method.

The piesent value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimaled future cash outflows by reference to markst yields at
the end of the reporting peried on government bonds thal have ferms approximating te the terms of the related obligation The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount 1ate to the net batance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets This cosl is included in employee benefit expense in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Gther long term employee benefits - Compensated absences

Benetris under compensated absences are accounied as other fonu-ferm emplovee benefits Mindspace Business Pasks Ciroup has determined the liability for compensated
absences based on intemnal caleulation which 1s determined on the basis of leave credited to employee’s account and the last drawn salary Mindspace Business Parks
Group's net obligation in respect of compensated absences is the amount of benefit to be settled in future, that employees have earned in retumn for their service in the
current and previous years. The benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The obligation 1s measured on the basis of an acruarial valuation / by SPVs usiny the
projected unit credit method Remeasurement is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise Compensated absences
which are not expected 10 oceur within twelhve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised a5 a liability

Earmings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation, regnlatory income / expense, exceptional items and tax

Mindspace Business Parks CGroup has elected to present camings before interest, depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income / expense, exceptional items and 1ax a5
a geparate line item on the face of the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Mindspace Business Parks Group measures eamings befors interest,
depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income / expense, exceptional items and tax on the basis of profit/ {loss) from continuing operations
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Subsequent events

The Condensed Consclidated Interim Financial Statements are adjusted to reflect events that occur after the reporting date but before the Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statemesits are issued The Consolidated Financial Statements have their own date of authorisation, whicl differs from that of the financizgl statements of the
entities which are part of Mindspace REIT group. Therefors, when preparing the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, management considers events up
to the date of authorisation of these financial statements

Errors and estimates

Mindspace Business Parks Group revises its accounting policies if the chanye is required due to 3 cliange in Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and
reliable information te the users of the Condensed Consolidated Tnterim financial statement. Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets o liabilities or to profit or loss 1s applied prospectively n the

periodis} of change
Discovery of errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, liabilities and equity of the earliest prior period in which the error is
discovered. The opening balances of the earliest period pr ted are also restated

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classitied as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rathet than through continuing use Such assets
are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs 1o sell Leosses on imtial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses
OR re-measurement are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and investment properties are no longer amaortised or depreciated, and any equity-
accounted mvestee is no longer equity accounted.
Segment Information

Frimary segment information
The primary reportalle segment is business segments

Business segment

The Mindspace Group is orgamised into the two operating divisions - 'real estate’ and “power distribution”, which are determined based on the internal organisation and
management straciure of the Mindspace Group and its system of internal financial reporting and the nature of its risks and its retorns The Board of directors of the
manager has been identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM}. CODM evalnates the Mindspace Group's performance, allocates resources based on analysis
af various performance indicaters of the Group as disclosed below

Real estare segment

Real estate comprises development and management of projects under Special Economic Zone (SEZ). Tnformation Technology Parks and other commercial assets The
Group has us proy-ol properties 0 Mumbal Regon. Hyderabad. I'unc and Chennal Tot development and managenent of commercial SEZ, 1T parks and commercial asscis
including incidental actis ities

Power distributicr.
The state power 1egulator has taken on record the SEZ developer MBPPL, Gigaplex, Sundew and KRC Infra as Decrned Distribution Licensee for Power The appioved

SPVs being Devnied Distributor . supplies power to customers within the notified SEZ

Secondary segmeni intosination
Mindspace Business Parks Group's operations are based in Indva and therefore Mindspace Bustness Parks Group has only ene seographical segment - Tndra

Mon-controlling interests

Mop-contielling mterests represent the share of reserves and capital attnibutable to the sharcholders of the SPVs who have not ayreed to exchanye their shates in the SPVs
for units o Mindspace REIT and will not beconie the unitholders of Mindspace REIT Below is the list of shareholders of the SPVs for whom nen-conmolling nlerest has
been tecognised Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Condensed Balance Sheet

5PV Shareholder % Holding in SPV
— {As on reporting date)
KERIT Telangana State Industrial Infrastruciuie 11 0%
Corporation Limited
Intirae Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure 11.0%
Corporation Limited
Sundew Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure 110%

Corporation Limited

Ind AS 110 requires entities to aftribute the profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income to the owners of Mindspace REIT and to the non-controiling
interests This requirement needs to be followed even if this resulls in the non-contrelling interests having a deficit balance
Cash distribution to unit holders

The Group recognises a liability to make cash distributions 10 Unitholders when the distribution is authorised and a legal obligation has been created. As per the REIT
Regulations. a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Directos of the Manager A correspondmy amount 1s recognised directly in other equity

Distribution Policy
The Net Distributable Cash Flows of Mindspace REIT are based on the cash tlows generated from Mmdspace REIT s assets and investments

In terms of the Distribution Policy and the REIT Regulations, not less than 90% of the NDCF of each of the Asset SPVs is required to be distributed to Mindspace REIT,
i preportion of their sharehoiding in the Asset SPV, subject to applicable previsions of the Companies Act or the LLP Act Presenily, NDCF 1o be received by Mindspacg
REIT from the Asset SPVs may be in the forn of dividends, interest income, principal loan repayment, proceeds of any capital rednction or buyback from the Asset SPVs,
sale proceeds out of disposal of investments if any or assets directly held by Mindspace REIT or as specifically penninied under the Trust Deed or in such other form as
may be permissible under the applicable law

The Manager is required to and shall declare and distribute at least 90% of the NDCF of Mindspace REIT as distributions ("REJT Distributions™) to the Unitholders Such
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Recent Pronouncements
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendmtent Rules 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to amend the following [nd AS
which are effective from April 01, 2023:

Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together
with other informatien, 1s material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. This amendment
does not have any significant impact in the financial statements

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The amendinents clarify how compantes account for deferred fax on transactions such as leases and deconmmissioning obligations The amendments narrowed the scope of
the recognition exemption in paiagraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. This amendment does not have any significant impact in the financial statements

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendmenis will help entities to distinguish between accounting pohicies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been
replaced with a detmition of accounting estimates Under the new definition. accounting estimates are “meonetary amounts wn financial statements that are subject to
measutement uncertainty™ Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in finaucial stat ts to be d in a way that involves
measurement uncertainty This amendment does not have any significant impact in the fuiancial statements

There were certain amendments to standards and interpretations which are applicable for the first time for the period ended 31 December 2023, but either the sanie are not
relevant or do not have an impact on the consolidated [nterim flnancial statenients of the Group
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-204003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

Notes to Accounts

{All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

4 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Reconciliation of carrying amounts for the nine months ended 31 December 2023

Power assets Other assets
. . Right of use . . .
. Right of use - s Plant and Electrical Plant and  Electrical Office Furniture Taotal
I .
Farticulars Leasehold Land Buildings machinery  Installation m‘;':;;::: machinery Installation equipment Computers and fixtures
Gross block (cost or deemed cost) T o -
At 1 April 2022 1 434 899 195 147 10 5 21 4 1.716
Additions during the period - - 3 @ 12 - 1 4 & 26
Disposalsfadjustments (net)* - {109) (59) : - [ - - {0 - {168)
At 31 March 2023 1 325 843 195 160 10 & 24 10 1,574
At 1 April 2023 1 315 343 195 160 10 & 24 10 1,574
Additions during the period - - 7 | 2 - 0 13 | 23
Disposals/adiustments (net) - - - - o [\ - - 4} = (1}
At 31 December 2023 1 J25 850 1% 162 10 6 36 10 1,526
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2022 8 132 11 13 1 4 & 2 173
Charge for the year 7 76 13 14 4 1 8 I 124
Disposals/adjustments {net} (8) 16) . 0 - - = - (24)
At 31 March 2023 - 7 192 24 27 5 5 14 3 278
At T April 2023 = ¥ 192 24 27 5 5 14 3 278
Charge for the pariod 4 55 10 16 2 0 o 0 96
Disposals/adi ts (net) - - - - (] 5 - (1} » n
At 31 December 2023 11 247 34 43 7 5 22 3 373
Carrying amount (net}
At31 March 2023 ) 1 318 651 171 _ (33 5 ! 10 7 1.296
At 31 December 2023 1 314 603 162 - 19 3 1 14 7 1,223

*Note 4{a): Disposal/adjustments includes disposal, if any, and reclassification of assets frein Power assets ( PPE) to [nvestment property.




§

Investment property*

Reconciliation of amounts for the nine months ended 31 December 2023

Land (Under Right of nse-

Particulars Develop Freehold Land  Leasehold
Giross (cost or deemed cost)

As at | April 2023 2,758 67,666 27,128
Additions during the peiiod 657 831

ustments
At 31 March 2023 2, 68,323 27959
As at 1 April 2023 2,758 68,323 27,959
Add_m_o_ns d:ilng the period (Including asset 246 556
acquisition)
ustments

At 31 December 2023 71,883 27,959
Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 April 2022 428
Clarge fou the year 308
At 31 March 2023 1,336
As at 1 April 2023 1,336
Charge for the petiod 384
Di

At 31 December 2023 1,720
At 31 March 2023 2,758 68,323 26,623
At 31 December 2023 71,883 26,239

*Nate S(a);

Buildings

92,894
7941
11402
993,433
99,433
203

[51.563

T84
1,673
(1)
4,247
4,247
1364

5011

95 186
95,952

Infrasiructure and

. Roadwork
derveicpment
4,457 72
1477
3930 72
5930 T2
7
5,937 72
e 4
46 4
932 8
932 8
360 k3
1.292 1l
4098 64
4,645 61

Plaat and
machinery

5,648
1,359

6,934
6,934

262

15
7.181

999
622

1,578
1.578
405
(N
2,072

5,356
5109

Furniture
and
fixtures

16
16

(3)
119
19

41

160

28
19

47
17
17

64

72
36

Electrical
installation

1,697
584
2]
2,302
2,302

185

2,487

262
193
78

538
538
169

707

1.764
1,780

Total

202,428
12.865
(1461

213,332

213,832

3427

217,244

5.233
3,430

23
8,688
3,688
2,792

11,479

205,144
205,763

(i) In MBPPL - The leasehold land (admeasuring 198,997 sq mtrs in Airoli, Navi Mumbai} has been acquired on lease by the Company from Mahaiashhia Indusirial Development Coiporation (MIDC') The lease is
due 10 expire on 31 July 2064 The SPV has right to renewal of said Jease for a further year of 99 years upon payment of premium as inay be decided
(i) In Gigaplex - The lease hold land is a part of land (admeasuring 202,300 sq mirs in Airoli, Navi Mumbaiy which has been acquired on lease from Maharashtra Industrial Development Corporation (‘MIDC') The
lease is due to expire on 31 May 2102 The SPV has right of renewal of said lease for a period of 95 years upon povinent of premium as may be decided

**Note 5(b): During the quarter ended June 2023, Horizonview {SPV} has handed over 22% of the propormosate share of the vonstructed area, belonging to the landowner as per the Development Agreement. upon
completion of work for such area by SPY Against payment of such consideration in the form of the suid area handed over, cotresponding execution of Conveyance Deed, as agreed, of the proportionate share of the
SPV in the land, has been done during the quarter ended September 2023 Further, the Company has acquired 22%% of the propertionate share of the constructed area along with the Land attributable to land owner for a
consideration of Rs 1,659 million. The consideration has been allocated to individually identifiable assels acquited on the basis of their relative fair values as determined by an independent valver at the date of
purchase Accordingly, the land is recorded ar Rs 419 million, building is recorded at Rs 1,081 miflion, plant and machinery 1 recorded at Rs 94 million and electrical installations is recordad at Rs 65 million

***Note 5(c}: Disposal/adjustments includes impairment of Invesiment property and reclassification of assets Iiom Power assets (PP ) 1o Investment property

(7} Impairment of investment property is related to
- An impairment loss of Rs 58 million related 1o Mindspace Pochatam building, Hyderabad uansfencd from Invesiment Property undel construction to Investment Property, forming part of Group's “Real estate”™

sepment
- Refer note 51B
i1} Reter note 514



6 Investment property under construction {TPUC)
The breakup of investment propetty under construction comprises upcoming/existing buildings in vanous paks The SPV wise detatls are as follows:

Particulars As at Asat
31 Dy ber 2023 31 March 2023
Intime 222 112
MBPPL* 1,709 1,129
Gigaplex # 1,568 948
Sondew 270 188
KRIT 1,525 728
KEC Infra** 7,289 4,522
Avacado 203 93
Horizonview - B 50 147
|_Total ) 12836 78067

* Refer Note S{a} and Sic)

** Note 6(a): The cosl of construction and ether related expenses incurted on building no. G1. which is being constructed for Geia Developments Private Limited was classified under 1PUC pending the finahzation
of the agreement with Gera Developments Private Limited. During the previous year, the agreement was exccuted  Under the circumstances. in pursuance of such agreement . an amount of Rs 1,682 million which
represented the cost imcurred vpto the date of the agreement was shified from IPUC to Cost of Works Contract

# Net of cost related to Power ond Power infiastruciure and design changes to mvestment property reimbursed by tenants

7 Other Intangible assets
Reconciliation of carrying amounts for the nine months ended 31 December 2023

Particulars Trademarks
Gross block -

As at | April 2022 1
Additions =
Dispasals -
At 31 March 2023 |
As at 1 April 2023 1
Additions *
Disposals . ) -
At 31 December 2023 1

Accumulated amortisation

As at 1 April 2022 4
Charge for the year o
Disposals -
At 31 March 2023 -
As at 1 April 2023 i]
Charge for the period 0
| Disposals B
At 31 December 2023 1] =
Carrying amount (net) o by -':3.:,}0;;\;',\_
At 31 March 2023 . ] 1 /R o ’\\ o\
At 31 December 2023 - 1 ay, \® \
Mote: Includes trademark and computer softwares (less than Rs 0.5 million) @ \ - ’6_9— |
'~ )]
\ po Py




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

{All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

8  Non Current Investment

Particulars

As at
31 December 2923

As at
31 March 2023

Financial assets

Investments in equity instruments

Unquoted equity shares measured at FYTOCI

2,000 equity shares of Stargaze Properties Private Limited, face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
(31 March 2023 : 2,000)

Unquoted investment in Government Securities at amortised cost

7.61% Central Government Loan {Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2023: 25,000}
§.24% GOI 2027 Bond {Face value Rs 100}, 25,000 units (31 March 2023: 25,000

7.17% Central Government Loan {Face value Rs 100). 25,000 units {31 March 2023; 25.000)
7.26% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100}, 22,000 units (31 March 2023 22,000}
7.06% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 22,000 units (31 March 2023: 22,000)
6.67% GOI 2050 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 8,000 units (31 March 2023: 8,000)

7.72% GO 2055 Bond {Face value Rs 100}, 10,000 units (31 March 2023: 10,000)

6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face value Rs 100}, 11,300 units , (31 March 2023: 11.300)

7.26% GOI 2029 Bond {Face value Rs 100), 18,000 units (31 March 2023; 18,000}

7.40% GOI 20535 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 28.700 units (31 March 2023: 28,700}

§.33% GOIT 2036 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 21,210 units {31 March 2023: 21,210

7 06% GOI 2046 Bond (Face value Rs 100}, 12,000 units (31 March 2023: 12,000)

8.33% GOl 2036 Bond (Face value Rs H)0. 1,790 units {31 March 2023: 1,790}

0.99% GO! 2051 Bond {Face Value Rs 100), 28,000 units {31 March 2023: 28,000)

6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face Value Rs 100} 17.700 units (31 March 2023: 17.700)

7.36% GS 2052; Bond (Face Value Rs 190), 1,200 units {31 March 2023; NiD)

6.99% G5 2051; Bond {Face Value Rs 100), 10,400 units (31 March 2023: Nil)

6.99% GS 2051; Bond (Face Value Rs 100}, 1,037 units (31 March 2023; Nil}

6.99% GOI 2051; Bond (Fave Value Rs 100), 24700 units {21 March 2023: Nil)

6.99% GOI 2051, Bond (Face Value Rs 100}, 14,900 units (31 March 2023: Nil)
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Inve¢stments measured at cost {gross)

Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss

Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investments measured at amortised cost

Aggregate amount of impairment recognised

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

9 Other financial assets (Non current)

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good

Fixed deposits with banks*

Unbilled revenue

Interest receivable

Finance lease receivable

Security deposits for development rights
Security deposits

Other receivables

As at
31 December 2023

67
950

1,414
549

10
3,020

As at
31 March 2023

29
1.058
23
344
G0
497
15
2.526

* Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 67 million {31 March 2023 — 29 million) are held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs and earmarked

for Debenture Redemption Reserve.

10 Deferred tax assets
Particulars

Deferred tax assets
11 Non-current Tax assets (net)
Particulars

Advance Tax (net of provision for tax}

12 Other non-current assets
Particulars

Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances
Balaaces with government authorities

13 Inventories {valeed at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Particulars

Building materials and components

Inventory of Equipment

14 Trade receivables
Particulars

Unsecured
Considered good
Credit impaired
Less: loss allowance

tta

ns

§)

As at
31 December 2023
352
352
As at
31 December 2023
949
93y
As al

31 Decentber 2023

854
107
59
1,020

As at
31 December 2023

50
2
52

As at
31 December 2023

635

43
(“3)
635

at
31 March 2023

473

As al
31 March 2023
928

928

As ai
31 March 2023

293
237
30

As at
31 March 2023
40
32
72
As at
31 March 2023
572
82
(82)
572
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Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars Asat As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Cash on hand 3 3
Balances with banks
- in current accounts® 3,178 3.176
- in escrow accounts 60 3
- in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than
three months 115 880
3,356 4.002
*Includes balance with bank of Rs 0 million as on 31 December 2023 (31 March 2023: Rs 0 million) for unpaid distributions.
Other bank balances
Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Fixed deposits wiih original mataei ty tor mote than 3 months and less than
twelve months?* 2,586 78
Balance with banks** 218 128
2,804 206

** Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 436 million {31 March 2023 — 78 million) are held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs and earmarked
for Debenture Redemption Reserve.

** These are amounts. deposited in separate escrow accounts. earmarked for on-going Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) projects.

Other ﬁnancia_l assits {Current)

Particulars T - h As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023

Unsevured, considered good
interost receivable

-~ un fixed deposits 126
-~ o othess 10 11
lnterest accrued but not due
~ e fixed Jenosits i i
= Irom olhers p >
Security deposits 162 170
Fixed deposits with banks* 1.514 322
Unbilled revenue 1,540 1613
Less: loss allowance for Unbilled revenue (] -
Finance lease receivable 49 309
Other receivables**
- Considered good 209 102
- Credit impaired 1 i
Less: loss allowance (1) (1)
3,925 2,535

* Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 416 million (31 March 2023 — 322 million) are held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs and
earmarked for Debenture Redemption Reserve.

** Refer Note 48 for related party disclosure

Other current assets

Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Deposit / advance for supply of goods and rendering of services 228 330
Loan to staff 2 0
Balances with government authorities 195 149
Prepaid expenses 263 107
Other receivables 1 -

B 687 586




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RMN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Motes to Acconnts

{All amwounts in Rs. million unless stherwise stated)

18 Corpus
Corpus
Agarl April 2022 0
Changes during the year &
Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 &
As at 1 April 2023 0
Changes during the period 2
Closing balance us at 31 December 2023 0
19 Unit Capital
A. Unit Capital - No. Amount
Asat 1 April 2022 593,018,182 162,839
Changes during the vear - -
Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 593,018,152 162,839
As at 1 April 2023 593,014,182 162,850
Cl during the pericd - -
Closing balance as at 31 December 2023 - 5938182 162,839

{a} Terms/rights attached to Units and other disclosures
The Trust has only one class of Units Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holder of Units is entitled to one vote par unit The
Unitholders have the right 1o receive a1 least 90% of the Net Distnbutable Cash Flows of the Trust on quarterly basis in accordance with REIT Repulations/ in terms of
the Distribution Policy The Board of directors of Investment hManager approves dismmbotions. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Units held by the
Unithelders The Trust declares and pays distributions in Indian Rupees
Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, Mindspace Busmess Parks REIT is vequited to distribute to Unitholders not less than $0% of the net distribulable cash
flows of Mindspace Business Parks REIT for each financial ysar, Accordingly, a pertion of the Unit Capital contains a contractual obligation of the Mindspace Busmess
Parks REIT to pay to its Unithelders cash distributions Hence, the Unit Capital 1s a compound financial instroment which contains equity and liability components m
accordance wiii Ind AS 32 - Financial Tnstiuments: Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Circolar Mo, SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/1 16 dated 6 July
2023 tssued urder the REIT Regalations the Unithaldes® funds have been presented as “Equity™ in order to comply with the requirements of Section H of Chapter 3 to
the SEBI masian circolar dated 6 July 2023 dealing witl: lhe mimimum presentation and disclosure requirements for key financial statenients. Consistent with Unit
Caprtol being <'assified as equity, the distnbutions to Unitholders is alse presented in Stat of (1 in Unitholders' Equity when the distriburions are approved
v e Board of Lhrectors of Investment Manager

b Unithoiders holding more than 5 percent Units in the Tvust

| Nanic of the unithold = ) Asat 31 December 2023 | Ag al 31 Maich 2023 |
| e — —_— o Ne of Linits “%helding | WMo of Unus % holdinge

i Mmnsnation A 2018 Tous: 54,373,000 N i | SATI 000 Pi7%
| Andsey Corisite iwons L1 ' 33,404,890 397% | 35,404,890 597 .
|Cape Tradmg [ LF 35438495 S95% | 35,404 X900 397
Chandiu Lachnandas Raliea 32634433 550 32034433 3 a0%
|Capstan Trading LLP 41,095,719 6.93% | 41,095,719 6 93%
I'Casa ddaria Properties LLP 46,820,719 7.90% [ 46,820,719 7.90%
| Palru Sheler Estate Developiment LLP 41,095,719 6.93% | 41,093.71% 6.93%
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 42,004,546 7.08% | 41,937,069 T07%
K Raheja Corp Private Limited 36,596,296 6. 17% 36,596,296 6 17%

{€) The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus wnits nor has it bought back any ¢lass of unils from the date of rewstration bl the balance sheet date
Furthey, the Tiust had issued an aggiegate of 36.363.600 Units for cash at Rs 275 per unir and 556,654,582 Units at a price of Rs, 275 per unit for consideration other
than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date

% Other Equity*

Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023

Reserves and Siplus

Retained earnings (19,886) {15,546}

Debenture tedemprion (eseve 404 334
- (19486 (15011

*Refer Condensed Censolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's equity for detailed movement in other equity balances

Retained eamnings :
The cwnulative gain or loss atising from the operations which is retamed and is recognized and 2ccomulated under the heading of retamed earnings At the end of the
period. the profitloss after tax is iansfened fiom the statemenr of profit and loss to the 1etained eamiings account

Debenture redemption reserve

As per the Companies (Shate Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (amended), SPVs are required to create Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR) out of profits, which
is available for payment of dividend. equal to 10% of the amount of debentures issued Accordingly, the SPVs have created DRR out of their profits in terms of the

[an ]

Companies {Share Capital and Debenture)Rules. 2014 {as amended) which would be utilized for redemption of debentares al the time of its matwiity
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Borrowings (Non-current)

Particulars As at Az at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023

Secured
Terms loans
- from banks 213,096 15,276
- from other parties 5,134 1,578
Flexi termn loan 367 330
Debentures
10 year G-Sec linked sscured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumuolative, rated, - 3,741

principal protected — market Jinked, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
(“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Senes 27) (net of issue expenses. at
amortised cost) {refer Nole 21 Afii))

Secured, hsted, senior. taxable, non-cumulative. rated. redesmable non- - 150
convertible debentwres (NCD Series 2) (net of issue expenses, at amortised
cost) (refer Note 21 Afui))

Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cumulalive, - 3,986
Taxable, Transferable, Redeemable Won-Comvertisble Debentures (Sundew

MCD 1) {1efer Mote 21 Aiv))

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumuolative, rated, redeemable aon- ~ 4,91
convertible debentures (HCD Senies 3} (net of issue expenses, at amortised

cost) [refer MNote 21 A{v))

Semior, listed, rared, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, ransferable, 4,974 4,969
redesimable. non-convertible debenuues (“NCD Series 47 (Refer note 21

AfvAin

Secured, listed, rated, secursd, non-cumulative, taxable, mansferable, 5,468 5461

redeemable non-convertible debentures (“Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1) {net
of issue expenses, ar amortised cost) {tefar Note 21 A(wiid

Secured. hsted, rated, non-comulative, taxable, transferable, tedeemable non- 4,975 -
convertible debentures {NCD Series 6) (net of issne expenses. at amorlised
coat) {refer Note 21 ADx)

Secured, listed, 1ated, non-cumiulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non- 4,957 -
comerlibls debentiues (NCD Series 7) {net of issue expenses. al amortised
cost) {refer Note 21 Afx))

Bonds - Semior. Listed. Rated. 3Secured. Non-Cummulative, Taxable, - 4,730
Transferable. Eedeemable MNon-Convertible Bonds {MBPPL NCE 1) (Rafy
note 21 A{vi))

- - 47001 43,242

Mindspace REIT

In December 2020, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 2 000 secured, listed, senior, raxable, non-cumnlative, rated, redeemable, nen-convertible debentures (“NCD
Series 17 having face value of Rs, 10.00.000 (Rupees ten lakhs only} each, amounting to Rs. 2,000,000,000 (Rupees two thousand million only) with a coupon 1ate of
6.45% pa payable quarterly begmming from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotntent e 3] March 2021, with last coupon payment on the schedoled
redemption date i ¢ 16 December 2023 The tenure of the said NCD Sedies 1 is 36 months from 17 December 2020, Leing date of allotment

This MCD» Series T was listed on BSE Limited on 21 December 2020

Security terms

NCD Series 1 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Helders);

a) First and exclusive charge registered by wav of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefiom} on the ageregate leasable arca of approximately 414599 Sq
Ft or thereabouts in buildings no | and 5 of Commerzone Yerawada (approx. 43,200 sq. £t in building ne. 1 and approx, 371,399 in building no. 5) together with the
proportionate undivided right. 1itle and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 18.264 sq. mtrs on which the said two building no 1 and
5. out of all those pieces and paicels of larger land that aie situated, lving and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune (“Mortgaged Propeities™) of

NED Series

b} A charge on the escrow account in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received save and except any common area maintenance charges payable to
MBBPL with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properies

¢} Corporate guarantee execoted by MBPPL

Redemption termis:
a} NCD Series 1 were redeemed by way of bullet repayment at the end of 36 months fromn the date of allotment, i ¢ 16 December 2023 and accordingly the same was

classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 31 Margh 2023

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a vear {starting from 31 March, 2021) ontil the scheduled redemption date

¢} The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency [n case raling is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Caupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade

d} Upon occunience of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 {thirty) business days’ notice to the [ssuer require the
Issuer 1o redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total datory redempti in vespect of each debenne
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In Mareh 2021, Mindspace REIT issued 3,750 10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cvmulative, rated, principal protected — marker linked,
redeemnable, non-convertible debentures {“Market Linked Debenmres / MLD Series 2") having face value of Rs 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to
Rs. 3,750,000,000 (Rupees three thousand seven hundred fifiy million only), The tenure of the said MLD Series 2 is 38 months fiom 18 March 2021, being date of
allotment of the MLD Series 2 and coupon, if any shall be payable on the Schedulsd Redemption Date ie on makurity on 17 May 2024 The coupon payoff structure is
linked to condition where the payoff will be fixed on the final fixing date ie. 16 Apil 2024. If identified 10 year G-Sec's last traded price as on final fixing date is
greater than 25% of its last traded price as on initial fixing date i.e. 18 March 2021, the coupon rate will be 6 65% pa [f identified 10 year G-Sec's last traded price as
on final fixing date is less than or equal to 25% of its Tast raded price as on initial fixing date, the coupon rate will be zero percent. As per the valuers teport in respect
of valuation of these MLD Semies 2. the probability of occurrence of such an event (last fraded price of identified 10 year G-Sec on final fixing date being less than or
equal to 25% of its Jast traded price on initial fixing dale) is remote and hence the value of the option considered as zero

This MLD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021

Security terms

MLD Series 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Delrenture Trustee holding for the benefit of the Debenture Holders):

8} Frrst and exclusive chorge being created by way of equitable mortgage on the aguregate leasable area of approximately 13,71,442 Sq Ft. or thereabous in buildings
no 12A and Units of Building 12B of Madhapur, Hyderabad {approx. 12,69,140 3q. ft. in building no.1 24 and approx. 1,02,302 5q. & in building no. 12B) 1ogether with
the propertionate undivided right, title and interest in the nohonally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 29,842 $q. mirs on which the ssid two building no. 124
and 12B. out of all those pieces and parcels of Jarger land that are situated, lying and being in Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District,
Hyderabad (“Mortgaged Properties™), for MLD Series 2

bl Frrst ranking exclusive charge created by way of a hypothecation over the Hypothecated Propetties of MLD Series 2

¢} A charge on the esciow account created. in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties of Sundew shall be received. save and except any common atea
maintenaice charges pavable to Sundew with respect to the mainlenance of the mortgaved properties
d) Corporate guarantee executed by Sundew

Bedemption terms;

a) MLD Series 2 are redeemable by way of bullet payment at the end of 32 months fiom the date of allotment, ie 17 May 2024 accordingly the same has been
classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 31 December 2023

b} The Coupon shal! be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency In case rating is upsraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade. The Investors shall have the right to accelerate the MLD Series 2 if the rating is downgraded to A+

<) Upon occurmence of a mandatory redemption event. the Debenture Trustee may. by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days notwee lo the Issuer require the Issuer
1o sedeemn in full, all the Debentures then ourstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redempiion amount in (espect of each Debenture

In March 2021, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 750 secured. listed, senior. taxable. non ive, vated, red ble. non-convertible debenturss (“NCD
Sevies 27} having face value of Rs 10.00.000 {Rupees 1en Lakhs only) each. amounting to Rs. 750,000,001 (Rupees seven hundred fifty million enly) with a coupon rate
of 6.6861% p a payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotment i & 30 June 202 1. with last coupon payment on the scheduled
redempticn date i 2 17 May 2024 The tenors of the said NCD Series 2 is 38 months fiom 18 March 2021, bemyg date of allotment

NCD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021

Secuwity levms

NCD Senes 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holdeisy:

a) First and exclusive charge being registered hy way of simple mortgage tincluding receivables aiising therefiom) on the aggrerate leasable area of approximately
131,460 5q. Ft. of thereabouts in building no. 4 of Cemmerzone Yerawada together with the proportionate undivided night, title and interest in the notionally demaicated
land ad ing approximately 2,561 sq. mits on which the said building, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated. lying and bemyg in Village
‘Werawada, Taluka Havel, Distnct Fune (- "Mortgaged Properties™) of NCD Series 2

by Achaigre on thie zsciow account 1w be created. v which recen abies of the Mortgaged Propentivs shall be 1ecencd. save aud excepl 4y ConmmL aled haimtenanee
chaiges payabile o MBPPL wiill wespevi o ilve nunuienance of e morigaged propentes

¢ Corpocate suarantze executed by MBPPL

Redemption terms:

ay NCD Series 2 are redeemable by way of bullet repasment at the end of 38 months fiem the date of allotment ie 17 May 2024 accordmgly the same has been
classified as current matiwities of long term borrowings as on 31 December 2023

by Inlerest is payable on the Tast day of each financial quartet in a vear (stacting from 30 June, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date

¢} The Caupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency In case rating s upgraded after any rating downurade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrads

d) Upon occutience of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not iess than 30 {thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer requite Ihe
Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paving an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of ¢ach debenture

In September 2023, Sundew Properties Livited issued 4,000 Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cumalative Taxable, Transferable, Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures of (“Sundew NCD 1) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ren lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 4,000,000,000 {Rupees four thouzand million only}
with a coupon rate of 6. 1% p a payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotneat {date of allotment being 2§ Septenber 2021 and
end of ficst full quarter being 31 December 2021), with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i e 28 June 2024 The tenure of the said NCD is from
deemed date of allotment i ¢ 28 September 2021, till scheduled redemption date 1. 2§ June 2024

This NCD was listed on BSE Limited on 1 Qctober 2021

Security terms:

NCD 1 are secured by each of the following secutity in favomr of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benetit of the NCD» Holders) {as further detailed in secuiin
documents):

I First ranking exclusive securiry interest by way of an equilable mortgage over identified immovable properties (as identified belawy; First ranking sole and exchusive
security interest by way of hypothecation over

() the comem & funue movable assets cwned by the Sundew and receivables pertaining ko 1dentified immovable properties Building 20 with 709,163 square feet carpet
atea (save and excepl 11,974 square feet carpet area of cafeteria and 1,520 square feet carpel mea of SEZ office), Building 12B {umit no 1301 (22,069 square feet carpet
area), unit no 1302 {16,296 square feet carpet area), unit no 1401 (37.050 square feel carpet area) Part Project Mindspace Madhapur, Hyderabad Buildings

(1) the escrow aceount and the subscription account and all amaunts standing (o the credit of, or acerued or aceruing on esciew account and the subscription account

3 NCD are backed by yruarantee provided by Mindspace REIT
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Redemption terms:;

2} NCD | are redesmable by way of bullet payment on 28 June 2024

bj Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starfing from 31 December, 202{} ontil the scheduled redemption date

) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case raling is upgraded after any rating downgrads,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 23 bps for each upgrade

d) Upon ocemrence of a mandatory redemplion event. the Sundew shall issue mandatory redemption notice within 2 business days and na later than than 30 (thiry}
Business Days from issuance of mandatory redemption notice {unless instructed otherwise by debenture trustee), redeem mn full (or as the case may be._ in part} all the
Debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the mandatory redemption amount in respect of each Debenture

In February 2022. Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 5.000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non-comulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable. non-convertible
debentures ("NCD Series 37) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 {Rupees ten lakhs only} each. amounting to Rs 5.000.000.000 {(Rupees five thousand million only)
with a eonpon rate of 6 35% p a. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and compuied from day to day ,be prorated on an
actual/ acrual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Peried and be payable in amrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date io the Debenture Holder whose
name s appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date The Issuer hereby aknowledges and agiees that there shall be no moraterium period for
the pavment of Coupan. The first Conpon payment Date is 31 March 2022, with last coupon pavment on lhe scheduled redemplion date {2, 31 December 2024 The
tenure of the said NCD Series 3 is 35 maonths from 1 February 2022, being date of allotment

This NCD Series 3 was histed on BSE Limited on February 04, 2022

Secarity ferms

NCD Series 3 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustes (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) Furst and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple morigage on the carpel area of appiovimalely 5.52.974 Sq Ft({save and except entire 2nd floor
admeasuting 11.883 Sq Ft carpet area in building no. 2) (the building no 2 ) situated on the Mortgage land along with proportionate covered and open parking spaces,
in Building 2 together with all the beneficial vights, title and intevest of the Awoli West in appurienant to Building 2 and all esections The Building 2 1s situated on a
poition of the Motgage Land admeasuring 8.04 Hectares. which portion is nontied as a Special Economie Zone & first and exclusive charge being repstered by way of
simple mortgage on the identified units with aggregaling to caipet avea of approximately 4.61.527 Sq. Fu (identified units of building no 3 1 situated on the Mortgage
tand along with proportionate covered and open parking spaces, in Building 3 together with all the beneficial rights, title and interest of the Assets SPV in appurtenant to
Building 3 and all ereclions (“Mortgaged Properties™ of NCD Senes 3 as further detatled in transaction documents

A first ranking pari passu charge by way of a simple mortgage over The Mortgaged Land as further detailed in rransaction documents

b} A charge on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area maintenance
charges payable to GIGAPLEX with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properues,

¢} Corporate phvnantee executed by Gigaplex

Redemption verims:

2} NCD> Series 3 are redeemable by way of bullet repay ment ai the end of 33 nionths from 1he date of allotment. i @ 3} December 2024 and accordingly the same has
been clasufied as cntent matuniies of long term borowmgs as on 31 December 2023

[} Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quartet in a vear (starting from 31 March. 2022) until 1he scheduled redemphon date

<1 The Coapon shall be ncreased by 25 bps For every notch downgiade in the 1ating by the Credit Raling Agency In case rabmg 15 upmaded after any 1ating downgrade.
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade

di Upon ovcumence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trusies may, by issuing not less than 30 (thitty} business days™ notice 10 Ihe Issuer require the
Tssuer ey redeers o {ull. all the debentures then owstanding by paving an amount equal 1o the total mandarory redemprion amount m espect of each debenture

B e 2022 Vindspace Busiitoss Parks Pisaic Litried waied 4999 scinon, tedeemable, lisied, 1aed, secied. nasfeadls, opes denomimated, non-converiible bongds
{ Non Convertable Bonds ) having face value of Rs 10 00.000 {Rupees len lakhs only) each. amounung to Rs 4.900.000.000 (Rupees four thousand e hundred
il only) with & coupon rate linked 10 3 mouth Goveroment of India T-Bill plus spread of 203 bps pavable quartery. with last coupon pavment on the schaduled
redemption date 1.2 22 June 2027 The tenure of the saxd non convertible bond is 60 months from deemed date of allotment i e 22 June 2022, till scheduled redemption
date 1 e 22, June 2027

This NCB Sertes | was listed on BSE Limited on June 24, 2022 Dunng the period, principal and interest is paid on 30 June 2023

Security Terms:

The Non Convertible Bonds are secured by

{i} a fivst ranking paii passu Securrty by way of a simple mortgage over lhe specified land (larger land adineaswing 2,02, 740 square meters situated at Kalwa Industrial
Area sub district Thane ) and

(i) a first ranking exclusive Security over the identified buildings having apgregate carper area of approximately 10,40,548 98 sq fr. {approx. 2,67,560.75 sq. &t in
Building No 10, approx 2,35,961 50 sq ft_in Building no 11 {part},approx 274,439 7| sq & in Building No 12, approx 2,62,57702 sq &t in Building No 14),
receivables and Account Assets, as specifically defined in the bond trust deed dated June 02, 2022 and a3 further amended from time to time (Bond Tryst Deed™)

(it} Corporate guaiantee by the REIT puisuant to the terms of the Bond Trust Deed

Final Redemption Date is the date falling 60 months trom the Deemed Date of Allonnent (Principal repayment: 1% on 31 Mar 23, 2% on 31 Mar 24, 3% on 31 Mar 25,

4% on 31 Mai 26, 5% on 31 Mar 27 and Balance on Final Redemption Date) The said non convertible bonds are voluntaiily redeemable by the company upon the
expity of the lock-in prescuibed under the Applicable Laws as speofically defined in the Bond Trust Deed Mon converttble bond holders have a put option at the end of
34 months fiom Deemed Date of Allatment as spectfied in the Bond Tuust Deed

On and from the occunence of a Rating Downyrade Event/ Rating upgrade Event. the Spread shall stand mereased/ decreased by 0 25% per annum over and above the
immnediately preceding Coupon as on the date of the occunence of such Ralng Downgiade/ Upmnade Event
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In July 2022, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 5,000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non lative, taxable, ferrable, ted ble, non-convertible debentures
of face value of [INR 1,000,000 (Indian Rupees One Million} per Debentute for aggiegate principal amount of upto TNR 5,000,000,000/= {Rupees Five Thousand Million
Only) with a coupon rate of 7.95% pa Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day, be prerared on
an actual! actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in amrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder
whose name is appeating on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The fivst Coupon payment Date is 30 Sept 2022, with Jast coupon payinent on the
stheduled redemption date ie. 27 July 2027, The tenure of the said NCD Series 4 is 60 months

This NCD Series 4 was listed on BSE Limited on July 29, 2022
Security terms
NCD Seties 4 are sscured by each of the following s=curity in favour of the Debenture Trustze (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a} Firgt ranking scle and exclusive security inlerest by way of an equitable mortgage on carpet area of appioximately 779,466 sq ftin building 12 D (identified units of
buitding} of Madhapur, Hyderabad along with the common areas, usage and access rights appurtenant 1o the unils mortzaged in Building 12D as mentioned in the trust
deet, situated on a nohonally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 17414 77 square metres (equivalent to 4 30 acres), forming part of a portion of land
admeasuring (4 02 hectares equivalent to 34 84 acres of thereabout declared as “Special Economic Zone' Tand from and out of the larger piece of land bearing Survey
no. 64(part), Tying, being and situated at Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy Dishict, Hyderabad

b} A chaige on the escrow account 1o be created, in which recetvables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any commaon area maintenance
charses payable to Sundew with respect o the maintenance of the mortzaged properties

¢ Corporate guarantee executed by Sundew Properties Limired

Redemprion izems:

a) NCD Series 4 ate redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 60 monihs from the date of allotment. i e 27 July, 2027

b} [nterest 1s payable ou the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 September 2022) until the scheduled redemption date

¢} The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the cating by the Credit Rating Agency In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgiade,
the Coupen shall be decreased by 23 bps for each npgrade

d) Upem ocewrrence of a mandatory redemption event. the Debenture Trustee may. by issuing not less than 30 (ihirty) busmess days® notice to the Jssuer Lequire the
Tssuer to vedeem 1 foll. all the debentures then « ding by paying an amount equal 10 Lhe total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture

On 15 March 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 55,000 (fiftv five thousand) Green Debt Securities in the fonn of listed. 1ated. secored, non-cumulative,
taxable. transferable. redesmable non-convertible debentures {*Mindspace REIT Gieen Bond 17) having nominal value of Rs. 1.00.000 {Rupees One lakh only} each,
amountig to Rs 5,500,000.000 {Rupees Five thousand five hundred million enly) with a coupon rate of § 02% p a payable quarterly beginning from the end of first
quaiter from the date of allotment { ¢ 15 March 2023, wiih fast coupon payment on the schieduled redemption date ie 13 April 2026 The tenure of the said Mindspace
REIT Green Bond 1 is 3 vear and 30 days from 15 March 2023, being date of allotment The date of payment of first coupon is 31 March 23

Mindspace REIT Green Bond | was listed on BSE Limited on 16 March 2023

Brcuiiie lerim

Mindspace REIT Green Bond | are secured by each of the following secwity in favour of the Debentwie Trustes (holding for the beuztit of the NCD Holders) as more
particularhy described in the t lion di (s, ized as follows

) First and exclusive charge tegistered by way of equitable moitpage (ineluding 1ecsivablss ansmyg thevefrom} ou the agpregate leasable area of apptoximately 1 067
mullion siware feet o thereabouts m bwldings no. 3B and ¢ of Mimdspace Madhapur, Hyderabad {approx 245977 sg fi m buildug no 5B and appiox 821717
burici + 4 ogether wilh the proporgonate mklraded oaht de and mierest in 0 the notonal by demarcated land admeasming anptoximately 7169 00 square meties
fegquivalont to 1 7717 2cest an whch Boilding 5B s sinared and tad the notionatly demareared Jand sdmeazining appwosimately 16 87182 synaces met2s {equevalznt
ta 4 17 acres) o which Burlding @ is situated

by A charge on the escrow accomt in which recevables of the Mortgaged Propertses shall be pavalble (o inime Properiies Limited

¢) Cotporate guarantes executed by Intime Properhes Limited

Redemption terms;

a} Mindspace REIT Gieen Bond 1 are redeemable by wav of bullet repavment at the enc of 3 years and 30 days flom the date of allotment {date of allotment being 13
Maicl 2023 and date of redemption being 13 April 2026}

by Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a y=ar tstarting from 31 March, 2023} until the scheduled redemption date and on the scheduled
redemption date

) The Coupon shall be mereased by 25 bps for every notch downgmade in 1he rating by the Credit Rating Agency In case rating is upgraded after any raring downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade

d} Upon oceurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee tnay, by issuing not less than 30 {thirty) business days™ notice to the Tssuer requine the
Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount £qual to the total mandatery redemption amount in respect of each delbenture

T tune 2023 Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 50,000 listed. rated. secured. non-cumulative. taxable. tansferrable, 1edeemable. non-convertible debentures of
face value of INR 1.00.000 (Ilndian Rupees One Lakh only} per Debentie for aggegate principal amount of upto INR. 5,000.000,000/ (Rupees Five Thousand Million
Only} with a coupon 1ate of 7 75% p a payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstanding Momina! value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to
day. be protated on an actual: actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in aneats on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the
Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date: The first Coupen payment Date is 30 June 2023, with {ast
coupon payment on the scheduled redempnion date i e, 34 June 2026. The tenure of the said NCD Series 6 is 3 year and 29 days

This MCD Series 6 was listed on BSE Limited on June 06, 2023
Security terms

NCD Series 6 ave secured by each of the following securty in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefil of the NCD Holders):

atfirst 1anking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of a repistered simple morigags on identified units in binldings 6, 7 and 8 of Commeizone Yerwvada adding to
a cumulative carpet area of approximately 0 Imsf across these 3 buildings at Commerzone Yerwada, Pune aleng with the conmon areas, usage and aceess righiz
appurtenant to the units morrzaged in Buildings 6, 7 and 8 as mentioned in the nust deed. sttuated on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximalety 26,162
square metres , ferming part of a portion of land larger Land admeasuring 1,03,919 square metres {afier deducting 21 square metres for road fron total extent of 1,03,.940
square metres) at Village Yerwada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune and within the limits of Pune Municipal Corporation

b} A charge on the escrow accounl ko be created, in which receivables of the Mortzaged Properties shall be teceived. save and except any comuion area mointenance
charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties

¢} Corporate guaranlee executed by Mindspace Business Farks Private Lmﬁy/ﬁ:—— ==
7t “:-_Kl ns

e
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Redemption terms:

a) NCD Seties 6 are redeemable by way of buller repayment at the end of 3 year and 29 days from the date of allounent i & 30 June 2026

b} Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in & year (starting from 30 June 2023} uniil the schedoled redemption dare

©) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade

d} Upen occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debeniure Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty} business days’ nolice to the [ssuer require the
Issuer to redeem 1n full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture

In September 2023, Mindspace Busi| Park REIT issued 50.000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable. transferrable, redeemable. non-convertible debentures
of face value of INR 100,000 {Indian Rupees One Lakh only} per Debenture for aggrepate principal amount of upte INR 5.000.000.000/- (Rupees Five Thousand
Million Only) with a coupon cate of 3.03% p a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstandmg Nominal value of each debeniure shall be applicable and computed fiom
day to day, be provated on an actualf actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in avears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to
the Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date The first Coupon Payment Date is 30 September 2023 with
1ast coupon paymenl on the scheduled redemption date i ¢ 10 December 2026 The tenure of the said NCD Series 7 is 3 years and 3 months

Thig NCD Seties 7 was listed on BSE Limited on September 13, 2023

Security terms

NCD Series 7 are secured by each of the following security i favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the tienefit of the NCD Holders):

a) first ranking sole and exchisive secunty merest, by way of an equitable mortgage on identified unils in buildings 2A, 2B and 10 of Mindspace Madhapur adding to a
cumulative carpet area of approximately 0 73 msf across these 3 buildings in buildings 2A, 2B and 10 as mentioned in the trust deed, situated on a notionally
demarcated land adineasuring approximately 36,258 square metres, being and situated at Mindspace Madhapur, Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga
Reddy Disteict, Hydepabae

bj first ranking scle and exclusive security interest by way of a hypothecation over Collection Account and Escrow Account and all amonnts standing to the credit of or
accrued of accruing o, receivables, movable assets pertaining to Mortpaged Immovable Properties as further specified in transaction documents

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by KRIT

Redemption terms:

8} NCD Seties 7 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 year and 3 months from the date of allotment i e 10 December 2026

b Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a vear (starting from 30 September 2023) unti) the scheduled redemption date with last payment falling
on the scheduled redemption date

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgvade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency In case 1ating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 23 bps for each upgrade,

d) Upon occutrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
[ssner to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an ameunt equal to the total mandatery redemption amount in respect of each debenture

Refer Note 49 for Ratio disclosure

Other non-cyvrent fimancial lizbilities

Particalars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 Mareh 2023
Security Jeposils 3400 3445
Retention money payalle
- due Lo micre and sinall enterpiises 109 3
=l 67 111

Capnial cleditos
- Due o micio and small enlempeises

- Others 2 31
_Interesr acerued but not due on del ] = 335
3,385 4,153

Provisions (Nen curreni)

Particulars As alt As ab
31 December 2023 31 March 2022

Provision for employee benefits

- gramity 33 26
- compensafed absences 14 14
Other Provision {Refer Note 42 (7ie)) 27 27
T4 67
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Particulars As at As at
- 31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Deferred tax abaltwes tnet) 3469 2 494
3.669 2494

Other non-cuvrent liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 3 Mareh 2023
Unearmed reur 446 482
446 482
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Short term barrowings

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31D b

Particulars
2023

Secured:
Loans repayable on demand
- overdraft from banks

Unsecured:

- Conunercial Paper (Refer note 26(i3) {31 March 2023 Nil)

Current maturities of long-term debt {Secured)

10 vear G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, raced,
principal protected — market hinked, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
(“Warker Linked Debentures / MLD Series 27} (net of issue expenges, at
anorized cost) (refer Note 21 Afii))

2,762 1,219
1,446 -

3,747 -

1

150 -

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non lative, rated, ble non-
converlible debentwes (NCD Series 2 (net of issue expenses, at amontised
cost} (refer Note 21 A(jiny}

4

= Secured. listed, senior. taxable, non« ive, rated,
conveltible debentures (NCD Senes 1) fnet of issue expenses, ar umoridsed
cost) (Refer Note 21 Afi}}

1.990

able non- =

Secured, listed. senior, taxable, non-cumulative. rated, redeemable non- 4,982 -
convertible debenties (NCD Series 3) (et of issue expenses, at amortised

cosl) (iefer Note 21 Ajv))

Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cumulative, 3,995 -

Taxable, Tranasferable, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures { Sundesw
NCD 1) {refer Note 21 A{iv))

- Bonds - Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured. Non-Cummwlative, Taxable, - 03

Transferable, Redesnable Non-Convertible Bonds {MBPFL MCB 13 {Refer

note 21 Ay

195 5,357
102 13

- Flexi term loan ] 18 1]

- from banks

- from other parfiss

X 8.693

26(1) (2) On 20 December 2022, Mindspace Busmess Parks REIT 1ssued 2,000 Commercial Papers with a face value of Rs 500,000 (Rupees tive lakhs only} ach, at a

7

28

discount of 7 2% per annum to the face value. The discounted amount raised by the REIT through MREIT CP/1 was Rs 982,356,000 (Rupees nine hundred eighry two
million five Jakhs fifty six thousands only) and the value payable on matniny is Rs 1000 000,000 (Rupees one thousand million only) Discount on Commercial papers
is amortized over the tenor of the underlving nstroment. The conniercial papers weie listed on BSE and matured and 1epaid on 20 March 2023

(b} On 19 December 2023 Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 3.000 Commercial Papers with a face value of Rs 3.00,000 {Rupees five lakhs only) cach, al a
diseonnt of & (s per anmam to the face value  The discounted amount raised by the REIT thiough MREIT CP*Series-22023.24 was Rs 1 446117000 (Rupees one
thonsand four humdied forty soo neillion one hundred and seventeen thewsands anly) and the vabee payable on mataity is Rs 4 S00.000 004 {Rapees one thousand five
hundred million only) Discount on Commercial papers is amotlized over the tenor of the anderlying instrument. The commercial papers were lisled on BSE and will

nxarre on & Juoe 2021

Trade pavables _ =
Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 barch 2023
Trade Payables
- total entstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 56 133
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
anil small enterprises ¥ 829 576
§85 709
* Refer note 48 tor velated party disclosure
Other current financial liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 Mareh 2023
Emplovees dues payable 7 13
Interest accrved but not due 011 Toans fiom
- banks ¢ financial instimalions 2 44
- debennre/bonds 733 3
Interest accrued and due on others 24 21
Security deposits 5649 5.162
Retention dues payable
- due to mrcro and small enterprizes 143 193
- others 155 230
Unpaid Disinbutions o 0
Capital ereditors
- Due to micro and small enterpnses 492
- Others 1,376
Other liabtlities* - 44
4,335

* Refer note 48 for related party disclosure




29 Provisions (Current}

Particulars As at Az at
31 December 2023 31 Mareh 2023
Provision for employee benefits
- erahlity 4 4
- compensated absences 3 3
Provision for comp fon - 7
7 34
30 _Other current liabilities
Particnlars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Uneamed rent 357 365
Advances received from customers a4 46
Statutory dues 3os igs
Ciher advances 61 54
Other payable* 432 354
1,199 1.127
*This includes Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount
31 Current tax liabilities {net)
Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 barch 2023
Provision for income-tax, net of advance tax B bis ] 25
34 25




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/103

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

{All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

31 Revenue from operations

Particulars

Sale of services
Facility rentals

Mainfenance services

Sale of Equipment
Less: Cost of Equipment sold

Revenue from power supply
Revenue from works contract services {Refer Nove 6{a))

Other operating income

[nterest income from finance lease

Sale of surplus construction matenial and scrap
Compensation™

For the quarter ended
31 December 2023
{Unaudited)y*

4,536
1,131
5

195

62

21

56
Al

* It mainly includes ong 1ime compensation received from tenants for termination of letter ol inten

33 Interest Income
Particulars

Interest income

- on fixed deposits

- on electricily deposits
- on Income-tax refunds
- others

34 Other income

Particulars

Gain on redempiion of investments
Liabilities no longer required written back
Miscellaneous income

For the quarter ended
31 December 2023
i Unaudited)*

T

For the quarter ended
31 December 2023
(Unaudited)®

For the nine months
31 December 2022 ended 3! December 2023

For il quarter ended  Foi the quarter ended
30 Seplember 2023

Unaudited)* {Unauditedy* (Unaudited)
4.528 4 140 13,431
1 852 3.248

1z 65 47
{12} (635) 47
183 143 575
48 162 524
63 39 161

91 36 120
77 186 133
6,203 5.558 18.192

( hease Jeed during the locl in peiod

For the nine months
3 December 2022 ended 31 December 2023

For the quarter ended  $°ou the quarter ended
30 Beptember 2023

{Unandited y* iUnaudited y* {Unaudited)
T4 9 165
4 4 14
13 i8
5 6
85 31 203

For the nine months
31 December 2022 ended 31 December 2023

For (he quarter endded  For the quarter ended
30 September 2023

{Unauditcd)* {Unauditedi* (Unaudited)
7 8 27
12 3 94
3 4

Fou the nine months
ended 31 December
2022 (Unaudited)

11,876
2,456

444
(444)

436
1,992

123

59

186
17.154

Faor the nine months
ended 31 December
2022 (Unaudited)

25

il
83

8

127

For the nine months
ended 31 December
2022 (Unaudited}

For the year ended
31 March 2023
(Audited)

16,047
3478

160

a3

186
22821

[For the year euded
31 March 2023
{Audited)

33
14
96
14
157

Eor the year ended
31 March 2023
{Audited)

38
17

63
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37

Employee benefits expense*

Particulars For the quarter ended

31 December 2023

{Unaudited)*

Salaries and wages 65
Contributicn to provident and other funds 4
Gratuity sxpenses 3
Compensated absences 1
2

L}

@xpenses majorly refers to maintenance services

Cost of facility management services

Particolars For the quarter ended
31 December 2023
(Unandited)*
Housekeeping setvices 22
Fagade cleaning 1
Engineering services 33
Security expenses 37
AMC expenses 64
Garden maintenance 4
Repair and mainlenance 20
Coensumables 19
Electricity consumption charpres 2
202
Repairs and maint: 3
Particulars For the quarter ended
31 December 2023
{Unaudited)*
Repairs and maintenance:
- building 88
- plant and machinery 58
- computers
- electrical installation 27
- others 19
222

For Lhe quarter ended
30 September 2023
{Unapdited)*

64

= e

For the quarter ended
30 September 2023
(Unaudited)*

23

l
30
30
by

3
14
26

186

For the quarter ended
30 September 2023
{Unaudited y*

113

13
16
222

For the quarter ended

For the nine months

31 December 2022 ended 31 December 2023

{Unaudited)*

67
4
3
1
5

20

Fou the guarter ended

{(Unaudited)

198
13
9

2

7

For the nine months

31 December 2022 ended 31 December 2023

{Unauditedy*

13

[
32
26
39
2

8
20
1
147

Fo1 the quarter ended

{Unaudited)

63

3

9%

107

165

9

41

57

3
Sdd

For the nine months

31 December 2022 ended 31 Decemboer 2023

{Unaudiied)*

36

12
16
144

{Unawdited)

268
247

49
51
615

Fm the nine months
ended 31 December
2022 {Unavdited)

192
12
6
3
7
220

For the nine months
ended 31 December
2022 {Unaudited)

50
2
34
74
113
7
20
41
2
393

For the nine months
ended 31 December
2022 {Unawdited)

173
201

27
4d
446

For the year ended
31 March 2023
[Audrted)

252

17

4

2

10
285

For the year ended
31 March 2023
{Audited)

69
3
114
105
175
10
52
62
4
594

Foi the year ended
31 March 2023
{Audited)

293
282

39
67
682
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Other expenses
Particulars

31 Decemnber 2023

(Unandited)™

Rent ) o 4
Bropealy Lax 177
Eleciiedy, waler and Jwesel charpes 197
Travelling and conveyanee 2
Rates am taxes 3
Doenation 1
Frovaision for Unbilled revenue ;
Buginess suppurt lecs U
Assets wnlien ofit Dremolished -
Filing fees and stamping charges 15
Business promuotion expenses advelisiig oL petise x5
Bank Charges z
Bad ebis wiillen off _
Cuorporate Sucial Responsibility cypenses 47
Revenue share 44
Provision fu Donbudial Detns teapecied coedil 12
loss allowance)
Foreipn gxcliangs 1oss (el ) i
Direclors’ sittuy lees i
Miscellaneous expenses _ 1|

Finance costs

Partculars

Inlerest expens:

- o bowtowaings Fom Bbanks and Nimaoceal Dshitutiog

- on debentw es and bonds
- on leage liabiliy
- un wthers

Unwancling of interest expenses on secunny depuosits

Other finanve clianges

Less: Finanee usis capilalised 1o iy estnwnl propuerty

“under constiuchin

For the quarter ended T .111-L.‘.1|_|1;|_1-l|:| ended Fot the quinlel ended

31 December 2023
{Unaudited)

591
w7
1%
(234

_LI6

Fur the yuarter em.l:'d-T"m 1he qu:; ;@ulc{i—hu U quarter ended

M Seplember 2023

Fuor the nine months

31 Degember 2022 entled 31 December 2023

Fur the nme months
ended 1] December

For the yeu ended
A1 March 2023

(Thnaudited)™ (Unandited)* (Unaudited) 2022 (Unaudied)y (Andired}
3 3 1 a N
1 T} 146 S03 422 Sl
) 163 651 49] LY
& O 11 9 13
] 7 4 o0 2l
I - 1 3 +
57 - 57 - -
it 23 Te 68 B0
11 [0 I 179 |87
12 [N 55 37 a3
43 k| 103 17 i
2 . 5 k] 0
- - i 1 |
17 45 140 130 174
a2 - 106 -
3 3 3 s i)
L] - | L |
| I | | 2
13 85 I ¥ 69 12]
66 385 1796 1 563 2.003

M1 Septembey 20273
(Unandired

-l"ol the nine months
30 Degember 2022 ended 31 December 2023

For the nne months

ended 31 Decemben

Far the yew ended
31 Mauch 2023

tUnandiled)® {Unaudited) 2022 (Unaudited) (Audited)
458 1623 1,356 1.842

470 1,919 1191 1.687

R 1 10 13

1 3 12 12

93 RIITY 285 80

E - - 4

1123 (486) 400} (307)
T 3375 2454 3431




40 Depreciation and amortisation

41

Particulars For the quarter ended For the quér_t;.;r_en_;]a Far the quaﬁer ended For the nine months _ For the nine months  For the year ended
31 December 2023 30 September 2023 31 December 2022 ended 31 December 2023 ended 31 December 31 March 2023
{Unaudited)* {Unaudited}* {Unaudited)* {(Unaundited) 2022 {Unaudited} {Andited)
“Depreciation of property, plant and Y T ¥ o 32 % 9 124
equipment
Depreciation of investment property 045 47 893 2,791 2,543 3430
Amortisation of intangible assets 0 0 0 0 0 0
i 8 s 925 2,887 2.634 3.554
Tax expense
Particulars For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the nine months IFor the nine months  For the year ended
31 December 2023 30 September 2023 31 Decemnber 2022 ended 31 December 2023 ended 31 December 31 March 2023
{Unaudited)* {Unaudited)* (Unaudited)* (Unaudited) 2022 (Unaudited) (Audited)
Current fax Ao o 519 498 1,507 1414 1,895
Deferred tax charge 391 432 529 1,296 1,736 2,404
883 T 946 1,027 2,803 3,150 4,299




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Cond d Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

{All amounts in Rs. millicn unless otherwise stated)

42 Contingent liabilities and Capital commitments

Particolars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023

Contingent liabilities

Claims not acknowledged as debt im respect of

- Income-Tax matters (Refer note 1 below) excluding interest 263 936
- Service-Tax matters (Refer nole 2 below) 219 387
= Customs duty matters {Refer note 3 below} 34 34
- Stamp duty 65 65
Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for {Refer 7434 5,173
Note 4 below)
Notes:

{a) Gigaplex- An appeal has been filed for A'Y 2016-11 before CIT(A) agamst the penalty order raising demand of Rs 3 million and the appeal is pending, Gigaplex has
paid 20% (Rs 1 mullion) with a request to keep the demand in abeyance As on December 31, as per Income lax website , there is no demand outstanding Order of
CIT(A) has been received and this penalty has now been deleted in current quarter.

(b} KRIT - Contingent liability of Rs. 933 mullion relate to AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19 for which it has filed appeals before CIT(A} against orders under section 143(3)
/143(3} read with section 133A of the Act contesung the disallowance of deduction under section 80LA of the Income Tax Act 1961, KRIT is hopeful of a favourable
outceme for these Assessment Years. In case of unfavourable decisiens in appeal for AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19, the tax would be payable under normal tax and
hence, MAT credit currently available with KRIT will no longer be available As a result, in addition to above contingent liability, KRIT would require to pay additional
tax of Rs 326 million wrt AY 2019-20 and AY 2020-21 (These years are not under litigation) because during these years KRIT has utilised the MAT credit availed
during AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19 The disallowance of deduction under section 801A for AYs 2012-13 to 2012-19 by the Income Tax department was based on the
order for carlier AY 207 1-12 wherein similar disallowance was made KRIT had challenged the said order of AY 2011-12 before the ITAT. The Hon'bic ITAT vide its
order dated 06 05 2021 allowed the appeal n favour of KRIT by quashing the disallowance made by the income-tax authority The Income Tax department has further
filed an appeal before the High Court against the said order for AY 2011-12 of the Hon'ble ITAT

{c) Avacado- Contingent liability of Rs 30 55 million relates to AY 2015-16 and AY 2016-17 For AY 2015-16 and AY 2016-17. the Company had filed appeals
against order under section 143{3) read with [ 53A of the Income Tax Act, 1961 on account of disallowances u/s 14A and w/'s B01A which were disposed-oft in favour of
the Company 1 earlier sear The department has filed an appeal before the Hon ble Righ Court against the same

2 5\’5 ' As at N Asat
31 December 2023 31 March 2023

MBFFL o2 92
Sundew 2 |
Intime n 57
ERIT 0% 200
Avacado ] 2

219 367

MBPPL : The SPV has received show cause and demand notices for inclusion in taxable value amounts received as reimbursement of clectricity and allied charges and
demand service tax there on of Rs 92 million excluding applicable interest and penalty. SPV has filled appropriate replies to the show cause and demand notices

Sondew : Demand for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipments Rs 2 Million and Demand for Interest and Penaly on account of wrong
availment of credit of service tax paid on input services Rs 0 million  SPV has filed an appeals with CESTAT and matter is pending

Intime : Intime has filed an appeat with CESTAT against demand of Rs 21 million for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipment for the period
April 2010 to March 2015 and Departiment filed an appeal with CESTAT against the order of Commissioner {Appeals} deleting the demand of Rs 15 million for Non
Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipment for the period Apnl 2015 to June 2017 and these matters are pending adjudication [ntime received favourable
order w.r t demand of Rs. 21 million for service tax on recovery of electricity and water and irregular availment of credit of service tax paid en input services

KRIT : KRIT has filed an appeal with CESTAT against demand of Rs 96 million for Mon Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipment for the period
April 2018 to March 2015 and Department filed an appeal with CESTAT against the order of Commissioner (Appeals) deleting the demand of Rs. 20 miilion for Non
Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipment for the period April 2015 to June 2017 and these matters are pending adiudication

KRIT recerved favourable order wr ¢ demand of Rs 93 million for service tax on recovery of electricity and water and irregular availment of eredit of service tax paid
on mput services

A
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Avacado : {a) The SPV has received an order dated 31 January 2018 pronounced by the Commissioner (Appeals), confirming the service tax demand of Rs. 7 million
(excluding applicable interest and penalty thereon) on renting of immiovable property services provided to tenants during the period April 2008 to March 2011 It has
filed an Appeal before the Customs, Central Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal The matter ts pending adjudication,

{b) For the period April 2011 to September 201 |, Avacado had received a Show Cause cum Demand Notice dated 22 October 2012 alleging non-payment of service tax
of Rs. 1 million (excluding applicable interest and penalty thereon} on renting of immovable property services provided to tenants. Avacado had tiled its detajled reply
on 24 December 2012 No further correspondence has been received in this case

For both the above matters, Avacado had filed applications in Form SVLDRS-1 under the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme, 2019 Avacado had
received SVLDRS-3 with service tax demand in respect of above matters. Avacado had not accepted the demand and therefore the matier remains under dispute

Customs duty demand at the time of debonding of assets from the Software Technolegy Parks of India scheme ( STPI § for Intime Rs 16 million and KRIT Rs 9
million

Future Cash outflow in respect of above, 1t any, is determinable only on receipt of judgement / decision pending with relevant authorities

KRIT - Bank guarantees to Depury Commissioner of Customs, Export Prometion Division for Rs.9 million

The SPV wise details of capital commitments are as follows:

SPVs As at Asat
31 Decemnber 2023 31 March 2023

MBPPL T30 891
Gigaplex 761 170
Sundew 413 438
KRC Infra 1,793 1,513
Horizonview 196 328
KRIT 3,289 9R8
Avacado 101 141
[ntime 132 104

7,434 312
Avacads

A Suit has been filed 1n the year 2008 by Nusli Neville Wadia {Plaintitf} against [vory Properties and Hotels Private Limited (fvory) & Others which mncludes Avacado
as one of the Defendarts inter alia in respect of the land and the Taradigm’ Industrial Park building of Avacade The Plaintiff has praved against Avacado and the said
fon restraming e flom catrving oul further construclion or any aiiver acin ity on the Tand (on which the building Paradigm is constructed), demolinen and removal
of the structures or the said land, appointment of a Court Recerver in respect of the said land and  Paradigm building, declaring the MOUs / Agreements entered il by
Avacado with Ivory and the Plamuil g5 voidable and having been avoided and rescinded by the Plaintiff ond to e delivered up and eancelled, restraining [rom
alienating, encumberiig or parting with possession of struclures and restraining from dealing with, creating fresh leases / licenses or renewing lease / license in respeci
of the said Paradigm bwilding and from recerving or recovering any rent / license tee / compensation in respect of the said leases / Ticenses, depositing all the rents in the
Court. etc The Caurt has not granted any ad-interim relief t the Plamtilf Avacado has filed ils 1eply to the said Suit denying the allegations and aying that ne menm
whal e soaned Lo ihe Plarsinf? Tie nstice of mobion fon int2om reisel and the Swt are pendmg for the tinal hearing betore the High Court

Based on an advice obtained trom an independent legal counsel the nanagement is confident that Avacade will be abls to suitably defend and the impact. it any, on the
ind AS financial statements can be deternined on disposal of the above Petition and accoerdingly, Ind AS Financial statements of Avacado have been prepared on a
gaing concern basis Further, the Plaintitt, through his advocates & solicitors. had addressed letter dated 13 February 2020 including to Mindspace REIT, the Manager.
the Trustee, the Sponsors, Avacadoe, Mr. Ravi C Raheja, Mr. Meel C Raheja, Mr Chandru L. Raheja, [very Preperties and K Raheja Corp Pvt Lid | expressing his
objection to the propased Offer and any actiens concernmg the building Paradigm located at Mindspace Malad project The allegations and averments made by the
Plaintiff have been responded and denied by the addressees, through their advocates & sohcitors No further conespondence has been received

Pursuant to the levy of service tax on renting of immovable properties given for commercial uss, retrospectively with effect from | June 2007 by the Finance Act, 2010,
some of the lessees to whom Avacado has let out its premises, have based on a legal advice, challenged the said levy and, inter-alia, its retrospective application and
withheld payment of service tax to Avacado, based on certain judicial pronouncements and stay orders granted by appropriate High Courts from time to time Further in
this regard the Hon'ble Supreme Court has passed an interim order dated 14th October, 2011 i Civil appeal nos 8390, §391-8393 of 2011 and in complignce of which,
such lessees have deposited with appropriate autherity in 3 mstalments, 50% of the amount such service tax not so paid by them upte 30 September 2011 and have
furnished surety for the balance 50% of the amount of service tax and which amount has also been deposited by them with the authorities. Further as per Hon ble
Supreme Court’s Order dated 5th April 2018 in Civil Appeal No. (s} 4487/2010, the matter is deferred unti! disposal of the isstes pending before the nine judges Bench
in Mineral Area Development Authority and others

In view of the above and subject to the final orders being passed by the Hon'ble Supreme Court in the aforesaid appeals, there may be a contingent liability on Avacado
in respect of interest payable on account of the delayed payment of service tax. which amount would be recoverable from the respective lessees by Avacado




a)

by

vl

KRC Infra

In respect of KRU Infia's project at Villuge Kharadi, Pune. a speeial civil suit 1s Tiled by Ashok Phulchand Bhandan aganst Balasabieh Laxman Shivale and 29 othes in
respect ol imer abaan undwsded share admeasunng 44135 Ares ot of the land beanag 5 Nu 65 Hissa No 3 for declaranon, specific performance, wmyuncuen and orther
rehels Neuther Gera Developments Povare Lumited nn KRC Tofrastruciure and Projects Povate Limited is a party to the aforementioned sum and neither of them have
bezn jomned as partics Lo the vl st or Geia Developments Prvare Lumited nor KRE Tnfrastructure and Projecis Prvate Limited have filed any intervention
application There dre no orders passed in the maner affecnng the seit lands or the development thereof or reslraining the nanster or development ol the afoiesaid land
i any mannet whatsoever Next date is Maich 13, 2024 The mauer is currently pending

nshitu “Mr Amit Jeevan filed special
t re the &, Semor Division ") seckmg
inier of'land bearing § 3 on which

ermanent injunction and several other reliefs KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private
have been received by KRC Infiastrucrure & Projects Privare Limited tili date Gera
Developments Private Limued and Gera Resonts Private Linnled i ¢ Deteadant No 13 & 16 in the said suir have filed their written statement and an Application for
reection of plant on the srounds memioned therein. The marter is currently peading Gera Developments Private Limited {~Gera Developments™ and Gera Resorts
Private Limned Gera Resors™, two of the defendants m the marter have filed an application tor rejection of plant under Order VI Rule 11 of Code of Crvil
Procedure, which applicanon was rejected by the Court by way of an order passed on May 03 2022 Thereafter. on June 22, 2022 Gera Developmeats and Gera

¥ tf has fHled an application under section 151 of Code of Civil Procedure seeking
a le. not 1o carry out construction o development actvities On lune 27, )22, the
. miunction application An appheation to recall the order dated Mav 5 2022 was filed
n tejected the apphication filed by the defendants | and 15 On dogust 29,2022 KR

fnfra filed an appheanon for mieivenuon as thid party for being wnpleaded in the swt The heanng was concluded on September 27, 2022 on the intervention
apphcatan and the matter haz been posted to Ocrober 01, 20272 for passing ol an order on the Application for intervention filed by KRC infia On Octaber [ 2027 the
matter was further adjourned to October 6, 2022 and farther 1o Octaber 7, 2022 On October 7. 2017 addional arguments were advanced on the intervention
apphcanen and the matter has been posted for order on the mervention appheation: By an order dated Movember (8, 2022, the Court alluwed the inmrveation
apphicatian filed by KRC Infra and drrected the Plauttiff w implead the itervener 1 ¢ KRC Infra as Delendant Ne 66w the st within one month of the order On
December 3. 2022 the Plamnit tiled appheations fur amendment of the plunt and for inpuaction On December 13, 2022, IKRC lnfea filed 115 s ta the appheanon ln
amendnient. By an order dated December 13, 2022 the Court allowed the apphcation ol the Plaintifl to amend the plamt in Exhibit 3 Further. by the said Order the
Court s directed the Plaintii} o serve the amended compilarion upon KRC Infra and KRC [rfia to file itz written statement alony with its say to the application tor
tem myuncuon filed by the Planadt The matter was posted t Japuary 5. 2023 for compharee On fanuary 5, 2023, Detendant ne.66 (e, KRC Infrastructure
and t Prvate Lemited) has filed on record the written Stalement and say 16 4 prhicagon tor Temporary Ipuncoon alony wih atfidavie i supponl ol Sav. and
Appheation Tor praduction of documents along with List of documents Thereafier, Defendant no {1 w (4 filsd o apphcauons

= chran Applicanon sezhirg an adioument to file Addmonad W iten Sudement, and 127 an Appheation seeking direetion ttom the Hon'hle Courl w the Clun it 0
provade documents elened wom the amended plum (iled by the Plannil w the sad Detendants and the manter was posted o Janwane 11 2023 G acsunients on
behall of the Plamult and the Detundant no 66 on the Applicaton for Teuporary Tnpmctuon filed a0 Exlibig 5 On danuary P 2023, the Plamuft advanced oral
arguments before the Court on the apphcation for temporary injunction Thereatter. the Court adjourned the matter and the same wag posted o Janvary 24, 2023 for
arzuments on behalt” of De T no 66 an the applieation for temporary iyunction On Linvane 24, 2023 Defendant No 66 Dled an apphcation for production of
documents along with o sep tist af documentis and filed phatgiaphs on rzeord and the matier wae adrourmed 1o Febrians 07, 2023 [or aigpuments on hehall’ o
T2:lendant ne @6 on ihe appheation Ton wmpoiny mguncuon a1 ebouan U7 2003 and Pebiuure 21 2023 the Detendant Mo de advamced wsuments Betie the U ous
w e Appication Lo mguncnon Lhe natter wis i ke pusted o Maceh 2, 2023 for conchuding the arsuments an Appheation i mpunction b the Plandtn The
Plunufi conuiuded et arguments m veply o the arguiments made fw Defendant oo 66 Defendant Mo 66 £ led the wrtten notes of araumentz - The Plunft has Alad
oy of the Onder dated Januany 1302023 thereby glanking sids quu ke the onder ded December 03 2022, passed w RTS Appeal No 429 of 2022 rejecing the
Appeal on merits ull the final disposal of the Appeal RTS/2-A. 1554 2022 filed befre the Honble Addmonal Collecter Pune Thercafter the captioned inatter lias been
adiowned w March 13 2023 for Rling of wertten arguments 1f amy by Lhe Plangft and other Defendants O Maich 15, 2023 the matier wis adyourned oll March 23,
2023 On March 25, 2023 Defendanmt Nos 62 and 63 filed an application for amendment of the WS filed by them and the Phuntift has filed s say 1o the sand
appheation Thereafter. the Plantift and the Detendant Nos 62 and 63 ar gued on the aforesard apphicaton and the Hon'biz Court was pleased 10 allow the afolesand
amendment application  The Defendane Nos 16, 17, 1R, 19, 31. 52 and 53 filed their written notes of argurents and the Defendant No 16 and 17 have filed their
wnitten notes of arguments The 2021 Suit matter has been adjourned ull uly 10, 2023 for passing order an Application for injuncyion filed by the Plamtff. On July 19,
2023, the Count partly allowed the Application for fnuncteon. restraiming Defendaer 1 and 2 from alicnating and ereating third party nghis in any manner ovec st
propeities | (a). | (biand | £} till disposal of the suit. On September 11, 2023 the Advocate for the PlaingiT fited an application for amendment of the suit, inter alia.
seehing (a) rectification of boundaries in 1espect ot suil property 1(e) of Detendant No 66§ e KRC [nfa (viz Survey No 63:3). (b} addiuvon‘amendment in para No 8
and 12 stating that NDefendant No 110 19, 51 w 34, 63 to 67 and other defendants have retused fo partibion and undivided share of the Plaintif?, Thereafter, pursvant 1o
Delendants Mo T o 14 filing their sav and mauter has been adjoutned to November 3. 2023 for say of other Defendants Further, A notice of lis pendens dated

I 2022 has been remstered at the oftice of Sub Registtar. Haveli no (1 Pune On Nuvember 3. 2023 the Plamtift carmed oul the amendment and filed the

plant adyenried W November 22, 2023 (o filiyg additional wrilten statement by Delendant No 66 and other defendants and appearance by the Detendunt Na 67 On
Movember 22, 2023 the matter was adjourned 1o Decembel 13 2023 On Devember 3. 2023 the Defendant No 66 sought uine to file addivonal wntten stutement and
the Plamudt filed an Application far amemdment Next dale 1s yet o by posted The matter s curtently pending

Smaswab Mathan Guokwad tdeceasedy through her hein (~Appellant™ Bled an R TS Appeal N 2.4 1534 2022 on June 6, 2022 betore the addivonal Collecton, Pune
- Additional Collector  agamst Gera Besonts Private L nuwed through M Ashish Jangda s Respondents ) seckimg to quash and set aside the arder passed on December
5 2022 by the Sub Division Officer. Flavel §*Tmpugned Oudet™) i respect of the Mutauen Entrs No 27113 On Jamuay 13 2023, pursuant (e the hearing. the
Addibonal Collectorgranted a stay an the Impugned Order ull die futal order disposing ol the Appeal On October 16, 2023, the Appellant filed an Amendment
Applicanon for impleading 13 new rispondents { Amentment Application™) and the sume was allowed and norees weie 153ued wr the newh added Respondents nn
October 16. 2023 Flowever, the copres of the aforesaid wete not served on ERC Talia and the maier was posted en Decembe 5. 2023 fur recaipt ot records and
procewdings vt i) Complaint Case 0o & of 2020 before the Ld Circle Inspector, Kalis. i) RTS Appeal No 429 of 2022 before the Ld Sub-Divisional Ofticer On
December 5. 2023 KRC Infra filed its sav 10 the Amendment Application and the Appellant (iled onrecord the R P A 1 slips and Track € onsignment Repon of the said
notices as the nonees 1ssued to the proposed Respondents were unserved Appellant filed an application v 1ssue natices to the proposed Respendents through the
Talatn KR Infra objected o n and requested for heaning on the Amendment Application before 1ssuing such notiwes The Respondent Nos | and 2 objecied to the
Amendment Application. tiled an application seeking directions [o the Appellant w provide copres ol the documents relied by the Appellant 1 the Amendinent
Applicarian and 1o tile reph to it KRC Intia was divected to conduet the ar guments on the Amendment Applicanon and the Respondent Nos | and 2 were direcied to
fide their reply 10 the Amendment Application The Cowrt noted that ne notices will be issued (o the preposed Respondents through the Takathi tl) the said Amendinent
Apphcation 15 decided  Next dae s 29 1 2024 The matter 18 pending

d



a)

b)

c}

MBPPL

Pursuant to the demerger and vesting of the Commerzone Undertaking of K Raheja Corp Pyt Ltd. (KRCPL). in MBPPL, MBPPL is the owner to the extent of 88,16 %
undivided right title and interest in the land bearing S No 144, 145 Yerawada, Pune which is comprised in the said Undenaking “*Shrimant Chhatrapati Udayan Raje
Bhosale (“the Plaintiff") has filed a Special Civil Suit bearing No 133 of 2009 in the Court of Civil Judge, Senior Division Pune against the erstwhile land Owner Shri
Mukund Bhavan Trust {who had entcusted development rights to MBPPL) and the State of Maharashira, claiming to be the owner of the said land. The Hon'ble Court
was pleased to reject the Application for amendment of plaint filed by the Plaintiff and allow the Third Party Applications on 14 11.2016, The Plaintiff has filed two writ
petitions bearing Nos 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 in the Bombay High Court challenging the aforesaid orders passed on 1417 2016 The matter was transferred to
another Court for administrative reasons and adjourned on several occasions for compliance of the order by the Plainuff. On 5th March 2018 the Advocate for the
Plaintiff filed a purshis on record stating that since he does not have any insteuctions in the matter from the Plaintt, the Vakalatnama is being withdrawn by him and
the matter was posted on 20th March 2018 On 20th March 2018 the Hon'ble Court was pleased to adjourn the matter till 22nd June 2018 since the Advocate for the
Plaintiff had withdrawn the Vakalatmama and the Plaintiff was not represented by any Advocate Writ Petition Nos 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 filed in the Hon’ble
Bombay High Court challenging the orders dated 14th November 2016 by Shrimant Chamrapati Udavanraje Bhosale against Shri. Mukund Bhavan Trust and athers
came up for hearing on 28 November 2017 wherein the Advocate for the Petitioner undertook to serve the copy of the petition on the Respondent No. 2 ie. State of
Maharashtra and the Hon’ble High Court was pleased to adjourn the same till 16.01 2018, 26 02 2018, 22 06 2018 On 22 062018 the Advocate for the Defendant No
1 tiled a purshis stating that the Defendant No 1 (a) expired matter was further adjourned till 24 10 18, 26 1118, 21 12 18, 01 02 2019, 2503 2019 and 15.04 2019,
18 06 2019. 27 08 2019, 1909 2319 On 19 09 2019 the matter has been stayed by the Hon’ble Court and further posted on 11 11 2019 for compliance of the order
dated 1411 2016 by the Plaintiff. The matter has been stayed under Sec 10 of Code of Civil Procedure Next date 16.09 23 for steps. Both the Writ Petitions were
posted on 21 0918, 11.10.18, 22.10,18 and further posted on 100619 for Admission The matters came on board on 20.06 2019, 14 11.2019, 15 01 2019 and
21.02 2019 As per the CMIS Writ Petition No 44 15/2017 was last posted en 27 (3 2020 and is vet net listed As per the CMIS Writ Petition Mo 4268/2017 was last
posted on 27 03 2020 and  thereafter on 23 .07 20 for Admission and is yet not listed In the management's view, as per legal advice, considering the matter and the
facts, no provision for any loss / liability is presently required to be made

MBPPL 15 subject to other legal proceedings and claims, which have anisen in the ordinary course of business, MBPPL’s management does not reasenably expect that
these Jegal actions, when ullimately concluded and deterimined, will have a material and adverse effect on MBPPL's resuits of operations or financial condition

MBPPL received a communication (alleged reminder) frem Pune Municipal Coerporation {PMC} demanding an amount of Rs 157 millien allegedly due from MBPPL
hased on objections by internal audit report of Pune Municipal Corporation. MBPPL, has submitted a letter denying all allegation of PMC, as MBPPL has not been
served with any document referred to the said PMC letter. Subsequently MBPPL addressed one more communication stating that MBPPL would be in a position to
submit their reply upon receipt of the detatls of amount demanded as per their reply submitted which states that if any principal outstanding is due/recoverable, MBPPL
agrees 1o make the said payment and sought detailed clarification en the interest amount. By letter dated 20.07. 2019 to MBPPFL, PMC provided the copy of the audit
repert to MBPPL and requested MBPPL to provide its clarifications in 1espect of objectionable issues and furnish the challans in lieu of payment of the recoverable
amownt 3y letter dated 1708 2021 to the architect firm and another. PMC stated that it has not received any clarifications and provided the challans of amounts by
assessing nterest theveon and tequired submission of challanfreceipt towards pavment of an amount of ¥ 183 60 million recovelable against all objectionable issues By
its reply |etter dated 06.09 2021 to PMC, MBPPL has again reiterated that the earlier PMC letter dated 04 02 2019 and the PMC fetier dated 17 08 2021 are addressed to
the wrong persons and informed PMC of the non-receipt of relevant information and documents from PMC as requested by MBPPL earlier By letter dated 11 102021
to PMC, MBPPL replied stating that the impugned challans. demands and netice are Hlegail. null and void and ultra vires: and likewase the act of issuing the letter dated
17 08 2021 is ultra vires and without the aathority of law and called upon PMC to withdraw the impugned challans and letter forthwith By the sad letier MBPPL
further stated that if the challans and Tetter is not withdrawin and any fucther action is imiiated in that event the letter dated 1110 2021 may be treated as o notwe under
section 437 of The Maharasiura Mumcipai Corporations Act, 1949 and under secnon {39 ot The Maharashua Regional and 1Towh Planning Act, 1966, Further, without
prejudice to the contentions raised in the reply and without admitting any liability to pay the amount as per the impugned challans, MBPPL has submitted that, in order
to resolve the controversy, MBPPL is willing to offer to pay in full and final settlement on all accounts of all demands raised in the said challans. a luntpsum one-ime
amount of ¥ 26 64 million withoul any liability for interest thereon or for any other payments relating to the subject and te provide an opportunity of hearing and
fumishing clarifications, it’ required by PMC Subsequently, by letter dated Marelh 10, 2022, PMC informed MBPPL that it has not accepted the cheque issued by
MBPPL vide its letter dated January 25, 2022 and requesied MBPPL 0 issue demand draft for the amount as per the Challans and make the payment to PMC at the
carliest

On April 7, 2022 MBPPL submitted a reply/ letter to PMC enclosing a demiand draft as desired by the PMC, for an amount of 7 26,64 nullion 1owards the payment as
set out in MBPPL's earlier comniunications. Vide letter dated Juty 11, 2022 PMC returned MBPPL's demand draft while demanding entire demanded payment
MBPPL vide its letier dated July 22, 2022 read with MBPPL letter dated July 21. 2022 remitied the entire demanded payment of Rs 10,13,57.23%/- under protest
MEPPL en July 28, 2022 also paid an amount of Rs 60,93,225/- being Challan Late Fees and recorded this payment under MBPPL letter dated August 8, 2022 MBPPL
{‘Petitioner”) has filed writ petitivn on November 14, 2022 in the Bombay High Court {“Court”) agsinst Pune Municipal Corporation and others (“Respondents™) inter
alia, seeking to impugn and sct aside the Demand Notice dated January 3, 2022 enclesing challans for certain amounts allegedly due and payable by the Petitioner
(“lmpugned Demand Notice™} and for refund of the amount of T 107 45 mullion paid by the Petitioner under protest to the Respondents towards the Impugned Demand
Notice The matter s currently pending for admission




a)

b}

a)

b}

Intime, Sundew and KRIT

[n accordance with the Scheme of arrangement which was approved by Hon’bie Andhra Pradesh Eigh Court on 23 March 2007, the Industrial Park 11 and Hl
undertakings of K Raheja [T Park (Hyderabad) Lirited {formerly known as K_Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Private Limited) ("KRIT", "J¥ Company") have been
demerged and vested in the Company with effect from the appointed date i¢. 01 September 2006,

Intime and Sundew had acquired the land at Madhapur, Hyderabad as part of the demerger scheme from KRIT. The said Iand is in lieu of the employment opportunities
to be generated by KRIT and others

The hability, if any, arising due to the obligation 1o create the job opportunities for the entire larger land of which the above property is a part, continues to be retained
by KRIT as at 31 December 2023

Durmg the year ended 31 March 20186, Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited ("TSIIC") has returned the original Bank Guarantees to KRIT and
also confirmed to the bank that TSIIC will not claim any amount from the bank under the Bank Guarantees and the bank is relieved of its obligation. Hence, no liabitity
is recognised towards the price of the plot of land.

An unconditional obligation to pay amounts due to Andhra Pradesh Industrial [nfrastructure Corporation Limited ("APTIC"} in respect of APLC's claims of losses due to
any difference in values pertaining to sate transactions of the project undertaken by KRIT. Losses incurred by the Government/TSIIC in its JV Company, if any, will be
paid m fult by K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd and it has fumished to the JV Company in writing agreeing and admitting liability to make such payment to Government/TS1IC.
The shareholding pattern of the Government/TSIIC in the JV Company and the Company will not change as a result of conversion from Private to Public, the
Govemnment / TSIIC equity of 11% will remain the same in the Comapany and all the demerged companies and further in futere, Government / TSIIC will riot be asked
to infuse further cash to maintain its 11% stake.

Gigaplex

Regular Civil Suit had been fiied before the Hon Civil Judge (1.1 Vashi at Central Business District by an Education Society {"the Plaintiff") who is claiming rights in
existing school structure, claiming its area as 500 square meters and its existence since more than 30 years, seeking an injunction not to dispossess him. Gigaplex has
filed #s reply opposing the Plaintiff's prayers. After hearing the parties, the Hon’ble Judge at the Vashi Court had rejected the Plaintiff"s Injunction Application by
Order dated 20.08 18 (Order) Thereafter the Plaintiff has filed an appeal i Thane District Court. The Plaintiff's Appeal filed in Thane District Court has been
transfecred to Belapur Court is still pending for Arguments in Appellant’s Applications for injunction and status quo before relevant court in Belapur. Both Suit and
Appeal are pending for hearing. In management view, the estimate of liability arising out of the same is remote, no provision has been taken

in relation to MIDC Demand on account of change in shareholding pattern refer Note 54

KRIT

A Writ petition has been filed against the Company in the High Court of Judicature of Andhra Pradesh at Hyderabad with respect to specific use of the land
admeasuring 4,500 square yards, earmarked as plot 18. Pursuant to it, the Court has passed an Order for no construction activity on the said plot of land until fucther
orders of the Court. KRIT has filed its reply and also sought expeditious hearing  After hearing, the matter was listed on 18 12 23 for pronouncement of Judgernent
The Court interalia held that Petitioners in the writ petition are not entitled to any reliefs and the writ petition is dismissed Stay got vacated Subsequently, KRIT filed a
caveat m writ appeal vide Caveat no 8135 of 2023 on the file of the Hon’ble High Court for the State of Telangana Based on the facts of the case. the manageinent
does not expect any liability and is of the opinion that no provision needs to be made

Sundew

The Office of the Land Reforms Tribunal Cum Deputy Collector & Special Grade Revenue Divisional Officer, Attapur (“Tribunal™) had, by letter dated 27 August
2009, sought information from Sundew under Section 8(2) of the Andbra Pradesh Land Reforms (Ceiling on Agriculture Holdings) Act, 1973 (“APLRAC™) in respect
of the entire land parcel at Mindspace Madhapur The Revenue Department of the Government of Andhra Pradesh forwarded 2 Memo dated 5 September 2009 for
fumishimg of certam inforrmanion to the Government of Andhia Pradesh, including information requested by the letter dated 27 August 2009 Sundew had filed a
detailed response on 30 September 2009 stating that (a) the land was originally granted by the Government of Andhra Pradesh to K Raheja IT Park Hyderabad Limited
(KRIT) which was a joint venture company with Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Cerporation Limited, (b) the land was vested in Sundew by way ot demerger
order of the Andhra Pradesh High Court, {c) the land has been declared as an SEZ and is therefore exempt from the local laws; {d) the land was shown as a non-
agricultural Jand in the master plan of Hyderabad and is therefore not “land” covered under the APLRAC The Tribunal issued a final notice to Sundew in January 2012
requesting to submit a declaration for full and correet particulars of the lands beld. In September 2009, Sundew also submitted a copy of the order dated August 9, 2012,
which was passed by the Hon'ble High Court of Andhra Pradesh (“High Court”) in a similar matter (being Writ Petition No. 1930072012 filed by Neogen Properties
Pvi Ltd.) wherein a stay was granted by the High Court until further orders. The matter is currently pending before the Tribunal. Future cash flows in cespect of above
matters are determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending at various forums/autherities




43 Management and Support fees

A Management Fees*
Property Management Fee
Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 29 June 2020 as amended, the Manager is entitled to fees @ 3% of the total rent ( lease and fitout, car park
charges or any other compensation on account of letting out) per annum of the relevant property in respect to eperations, maintenance and management of the SPVs, as
appheable to be reduced to the extent of employee cost directly incurred by the SPVs. The fees 15 charged based on the billing done to the tenants The fees has been
determined te meet the ongoing costs of the Investment Manager to undertake the services provided to the SPVs
Property Management fees for the quarter and nine months ended 31 December 2023 amounts to Rs. 90 million and 320 million respectively and for the quarter and
nine months ended 31 December 2022 amounts to Rs |12 million and Rs 311 million respectively There are no changes during the period in the methodology for
computation of fees paid to the Manager

Support Services Fee

Pursuant 1o the Investiment Management Agreement dated 29 June 2020 as amended. the Manager is entitled to fees (@ 0 5% of the total rent ( lease and fitout, car park
charges or any other compensation on account of letting out) per annum of the relevant property in respect to general administration and other support service of the
SPVs, as applicable The fees has been determined to meet the ongoing costs of the [nvestment Manager to undertake the services provided te the SPVs  The fees is
charged based on the billing done to the tenants

Support Management fees for the quarter and nine months ended 31 December 2023 amounts to Rs 23 million and 67 million respectively and for the quarter and nine
months ended 31 December 2022 amounts to Rs 21 million and Rs 59 million respectively There are ne changes during the period in the methodology for computation
of fees paid to the Manager

REIT Management Fees

Pursuant t the [nvestment Management Agreement dated 21 November 2019, Investment Manager 15 entitled to fees @ 0 5% of REIT Net Distributable Cash Flows
which shall be pavable either in cash or in Units or a combination of both. at the diseretion of the Investment Manager. The fees has been determined for undertaking
management of the RETT and its investments The REIT Management fees (including GST) acerued for the quarter and mine months ended 31 December 2023 amtounts
to Rs 17 million and 31 million respectively and for the quarter and nine months ended 31 December 2022 amounts to Rs 17 million and Rs 51 million respactiveh
There are no changes during the period in the methodolegy for computation of fees paid to the Investiment Manager

*Refer Note-48 for related party disclosure

B Business Support Services -

REIT 5PVs have entered into support services agreements wath I Kabheja Corporate Services Private Limited (KRCSPL) {Now I Raheja Corp Real Estate Private
Limited { "KRCREPL™} pursuant to the demerger of the services business front KRCSPL into KRCREPL effective September 1, 2023} under which KRCSPL had
agleed iv proysde projeot related support activities w the REIT SPvs The agreement was further amended during the previous year tor reduction n the quarterty fees
payable with effect frem 1 April, 2022
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003
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45 Financial instruments
A The camying value of financial instruments by categories are as below:

Financial assets

As at
31 December 2023

As at
31 March 2023

Fair value through Other Compreheusive Income ('FYTOCI")

Investments in equity instruments 0 ]
Amortised cost
Investments = non-current 33 29
Trade receivables 635 572
Cash and cash equivalents 3,356 4,062
Other bank balances 2,804 206
Other financial assets 6,945 5,061
Total assets 13,773 9.930
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 66,998 54,535
Lease Liabilities 138 127
Security deposits 9,058 2607
Trade payables 885 709
Other financial liabilities (other than Security deposits) 3,362 3.242
_Total liabilitics 81,441 67,220

The Management considers that the carrving amount of the above financial assets and liabilities approximates to their fair value

. Measurement of fair values
The section explains the judeement and estimaies made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
4) recogiuised and measured at fair vatue
b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements

To provide an mdication about the reliability of the inputs used i determining far value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is mentioned below:

Fair value hievarchy
* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date:

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1. that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
» Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

The following table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of assets and liabilties measured at fair value on recurring basis as at 31 December 2023.

Finawncial instruments
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 December 2023:

Particulars Date of valuation Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets measured at fair value:
FYTOCI financial investments: 12/31/2023
FYTOCI financial investments: 313172023 0 - - 0

C  Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
There were no transters between Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 during the period ended 31 December 2023 and vear ended 31 March 2023

D Determination of fair values
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods When applicable.
further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values 1s disclosed in the notes specitic to thal asset or hability

i} The tair value of mutual funds are based on price quotations at reporting date

lent o their carrying values

it) The fair values of other current financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be equiv:
iii) The fair values of borrowings at fixed rates are considered to be equivalent to prcscg.v,(g-%m::‘l_é
P
s

rate 4
iv} Security deposits accepted are measured at far value based on the discounted

borrowing rate :
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46 Segment information
Primary segment information
The primary reportable segment 15 business segment
Business Segment
‘The Mindspace Group is orgatised into the two operaung divisions - 'real estate’ and “power distribution”. which are determined based on the nternal orgamsation and
management stiucture of the Mindspace Group and its system of internal financial reporting and the nature of its nisks and its returns The Board of Directors of the
manager has been identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM) CODM evaluates the Mindspace Group's performance, allocates resources based on
analysis of varous performance indicators of the Giroup as disclosed below
Real estare
Real estate comprises development and management of projects under Special Economic Zong {SEZ), Information Technology Parks and other comnmercial assets The
Giroup has its projectpropetties in Mumbai Region. Hyderabad, Pune and Chenna: for developrment and management of commercial SEZ, 1T parks and commercial
assets including incidenral activines
Power disteibotion
The slate power cezulator has taken an recard the SEZ developer MBPPL . Gigaplex, Sundew and KRC [nfra as Degmed Distibubon Licensee for Power The
approved SPVs being Deemed Distributor, supplies power (o custamers wilhin the notified SE7

For the quarter ended 31 December 2023

[ | Heal estate Power Linallncable Inter segment Total
| Particulars | distribution ¢limination
[Sewment revenue | 3.806 297 2 (162 6,001
Segment resull I 3.350 | 6 (152)| = 3,404
ILess Fiance cost r4 0 1.047 - 1161
Add: Interest income - ather income 11 0 36 - 107
Profit - tloss) before tax 347 6 (1103 2350
Less Tax - - | 883 883
Profit / (Loss) after tax 3447 | 6| (1.986) 1467
For the quarter ended 30 September 2023
| Real estate | Power | Tmallocable Inter segment Total|
Particelurs distribution | elimination
Segment revenus : 8110 286 | - {103) 6,203
Seument resull 342 9 139y - 3dun |
Leds Findnce cosg 13 | 1 h33 s
Add Interestineome  other meome 17 | I 92 Ho
Protie dhosst betone 1as 33523 10 (1082 2438
haess Taw - - 946 G446
Profic / (1 nss) alter vax 3.523 ‘ 10 ‘ (2,028)| - 1.505
Fur the quarter ended 31 December 2022

Real estate Power Unallocable | Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
Segnent revenye 5415 207 = 164) 3.558
Sepment resull 3349 (28) 170y - 3151
Finance cost a5 0 8106 - 0905
[nterest income  other income -4 0 38 46
Profit < {loss1 hefore tax 3262 (2% 1942) - 2292
Tax | 027 - 1027
Viofii 7 (Lossy alter dax B | — 3,202 [p4]] (1,969 - 1,265
Fur the nine months ended 31 December 2023
| Real estate Power Unallocabie Inter sepment Total
Parviicudars distribution i tion
Sewinent revenue 17,617 R8A - 310 18,192
Sewment resalt 13594 20 1430) - 10,184
Less: Finance cost 306 | 0 3,069 - | 3373
Add Interest income  other income 100 2 234 - 336
Profit - {loss) before tax 10,388 21 (3.264) 7,145
Less: Tax - - 2 803 = 2,803
Profit / {Luss) after tax 10,358 20 (60671 - 4.342

4




For the nine months ended 31 December 2022

Real estate Power Unallecable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination ]
Segment revenne 16,698 651 - (195 17,154
Segment result 9,351 N (462) = 8.862
Less: Finance cost 283 0 2,168 - 2,454
Add: [nterest income / other income 12 I 151 - 164
Profit / (loss) before tax 9,078 (26} (2,480 - 6,572
Tax - - 3150 - 3150
Profit / {Loss) after tax 9,078 (26) (5,630) - 3,422
For the vear ended 31 March 2023
Particalars Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Taetal

distribution elimination

Segment revenue 22231 84 - (251} 22821
Segment result 12,586 {53) (5700 - 11,963
Less: Finance cost 380 {4) 3,055 - 3431
Add: Interest inceme / other income 31 5 184 - 220
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 12,237 {44) (3,441 - 3752
Less: Exceptional Items {refer note 51 A and 31B) {1,368) - - - {1,368)
Profit / (loss) before tax 10,869 (44} (3,441) - 7,384
Tax = - 4,299 a 4,209
Profit / (Loss) after tax 10,869 {4d) (77400 - 3.085
For the nine months ended 31 December 2023
Other Information

Real estate Power Linallocable Inter segment Total
Particelars distribution elimination
Segment assels 225 N5 1.700 2,492 236,007
Segment liabilitics 12.305 1.341 72,244 - 85,800
Capita! cxpenditire g4t b3 i 3419
| Depreciation & amorlisation - 2,819 68 - | | 2,887
For the year eoded 31 March 2023
Other Informatien
! Realestate | Fower | Unalceable ‘ Inter segment Total _:
|Pavticuyrs distribution | | elimination | |
Sepment assels 219012 | 1795 65,424 237,231
Segment liabilities 11524 f33 54,228 71,445
Capital expenditure 7.263 3 - | = 7.266
Depreciation & amortisation 3460 | 04 | 3554

Secondary segment information

Mindspace Group's operations are based in Tndia and therefore the Group has only ene geographical segment - India

Segment accounting policies are in line with accounting policies of the Mimdspace Group. In addition, the Tollowing specific accounting policies have been followed for

segiment reporting:

Segment revenve includes mcome directly atinbutable to the segment

Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are repocted under respective reportable segment

Revenue and expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed under ‘Unaliocable’

Borrowings and finance cost of the Group which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed under ‘Unallocable’
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47 MNon-controlling interest

As at 31 December 2023

For the Quarter ended
31 December 2023

Name of the entigy Met assets Share in total comprehensive income
As a % of consolidated Amount As g %o of consolidated
net assets total cormprehensive Amount
ncomse
Parent
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 04.9% 143,353 93.9% 1,378
SPVs
Intinse Properties Limited 1.4% 1,665 1.4% 21
K. Raheja IT Park {Hyderabad) Limited I 4% 2,062 1.1% 16
Sundew Propertics Limited - 2.6% - 3.037 3% 52
Consolidated net ussets! lota! comprehensive income % 151017 100% 1467
- - For the quarter ended
As at 3 September 2023 30 September 2023
Name of the entity Net assets Share in total comprehensive income
As a % of consolidated Amount As a % of consolidated
aet asseis total comprehensive
. Amount
income
e S SmeE SR — =
Mindspace Business Packs REIT 94 0% 144 816 93.8% la4i2
SPVs
Intime Properties Limite.} 1% 1677 14% 22
K. Raheja [T Park {Hydesabad) Limited 1 4% 2086 1 1% 17
Sundew Proverries e e o o BB BORF 3 - 35
CToen) compre ) . 0%, o 132,502 RS
As at 2! December 2022 For the Querter ended

31 December 2022

Nome of the entiry —— _ Netawsets ___ Share in total comprelicnsive income
As a %% of eonsolidated Amount As a % of consolidated
net assets todal comprehensive
Amuunr
income

Parent

Mindspace Business Parg, RET] 4 8% 150,969 a1 6% 5159
SPVs

Intime Properties Limnited 1% 1,694 2.1% 26
K. Raheja [T Park {Hyderabad) Limited 1.6% 2,519 21% 27
Sundew Propetties Limited 2.5% 4.036 4.2% 33
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive income 100% 159,218 100%: Lﬁ

As at 31 December 2023

For the pine months ended
31 December 2023

Mame of the entity B Ner assets Share in total comprehensive income
As a % of consolidated Amount As a Y% of consolidated Amount
net assets total comprehensive
income
Parent T
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 04.9% 143,353 93.6% 4,065
5PVs
Intime: Properties Linvited 1 1% 1,665 1.5% 65
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Litnited 1 4% 2,062 1.2% 51
Sundew Properties Limited 2.6% 1937 3.7% 161
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive income 100% 151,017 100% ] 4342




As at 31 December 2022 For the nine months ended

31 December 2022

Name of the entity Share in total comprebensive i
As a %% of consolidated Amount Asa % of
net assets consolidated total Amount
comprehensive
income
Parent
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94 3% 150,969 91 4% 3126
SPY¥s
Intime Properties Limited 11% 1,694 22% 76
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 1.6% 23519 1.9% 66
Sundew Properties Limited 2.5% 4,036 4.5% 154
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive income 100% 159,218 100% 3422
As at 31 March 2023 For the year ended
31 March 2023
Name of the entity Share in_total comprehensive income
As a % of ¢ lidated A As a % of
net assets consolidated totsl
i Amount
comprehensive
Parent
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 54.9% 147,827 91.9% 2,830
SPVs
[ntime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,688 33% 103
K. Raheja 1T Park (Hyderabad) Limited 15% 227N {1 6%) {49)
Sundew Properties Limited 2 5% 3,996 6 4% 196
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive income 100% 155,782 10¥% 3.079

{i) lntime Properties Limited

Summarised balance sheet

Particulars As at s at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023

Mon-current assels 14,512 14,542
Current assets 1604 1.658
Non-current liabilities {166 {155}
Current lizbilities (814) {7043
Met assets 15,136 15341
NCI hollings 1A% 11.0%
Carrying amount of Non-controlling interests 1,665 1688

The following table summarises the financial information relating to subsidiacies which have material Non-conteolling interest




Summarised statement of profi¢ & loss and Cash tlow
Particulars

Tuwial comprehensive income for the period

Attributable to Non-controlling interest
Total comprehensive income for the period

Cush Nows from/ {used in) :

Operating activities

Lnvesting activities

Fmancing activities

Net increasef (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(51} K. Rahejs 1T Park (Hyderabad) Limited

{ili]

Summarised balance sheet
Particulars

Mun-current assets

Currenl assets

Mon-current |iabilities

Current liabilities

Net assels

NCI holdings

Carrying amount of Non-controlling interests

Summarised statement of profit & loss and Cash Mow
Particulars

Tulal comprehensive income for the period

Attributable to Non-controlling interest
Total comprehensive income for the period

Cash flows from:

Operating activities

Investing activities

Financing activitics

Nel increase in cash and cash equivalents

Sundew Properties Limited
Summarised balance sheet
Particulars

Non-current asse1s

Current assets

Non-gurrent liabilities

Current liabilities

Net assets

NCI holdings

Carrying amount of Non-controlling interests

For the quarier ended
31 December 2023
{Unaudited)

191

21

30
{1
(33}
{4}

As at
3l December 2023

23,133
552
(3,377
(1,561)
18,747
11.0%
2,062

For the quarter ended
31 December 2023
{Unaudited)

141

16

25
{95)
48

18

As at
31 December 2023

46,174
674
4,610y
(6,451}
35,787
11.0%
3,937

For the quarter ended
A0 September 2023
{Unaudited)

198

2

1

F|
{33)
t18)

Asal
31 March 2023

22,000
383
{662)
(1,075)
20,647
il 0%

2.27)

For the quarter ended

30 September 2023
(Unaudited)

155

17

23
(23}
(17}
733

Asat

31 March 2023

46,435
405
(8,555)
(1.95%)
36,326
11 0%
3.996

For the quarter ended  For the nine months

31 December 2022
{Unavdited)

238

26

31

25

ended 31 December

2023 {Unaudited)

593

65

El

(88)
th

For the yuanier ended  For the nine months

3] Devember 2022
{Unaudited)

247

27

29
66

(93)
»

ended 3| December

2023 (Unaudited)

461

5

69
(150)
6
3

For the nine months
ended 31 December
2022 {Unaudited)

691

76

§2
42
1%

For the nine months
ended 31 December
2022 (Unaudited)

604

66

76
78

175}
21y

For the year ended
31 March 2023
(Audited)

103

112

(152)

For the year ended
31 March 2023
{Audited)

{449}

49y

L}
w2
429)

(26}



Summarised statement of profit & loss and Cash Mow

Particular: -
il For the quarter ended For the quarter ended  For the quarter ended  For the nine months  For the nine months For the year ended
31 December 2023 30 September 2023 31 December 2022 ended 31 December  ended 31 December 31 March 2023
(Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) 2023 (Unsudited) 2022 {Unaudited) {Audited)
Total comprehensive income for the period o 477 500 433 1 460 1,398 1,778
Atiributable to Non-controlling interest
Total comprehensive income for the period ) 52 55 53 161 154 196
Cash Dows from/ {used in} :
Operating activities 112 105 111 324 304 417
[nvesting activities (n %3] 10 (50) 3 51
Financing aclivities (76} {1191 (103) (290 1307 (443}
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 18 (22) . 18 (17 (&) 25
Total carrying amount of NCJ 7,664 6 89 7,664 8,249 7,955
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48 Related party disclosures
A Parties o Mindspace REIT as at 31 December 2023 {Refer Mote 1}

SL No Particutars

-

R B

1o

13

Trustee

Manapger

Sponsors

Sponsors Group

Sponsors Group

MName of Entities

Axis Trustee Services Limited

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited { formerly
known as K Raheja Corp [nvestmenl Managers LLP)Y***

Anbee Constructions LLP

Cape Trading LLP

tr Chandru L. Raheja
Mr Ravi C Raheia
Mr Meel!  Raheia
Mrs Jvoti T Raheia
Mz Sumati Raheia

Capstan Fradmge LLP

Casa Maria Properties LLP

Faghukool Estate Developement LLP

Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP

K Raheja Corp Pnvate Limited

Promoters/Partmers”™

Axis Bank Lunited**

Mr Ravi C Raheja
Mr Meel C Rabeja

Mr Ravi C Raheja
Mr Meel C Rahgja
Mr Chandru L. Raheja
Mirs Jyoli T Raheja
Mz Sumati Raheja

Mr Ravi C Raheja
Mr Neel C Raheja
Mr Chandru L Raheja
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja

Mt Ravi C Rahegja
Mr MNeel C Rabeja
Mr Chandru L Raheja
Mrs Jyon O Rabeja

Mr Ravi C Raheja
Mr MNeel T Raheja
Mr Chandru L Raheja
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja

Mr Ravi T Raheja
Mr Heel C Raheja
Mr Chandru L Raheja
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja

Mr Ravi C Raheja
Mr Neel C. Raheja
Mr Chandru L Raheja
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja

Mr Chandeu L Raheja Jointly with
Mrs Jyoti T Raheja

Mrs Jyoil C Raheja Jomtly with
Mr Chandu L Raheja

Mr Ravi C Raheja Joinly with
Mr Chandry L Raheja Jointly wilh
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja

Mr. Neel C Raheja Jointly with
Mr Chandru L Rabeja Jointly with
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja

Anbee Consiructions LLP

Cape Trading LLF

Capslan Trading LLP

Casa Maria Properties LLP
Raghukool Estate Developernent LLP
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP
Mr Neel C Raheja Jointly with

Mr Ramesh M Valecha

Directors

Ms Deepa Rath

Mr Rajesh Kwnar Dahiya
Mr Ganesh Sankaran

Mr Ravi C Rahejawef
July 7, 2023

Mr Neel C Rahejawef
July 7, 2023

Mr Deepak Ghaisaswe f,
July 11, 2023

Mr Bobby Parikh w e f,
July 11, 2023

Ms Manisha Girotra w.e f.
July 11, 2023

Mr Manish Kegriwal w e .
July 11, 2023

Mr ¥Vinod Rolira

w e [ Sepiember 1, 2023

Ravi C Raheja
Heel C Raheja
Ramesh Valecha
Ramesh Ranganthan
Swunil Hingorani



Chandeu L Raheja

Iyoti C Raheja

Ivory Properties & Hotels Pvi Lid
15 Ivory Property Trust RaviC Raheja

Meel C. Raheja

(all are mmistees)

Mr Ravi C Raheja Jointly with Ravi C Raheja
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with Neel C Raheja
S G
ponsors Group Mrs Jyoti C Rabeja Ramesh Valecha
Ramesh Ranganthan
Mr Meel C Raheja Jowntly with
16 Genext Hardware & Parks Pt Ltd Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja
Chandru L Rahgja jointly with Jyon C Raheja,
for and on behalf of beneficiaries of [vory
Property Trust
1 Avacade Properties and Trading (India)
Private Limited
2. Gigaplex Estate Private Limited
3 Horizonview Properties Private Limited
17 Names of SPVs/subsidiaries 4 KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private

Limited
5 Intime Properties Limited
& Sundew Properiies Limited
7 K Rahgga IT Park (Hyderabad} Lwnited
8 Mindspace Business Parks Private Limired

Mr Deepak Ghaisas {Independent Member)

Ms Manisha Girotra {Independent Member)

Mr Bobby Parikh (Independent Member)

Mr Mamish Kejriwal {Independent Member)

r Ravi C Raheta (Mon Executive Non Independent Membery

r Meel C Raheja (Non Execurive Non Independent Member)
Mr Vinod Rohira w e £ September I, 2023 {Nen Executive Moo
Independent Member)

Board  of Dimtorstovemingm
Board and Key Managerial

18 Personnel of the Moanager (K
Raheja Corp Investment Managers
Private Limited)»**

Mr Ramesh MNair (Chief Executive Officer) w e . September |,
2023

M Winod Rolura i Chiel” Executive Oficer) ] Augusd 31, 2023
Ms Preeti Chheda {Chief Financial Officer)

Brookfields Agro & Development Privale Limiled
Grange Hotels And Properties Private Limited
linmense Properties Private Limited

Entities contcolled/jointly Movel Properties Private Linuted
9 controlled by members of Pact Real Esiate Private Limigd
Governing Board/key Managerial Paradigm Logistivs & Disinbution Private Limited
Personnel of the manager Aqualine Real Esiate Privaie Limiled

K Raheja Corp Real Eslate Private Limited (Fonmerly known as
"Feat Propenties Privaie Limited") (il 8th August 2023}
Carin Properties Private Limited

Asterope Properties Private Limited

Content Properties Private Limited

Gencoval Sirategic Services Private Limited

Stemade Biolech Private Limited

Hariom Infrafacilities Services Private Limited

K Raheja Corp Advisory Services {Cyprus) Private Limited
Convex Properties Private Limited

M/s Bobby Parikh & Associates

Relative of Board of Directors and
20 Key Managerial Personnel of the  Meera Robira (Wife of Mr Vinod Robira)

Manager Kil'l_g
) gy
= o
0 &

%o

* only when acting collectively

** Axis Bank Limited, being a promoter of Axis Trustee Services Limited (“Trustee™), trusiee to Mindspace Business Parks REIT, also a Debenture Trustee regulated by SEBL, is considered
as a refated party of Mindspace REIT in line with the SEBL REIT Regulations based on recem directions froin SEBI dated 12 June 2023

**+ K Rabeja Corp Invest Managers LLF (M } is converted into a pavate company as per Rule 3 of Companies { Autheosed to Register} Rules 2014 Since the Manager has

received approval for the conversion effective July 07, 2023, The Manager, therefore, stands converted into a private company i ¢, K Raheja Corp lovestment Managzers Private Limited
effective July 97, 2023
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4% Relared party disclosnres

B. Related parties with whom the transactions bave taken place duving the period / year

Particalars

For the qwarter ended

31 December 2023
{Unandited)”

For the quarter ended
30 September 2023
{Unaudited)*

For the quarter ended
3 December 2022
{Unaudited)*

For the mine months ended
31 December 2025

(Unaudited)

For the nine months

ended 31 December 2022

{Unaudited)

For year ended
31 March 2023
{Audiled)

Property Manag:
K Raheja Corp [nvastment Managers Private Limited

(formerly known as K Raheja Corp Invesiment Managers

LLP)

Investment Management Fees
K Raheja Corp [nvestment Managers Privale Limited

(formerly known as K Raheja Corp Invesiment Managers

LLP)

Trustee fee expenses
Axis Trustee Services Limited

Legal & professional fees
M/s Bobby Parikh and Associates

Leasing Incomedrelated recoveries
Axis Bank Limited***

Sivimg Fees
Neel C Raheja
Ravi C Raheja
Vinod N Rohira
Preety Chheda

Reimbarsement of Expenses
K Raheja Corp Invesiment Managers Private Limitad

(Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Lnvestment Managers

LLP)y*

Maintenance Services

Meera Rohira

Security Deposiis Received
Axis Bank Limuted

Repayment of Security Deposits
K Rahea Corp Prvate Limited
Axig Bank Limued

Sale of Assed
K Raheja Carp Private Limited
Aslerope Properties Private Limated

Material purchase
lvory Propemes & Hotels Pvi Lid

Overdrafli Drawn**
Axis Bank Limited

Qverdralt Repaid™*
Axis Bank Limited

Fized Deposit Placed
Axis Bank Limited

Fixed Deposit Redeemed
Axis Bank Limited

Interest Income on Fixed Deposit
Axis Bank Limited

Term Loan Repald

Axis Bank Limited

loterest Expemse {Including capitalised)
Axis Bank Limted

Bank Charges and Commission
Azas Bank Limited

Fee and Support Services Fee

ns

17

- oo

12,102

12378

128

1076

9

H

133

11,333

11514

354

133

4

Qoo

6,168

6,031

413

E|

i

386

51

153

L=

ITTET

6,850

516

589

3631

P

1

370

5l

142

oo oo

21,381

20,643

1,322

1428

318

430

&

498

67

20%

hl == =1

*Includes fees pard to M/s Bobby Parkh & Associates for the quanter ended 31 December 2023 is Nil, 0 million for the quarter ended 30 September 2023, Rs 0 million for the quarter ended 31 December 2022, Rs

O million for the mne months endad 31 December 2023, Rs O mallian for the nine months ended 31 December 2022 and Rs O mallian for the year ended 31 March 2023

t‘c‘ di
peniod reduced by bal of overdraft al the b
durtng the reponing penods and ly, gross of o

ant period 15 being considered However, for disclosure in the fi

** |ncludes ind a5 adjusiments

w the overdraft balances during the peniod, to ascertain the incremental borrowing for comphance under SEBI REIT R

Araft bl

draft facility avanled and repard are presented

the discl

during the

iz done based on the cumulative kransactions
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48 Related party disclosures
B. Related parties with whom the transactions have taken place during the period / year

Particulars For the quarter ended  For the quarterended  For the quarter ended  For the nine months ended For the ning months For year ¢nded
31 December 2023 30 September 2023 31 December 2022 31 December 2023 ended 31 December 2022 31 March 2023
{(Unaudited)* {Unaudited)* {Unauditedy* (Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Audited)}
Distribution paid to Sponsors, Sponsors Group, Board of directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Anbee Constructions LLP 170 170 168 510 506 669
Cape Trading LLP 170 170 168 510 506 669
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja 16 . 16 13 46 39 51
Mr. Neel C. Raheja 57 57 53 167 159 2u
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja 156 157 155 470 466 617
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja 19 19 18 56 55 73

{Trustee for and on behalf of
beneficiaries of lvory Property

Trust)

Mrs. Jyoti C. Rahegja 71 T 0 214 212 281
Capstan Trading LLP 197 197 195 592 587 777
Casa Maria Properties LLP 224 225 222 674 669 885
Palm Shelter Estate 197 197 195 592 587 777
Development LLP

Raghukool Estate Developement 201 202 199 605 599 793
LLP

Genext Hardware And Parks 11¢ 110 108 330 327 433
Private Limited

K Raheja Corp Private Limited 178 176 173 527 523 692
Mrs. Sumati R. Raheja 40 40 40 121 120 159
Mr. Bobby Parikh 0.2 0 0 0 0 ]
Mr. Manish Kejriwal 1 | 0 2 1 1
Mr. Vinod Rohira ¢ 0 0 1 1 1
Mr. Ramesh Nair Ll - - ] - -
Total distribution 1,804 1,808 1,778
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C.

Related party disclosures

Balances as at the period end

Particulars Ason
31 December 2023

Ason
31 March 2023

Other Receivable
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as -
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

Trade Payables

Meera Rohira

M/s Bobby Parikh and Associates

Axis Bank Limited

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

oo

45

Sidting Fees Payable
Neel C.Raheja

Ravi C.Raheja 0
Preeti Chheda -
Vinod N Rohira -

—

Other Financial Liabilities
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as
K Raheja Corp [nvestment Managers LLP) 17

Other Liabilities
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP) 26
Security Deposit

Axis Bank Limited 77
Co-Sponsor Initial Corpus

Anbee Constructions LLP 0
Cape Trading LLP 0

Bank Balance (Including Escrow and Dividend Account)**
Axis Bank Limited 3,327

Overdraft Balance
Axis Bank Limited 1,322

Fixed Deposit Balance
Axis Bank Limited 155

Interest Receivable on Fixed Deposit
Axis Bank Limited 1

Term Loan
Axis Bank Limited* 2,655

Trade Receivable
Axis Bank Limited

Non-Fund Based Facilities
Axis Bank Limited 463
* Includes ind as adjustments

** |ncludes Book overdraft balances

=]

PR e i e i o

18

74

3,276

464

218

6,285

53

392
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49 In accordance with SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2021 and Other requirements as per SEB] circular (No.
SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated 13 April 2018} for issuance of debt securities by Real Estate Investment Trusts {REITs) and Infrastructure Investment Trusts (1ovITs), REIT has disclosed the
following ratios:

Quarter ended Nine months ended Year ended
Ratios J1-Dee-23 30-Sep-23 J1-Dec-22 31-Dec-23 31-Dec-22 31-Mar-23
F Security / Asset cover (NCD Series 1) (refer note a(ip) NA 157 2.52 NA 252 2.56
b Security / Asset cover {MLD Series 2} (refer note atiiy) 2,27 2.27 2.30 2.27 2.30 2,28
¢ Security / Asset cover (NCL) Series 2) {refer note afiii)} 234 2.42 241 2.3 241 241
d Security / Asset cover (NCD Series 3) {reler note a{iv)) 217 2.16 2107 217 2.16 2.16
o Security / Asset cover (Sundew 1) (refer note aiv)) 2.50 249 245 2.50 2.46 247
t Security / Asset cover (MBPPL 1) {refer note a(vi)) NA NA 2.56 NA 256 2.59
2 Security / Asset cover (NCD Series 4) (refer note a(vii)) 232 2.52 237 252 237 2.50
h  Security / Asset cover (Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1) (refer note atviiih 215 215 NA 2.15 NA 215
Security / Asset cover (NCD Series 6) (reler note a(ix)} 217 217 NA 217 NA NA
Security / Asset cover (NCD Series 7) (refer note a(x)) 216 216 NA 216 NA NA
k  Debt-equity ratio (in times) (refer note b) 0.45 042 033 0.45 0.33 0.35
I Debt service coverage ratio (in times) {refer note c) 3.0 217 345 1.23 342 228
mii} Interest service coverage ratio (in times) (reter note d) 417 4,32 497 4.27 524 5.04
miii) Outstanding redecmable preference shares (quantity and value) NA NA NA NA NA NA
n  Capital redemption reserve NA NA NA NA NA NA
0 Debenture redemption reserve {Amount in Rs millions) 4010 400 448 400 448 33
pii)  Net worth (Amount in Rs, millions) 151,017 152,562 159.218 151017 159218 155.782
plii) Net profit after tax {Amount in Rs. millions) 1.468 1,505 1.265 4.342 3.422 3.085
q  Earnings per unit- Basic (Rupees/unit) (after net movement in Regutatory 232 238 195 6.85 5.27 478
Delerral Balances)
r  Eamings per unit- Diluted {Rupees/unit) (after net movement in Regulatory 232 2.38 1.95 6.85 527 4.74
Deferral Balances)
s Current Ratio (in times) {refer note f) 037 042 0.41 0.37 041 0.44
t  Long term debt to working capital (in times) (refer note h) {241 (3.05) {440 {241 4.40 453
u  Bad debts to account receivable ratio (in tlimes} (refer note |) {000 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.07 013
v Current liability ratio {in times} (refer note i} 036 0.33 .25 036 0.25 0.26
w  Total debt to total assets {in times) (refer nute j) 029 0.28 .23 0.29 023 0.24
x  Debtors Tumover (in times) (refer note k) 2463 29.32 16.86 40.19 42 84 58.37
y  Inventory Tumover® NA NA NA NA NA MNA
z  Operating Margin {in %) {refer note m) 1% 69% 72% 70% 65% 66%
ag  Net Profit Margin (in %) (refer note n) 24% 24% 23% 23% 20% 13%
ab  Sector Specific equivalent ratio* NA NA NA Na NA NA
*Not Applicable (NA)
ng
3
% © %
73

* O



Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows basis condensed consolidated Interim financial statements {including non-controlling interest} ;-

a1)
afii)
aiii)
afiv)
aiv)
avi)
alvi)
alviij)
a(ix}
i)
biii)
c)

d)

€)
f)
gl

h}
i1
n
k)
1}
m)

n}

A2

Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Serics 1)= Lower of Fair value of the secured assets as computed by two independent valuers / {Outstanding principal amount of NCD Series | + Interest accrued thereon)

Security / Asset cover ratio (MLD Serics 2} = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuer / (Qutstanding principal amount of MLD Series 2 + Interest accrued thereon?

Security / Assct cover ratip (NCD Series 2) = Fair vatue of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / (Outstanding principal amount of NC1? Series 2 + Interest accrued thereon)
Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Serics 3) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / {Outstanding principal amount of NCD Series 3 + Interest accrued thereon)

Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Sundew 1) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / {Qutstanding principal amount of NCD Sundew 1 + Interest accrued thereon)
Security / Asset ¢over ratio (NCD MBPPL |} = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / {Ouistanding principal amount of NCD MBPPL | + Interest accrued thereon)

Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Scries 4) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / (Ouistanding principal amount of NCD Series 4 + [nterest accrued thereon), (This ratio has
been calculated basis valuation report)

Security / Asset cover ratie (Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / (Outstanding principal amount of Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 + Interest
accrued thereon)

Security / Assetl cover rativ (NCD Series 6) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independunt valuers / (Qutstunding principal amount of NCD Series 6 + Interest acerued thereon)
Total Debt = Long term borrowings (Non-cuerent) + Short term borrowings (current) + Lease liabilities (current and non-current) + Interest accrued on debts (current and non-cument)

Debt Equity Ratie = Total Debt/Total Equity (including non-controlling interest)

Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings befure interest {net of capitalization}, depreciation, exceptional items and tax / {Interest expenses {net of capitalization} + Principal repayments made during the period
which excludes bullet and full repayment of external borrowings)

Interest Service Coverage Ratio = Eamnings before interest {net of capitalization}, depreciation, exceplional items and tax / (Interest expense {net of capitalisation})

Net worth = Corpus + Unit capital + Other equity {including non-controlling imerest)

Current ratio = Current assets/ Current liabilities
Long term Debt = Long term borrowings (excluding current maturitics of long term debt) + Lease liabilities {Non-current) + Interest accrued on debts (Non-current}

Long term debt to working capital ratio = Long term debt (Non-current) / working capital (i.¢. Current assets less current liabilities)

Current liability ratio = Current liabilities/ Total liabilitics including regulatory liabilities

Total debt to total assets = Total deb¥/ Total assets including regulatory assets

Debtors Tumover = Revenue from operations {Annualised) Average trade receivable

Bad debts to account receivable ratio = Bad debits {including provision for doubtful debts) / Average trade receivable

Operating margin = {Earnings before interest {net of capitalization}, depreciation, exceptional items and 1ax — Other income — Interest income} / Revenue {rom operations

Net profit margin = Profit after exceptional ilems and tax/ Total Income
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50 a) The figures for the quarter ended 31 December 2023 are the derived figures between the figures in respect of the nine months
ended 31 December 2023 and the figures for the half year ended 30 September 2023, which are subjected to limited review,

b) The figures for the quarter ended 31 December 2022 are the derived figures between the figures in respect of the nine months
ended 31 December 2022 and the figures for the half year ended 30 September 2022, which were subjected to limited review,

¢} The figures for the quarter ended 30 September 2023 are the derived figures between the figures in respect of the half year
ended 30 September 2023 and the figures for the quarter ended 30 June 2023, which are subjected to limited review.

S1A  During the previous year, KRIT had proposed to redevelop Buildings 7 and 8 at Mindspace, Madhapur, Hyderabad (forming part
of Group’s “Real estate” segment) as these were expected to be vacated by the tenant by March 2023. Vacation of these buildings
provides the Company an opportunity to evaluate the possibility of redevelopment which would potentially increase the area of the
building, help incorporating new upgraded facilities, enhance the marketability of the buildings and also offer future consolidation
opportunities to existing tenants in the Park with continuity and growth. Basis the assessment by the SPV of the opportunity and
concurrence from the Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Lid. (TSIIC) vide its letter dated March 13, 2023, the
SPV proposed to redevelop the said buildings subject to the receipt of statutory approvals & clearances as may be required for the
proposed redevelopment. Accordingly, the Group has charged the written down value of the said buildings, infrastructure plant
and machinery as at March 31, 2023 amounting to Rs. 1,297 million to the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
and considered the same as an Exceptional Item for the year ended March 31, 2023.

51B  During the previous yeat, An impairment loss of Rs. 72 million related to GIS substation asset at Gigaplex Airoli forming part of
Group’s “Real estate™ segment. The impairment charge arose due to technological obsolescence of asset and therefore,
impairment loss has been considered for the carrying value of the asset and considered the same as an Exceptional Item for the
year ended March 31, 2023,

52 Intime has received show cause notice during the previous year from the Jurisdictional GST Authority for the periods beginning
July 2017 to March 2020 for not considering charging of GST, on the recovery of utilities being clectricity, water and DG back-up
power provided to tenants, amounting to Rs. 100 million. The Management, after due consultation with the Consultant, is of the
view that the charges towards electricity and DG back-up power are incurred in the capacity of a *pure agent’ as covered under
Rule 33 of CGST Rules, 2017 and also such supplies are exempt as per the Exemption Notification and hence to be excluded from
the value of taxable supply. The Management had filed its detailed response to the show cause notice. Based on the facts of the
case and the provisions of the GST law, no provision has been made w.r.t. recovery of electricity and DG back-up power.

53 Considering the weak micro market dynamics and no immediate demand visibility, the Board of Directors of the Manager, at its
meeting held on January 29, 2024 approved initiation of the process of sale of Mindspace Pocharam, comprising all piece and
parcel of land admeasuring approximately 26 acres along with the structures thereon located at Mindspace Pocharam, Telangana
for the Asset. An active program for sale will be in place. On conclusion of the process, a detailed proposal shall be placed before
the Board for its consideration and approval. This investment property is part of “Real Estate™ segment of the Group.

54 Gigaplex, one of the SPV’s of Mindspace REIT, has received notice dated 11th December 2023 (“Demand Notice™) issued by

MIDC demanding differential premium of Rs.528 million on account of change in sharcholding pattem i.c. participation of the

Company into the Mindspace REIT. The group is of the view that any such demand is not payable. The Company had sent

intimation to MIDC of the participation by the Company into Mindspace REIT (“Transaction™ on 15th July 2020 (i.e. pre-

Transaction) and also on 5th October 2020 (i.c. post-Transaction) and also explained in detail the rationale why such Transaction

@’ﬁ._\uughl to be treated as a ‘Formal Transfer’ under the circulars issued by MIDC and only a standard transfer fee is payable which
\c\f

ill be a nominal ameunt only and not such a large amount as per the Demand Notice. The Company has sent its response to the
and Notice on 2nd January 2024 and once again reiterated its aforesaid position and thus the demand for differential premium
rroneous and unwarranted and has requested MIDC, inter alia, to withdraw/revoke the Demand Notice. iIn this regard, the
Umpany has been legally advised that under the MIDC Circulars issued with respect to the change in shareholding of any lessee

) /'/\ b
‘Q\\C% wmpdnv of MIDC, which Circulars are also referred to in the REIT Circular issued by MIDC, as long as the natural persons

~~——

belonging to the same family holding directly or indirectly in the lessee company by reckoning the shareholding within the
shareholding entity does not fall below 51% post transfer of shares of the lessee company as compared to the position prior to the
transfer of shares, the transfer premium payable will be a nominal sum being treated as a Formal Transfer under the MIDC
Rirculars. In pursuance of REIT acquiring entire shareholding of a Company, the position with respect to satisfying the said 51%
Adlding is fully satisfied and the Company has fumished substantial evidence and documents in support of the same to MIDC.
grefore, in Group’s view there is no such premium payable as demanded by MIDC except a nominal transfer premium as a
al Transfer for which the Company has made provision of Rs. 6 million in the books of account. The Company is also in the
cess of obtaining a written legal opinion to support Company’s aforesaid contentions. Considering pendency in the disposal of
is matter, in management’s view, no further provision is presently required to be made in the consolidated financial statements.

S5 "0" represents value less than Rs. 0.5 million.



ANNEXURE 2

Chartered Accountants

DeIOitte Lotus Corporate Park

1st Floor, Wing A- G

Haskins & SellsLLP CTS No 185/, Jay Coach

Off Western Express Highway
Goregaon (East)

Mumbai - 400 063
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1001

REF: NVS/2023-24/041

Independent Auditor’s Certificate on “"Statement of Security Cover and Compliance Status of
Financial Covenants” (“the Statement”) in respect of Market Linked Debentures Series 2 of
the Trust for the quarter ended and as at 31 December 2023

To,

The Board of Directors,

K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment
Managers LLP) (The “Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Plot No. C -30, Block ‘G,

Opp. SIDBI, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051

1.

2.

This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated July 18,2023

We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of Mindspace
Business Parks REIT (“the Trust”/ “REIT"), have been requested by the Management of the Trust to
certify the Statement in respect of Market Linked Debentures Series 2 of the Trust for the quarter
ended and as at 31 December 2023.

The Statement is prepared by the Management of Investment Manager from the unaudited books of
account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and its subsidiaries (REIT
SPVs) as at 31 December 2023 pursuant to requirements of Circular no. SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD
_ CRADT / CIR/ P /2022 / 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India
in terms of Regulation 54 read with Regulation 56(1)(d) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Regulation 15(1)(t) of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 (hereinafter referred
together as “the SEBI Regulations”), as amended, for the purpose of submission to IDBI Trusteeship
Services Limited, Debenture Trustee of the above mentioned Market Linked Debentures Series 2
(hereinafter referred to as “the Debenture Trustee”)/Stock exchanges. The responsibility for
compiling the information contained in the Statement is of the Management of the Investment
Manager and the same is initialed by us for identification purposes only.

Management’s Responsibility

3.

The preparation of the Statement is the responsibility of the Management of the Investment Manager,
including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and other relevant supporting records
and documents. This responsibility includes collecting, collating, validating data and design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Statement and applying an appropriate basis of preparation; and making estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances. The management is solely and entirely responsible for determining
the fair value of the assets included in the statement.

The Management of the Investment Manager is also responsible for ensuring that the Trust complies
with all the relevant requirements of the SEBI Regulations and Debenture Trust Deed for providing
all relevant information to the Debenture Trustees and for complying with all the covenants as
prescribed in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Regd. Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 27™ - 32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai
- 400 013, Maharashtra, India (LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)
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Auditor’'s Responsibility

5. Pursuant to the requirements of Circular no. SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD _ CRADT / CIR / P/ 2022
/ 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India, our responsibility for the
purpose of this certificate is to provide a limited assurance on whether the details included in the
Statement related to the Trust in respect of the Market Linked Debentures Series 2 for the quarter
ended and as at 31 December 2023 have been accurately extracted from the unaudited books of
account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs . This did
not include the evaluation of adherence by the Trust and REIT SPVs with all the applicable guidelines
of the SEBI Regulations.

6. The engagement involves performing procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to provide
limited assurance on the Statement as mentioned in paragraph 5 above. The procedures performed
vary in nature and timing from, and are less in extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement.
Consequently, the level of assurance obtained in a limited assurance engagement is substantially
lower than the assurance that would have been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement
been performed.

Accordingly, we have performed the following procedures in relation to the Statement:

a) Read the Statement received from the management of Investment manager.

b) Traced the book value of assets from the unaudited books of account of the Trust as at 31
December 2023 and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust, in the normal
course of its business.

c) Reviewed the Debenture Trust Deed to understand the nature of charge (viz. exclusive charge or
pari-passu charge) on assets.

d) Obtained Register of Charges filed by the REIT SPVs as per the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2013 to confirm the disclosure of the secured assets.

e) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Sundew Properties Limited ("REIT SPV"”) for
the book value of assets against which Market Linked Debentures Series 2 are mortgaged and
traced to the book value of assets included in the Statement of security cover.

f) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited,
Intime Properties Limited, Gigaplex Estate Private Limited and K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad)
Limited (“"REIT SPVs”) for the book value of assets against which other Debt Securities are
mortgaged and traced to the book value of assets included in Table II - Security cover on
consolidated basis for the listed entity.

g) Performed necessary inquiries with the management and obtained necessary representations.

h) Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the information included in the Statement.

i) Traced the fair value of the assets from the Valuation report issued by valuers provided to us by
the Management on which we have placed reliance.

j) Obtained the working prepared by the Management for compliance with the relevant ratios related
to the Trust and REIT SPVs and recomputed the ratios.

The unaudited financial results for the quarter ended 31 December 2023, have been reviewed by us,
on which we have issued unmodified conclusion vide our report dated 29 January 2024. Our review
of these unaudited financial results was conducted in accordance with the Standard on Review
Engagements ("SRE”) 2410 ‘Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent
Auditor of the Entity’, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). This
Standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance about whether
the financial results are free from material misstatement.
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7.

We conducted our examination and obtained the explanations in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI. This Guidance Note requires that
we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAL.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC)
1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Review Historical Financial Information, and
Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Conclusion

9.

Based on the procedures performed as referred to in paragraph 6 above and according to the
information, explanations and representation provided to us by the Management of the Investment
Manager, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the details included in the
Statement read with the notes related to the Trust have not been accurately extracted from unaudited
books of account of the Trust and REIT SPVs for the quarter ended and as at 31 December 2023 and
other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs.

Restriction on Use and Distribution

10. This certificate is addressed and provided to the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager solely

for the purpose of submission to the Stock exchanges/Debenture Trustee and should not be used by
any other person or for any other purposes without our prior consent in writing. Accordingly, we do
not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person
to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in
writing.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W / W-100018)

Digitally signed by

NileSh Nilesh Vasant Shah
Date: 2024.01.29
Vasa nt S ha h 13:39:38 +05'30'
Nilesh Shah
Partner

Membership No. 49660
UDIN: 24049660BKFRPD7591

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29 January 2024
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Chartered Accountants

DeIOitte Lotus Corporate Park

1st Floor, Wing A- G

Haskins & Sells LLP CTS No.185/A, Jay Coach

Off Western Express Highway
Goregaon (East)

Mumbai - 400 063
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1001

REF: NVS/2023-24/042

Independent Auditor’s Certificate on “Statement of Security Cover and Compliance
Status of Financial Covenants” (“the Statement”) in respect of Non-Convertible
Debentures Series 2 of the Trust for the quarter ended and as at 31 December 2023

To,

The Board of Directors,

K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as K Raheja Corp
Investment Managers LLP) (The “Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Plot No. C -30, Block ‘G’,

Opp. SIDBI, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated July
18,2023

2. We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of
Mindspace Business Parks REIT (“the Trust”/ “REIT”), have been requested by the
Management of the Trust to certify the Statement in respect of Non-Convertible
Debentures Series 2 of the Trust for the quarter ended and as at 31 December 2023.

The Statement is prepared by the Management of Investment Manager from the unaudited
books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and
its subsidiaries (REIT SPVs) as at 31 December 2023 pursuant to requirements of Circular
no. SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD _ CRADT / CIR/ P/ 2022 / 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued
by Securities and Exchange Board of India in terms of Regulation 54 read with Regulation
56(1)(d) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Regulation 15(1)(t) of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 (hereinafter referred together as
“the SEBI Regulations”), as amended, for the purpose of submission to IDBI Trusteeship
Services Limited, Debenture Trustee of the above mentioned Non-Convertible Debentures
Series 2 (hereinafter referred to as “the Debenture Trustee”)/Stock exchanges. The
responsibility for compiling the information contained in the Statement is of the
Management of the Investment Manager and the same is initialed by us for identification
purposes only.

Regd. Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 27" - 32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai
- 400 013, Maharashtra, India (LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)
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Management’s Responsibility

3.

The preparation of the Statement is the responsibility of the Management of the
Investment Manager, including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and
other relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility includes collecting,
collating, validating data and design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement and applying an appropriate
basis of preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. The
management is solely and entirely responsible for determining the fair value of the assets
included in the statement.

The Management of the Investment Manager is also responsible for ensuring that the Trust
complies with all the relevant requirements of the SEBI Regulations and Debenture Trust
Deed for providing all relevant information to the Debenture Trustees and for complying
with all the covenants as prescribed in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

5.

Pursuant to the requirements of Circular no. SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD _ CRADT / CIR
/ P/ 2022 / 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India, our
responsibility for the purpose of this certificate is to provide a limited assurance on
whether the details included in the Statement related to the Trust in respect of the Non-
Convertible Debentures Series 2 for the quarter ended and as at 31 December 2023 have
been accurately extracted from the unaudited books of account and other relevant records
and documents maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs . This did not include the evaluation
of adherence by the Trust and REIT SPVs with all the applicable guidelines of the SEBI
Regulations.

The engagement involves performing procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence
to provide limited assurance on the Statement as mentioned in paragraph 5 above. The
procedures performed vary in nature and timing from, and are less in extent than for, a
reasonable assurance engagement. Consequently, the level of assurance obtained in a
limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than the assurance that would have
been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement been performed.

Accordingly, we have performed the following procedures in relation to verification of the
Statement:

a) Read the Statement received from the management of Investment manager.

b) Traced the book value of assets from the unaudited books of account of the Trust as
at 31 December 2023 and other relevant records and documents maintained by the
Trust, in the normal course of its business.
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c) Reviewed the Debenture Trust Deed to understand the nature of charge (viz. exclusive
charge or pari-passu charge) on assets.

d) Obtained Register of Charges filed by the REIT SPVs as per the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 to confirm the disclosure of the secured assets.

e) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Mindspace Business Parks Private
Limited ("REIT SPV") for the book value of assets against which Non-Convertible
Debentures Series 2 are mortgaged and traced to the book value of assets included in
the Statement of security cover.

f) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Sundew Properties Limited,
Intime Properties Limited, Gigaplex Estate Private Limited and K. Raheja IT Park
(Hyderabad) Limited ("REIT SPVs"”) for the book value of assets against which other
Debt Securities are mortgaged and traced to the book value of assets included in Table
IT — Security cover on consolidated basis for the listed entity.

g) Performed necessary inquiries with the management and obtained necessary
representations.

h) Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the information included in the Statement.

i) Traced the fair value of the assets from the Valuation report issued by valuers provided
to us by the Management on which we have placed reliance.

j) Obtained the working prepared by the Management for compliance with the relevant
ratios related to the Trust and REIT SPVs and recomputed the ratios.

The unaudited financial results for the quarter ended 31 December 2023, have been
reviewed by us, on which we have issued unmodified conclusion vide our report dated 29
January 2024. Our review of these financial results was conducted in accordance with the
Standard on Review Engagements ("SRE”) 2410 ‘Review of Interim Financial Information
Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity’, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI"). This Standard requires that we plan and perform the review
to obtain moderate assurance about whether the financial results are free from material
misstatement.

7. We conducted our examination and obtained the explanations in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI. This
Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics
issued by the ICAIL

8. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality
Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Review Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Conclusion

9. Based on the procedures performed as referred to in paragraph 6 above and according to
the information, explanations and representation provided to us by the Management of
the Investment Manager, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the details included in the Statement read with the notes related to the Trust have not
been accurately extracted from unaudited books of account of the Trust and REIT SPVs
for the quarter ended and as at 31 December 2023 and other relevant records and
documents maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs.
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Restriction on Use and Distribution

10. This certificate is addressed and provided to the Board of Directors of the Investment
Manager solely for the purpose of submission to the Stock exchanges/Debenture Trustee
and should not be used by any other person or for any other purposes without our prior
consent in writing. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of
care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into
whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W / W-100018)

Nilesh Digitally signed by
Nilesh Vasant Shah
Va Sd nt Date: 2024.01.29
Shah 13:39:57 +05'30'
Nilesh Shah
Partner

Membership No. 49660
UDIN: 24049660BKFRPE6421

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29 January 2024
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Chartered Accountants

DeIOitte Lotus Corporate Park

1st Floor, Wing A- G

Haskins & se“s LLP CTS No.185/A, Jay Coach

Off Western Express Highway
Goregaon (East)

Mumbai - 400 063
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1001

REF: NVS/2023-24/043

Independent Auditor’s Certificate on “"Statement of Security Cover and Compliance Status of
Financial Covenants” (“the Statement”) in respect of Non-Convertible Debentures Series 3 of
the Trust for the quarter ended and as at 31 December 2023

To,

The Board of Directors,

K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment
Managers LLP) (The “Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Plot No. C -30, Block ‘G,

Opp. SIDBI, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051

1.

2.

This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 18 July 2023

We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of Mindspace
Business Parks REIT (“the Trust”/ "REIT"), have been requested by the Management of the Trust to
certify the Statement in respect of Non-Convertible Debentures Series 3 of the Trust for the quarter
ended and as at 31 December 2023.

The Statement is prepared by the Management of Investment Manager from the audited books of
account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and its subsidiaries (REIT
SPVs) as at 31 December 2023 pursuant to requirements of Circular no. SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD
_ CRADT / CIR/ P /2022 / 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India
in terms of Regulation 54 read with Regulation 56(1)(d) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Regulation 15(1)(t) of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 (hereinafter referred
together as “the SEBI Regulations”), as amended, for the purpose of submission to IDBI Trusteeship
Services Limited, Debenture Trustee of the above mentioned Non-Convertible Debentures Series 3
(hereinafter referred to as “the Debenture Trustee”)/Stock exchanges. The responsibility for
compiling the information contained in the Statement is of the Management of the Investment
Manager and the same is initialed by us for identification purposes only.

Management’s Responsibility

3.

The preparation of the Statement is the responsibility of the Management of the Investment Manager,
including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and other relevant supporting records
and documents. This responsibility includes collecting, collating, validating data and design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Statement and applying an appropriate basis of preparation; and making estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances. The management is solely and entirely responsible for determining
the fair value of the assets included in the statement.

The Management of the Investment Manager is also responsible for ensuring that the Trust complies
with all the relevant requirements of the SEBI Regulations and Debenture Trust Deed for providing
all relevant information to the Debenture Trustees and for complying with all the covenants as
prescribed in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Regd. Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 27™ - 32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai
- 400 013, Maharashtra, India (LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)
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Auditor’s Responsibility

5. Pursuant to the requirements of Circular no. SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD _ CRADT / CIR / P/ 2022
/ 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India, our responsibility for the
purpose of this certificate is to provide a limited assurance on whether the details included in the
Statement related to the Trust in respect of the Non-Convertible Debentures Series 3 for the quarter
ended and as at 31 December 2023 have been accurately extracted from the unaudited books of
account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs . This did
not include the evaluation of adherence by the Trust and REIT SPVs with all the applicable guidelines
of the SEBI Regulations.

6. The engagement involves performing procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to provide
limited assurance on the Statement as mentioned in paragraph 5 above. The procedures performed
vary in nature and timing from, and are less in extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement.
Consequently, the level of assurance obtained in a limited assurance engagement is substantially
lower than the assurance that would have been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement
been performed.

Accordingly, we have performed the following procedures in relation to verification of the Statement:

a) Read the Statement received from the management of Investment manager.

b) Traced the book value of assets from the unaudited books of account of the Trust as at 31
December 2023 and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust, in the normal
course of its business.

c) Reviewed the Debenture Trust Deed to understand the nature of charge (viz. exclusive charge or
pari-passu charge) on assets.

d) Obtained Register of Charges filed by the REIT SPVs as per the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2013 to confirm the disclosure of the secured assets.

e) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Gigaplex Estate Private Limited ("REIT SPV")
for the book value of assets against which Non-Convertible Debentures Series 3 are mortgaged
and other debts by Gigaplex Estate Private Limited against which entity has Pari Passu charge for
same assets and traced to the book value of assets and securities included in the Statement of
security cover.

f) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Sundew Properties Limited, Intime
Properties Limited, Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited and K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad)
Limited ("REIT SPVs”) for the book value of assets against which other Debt Securities are
mortgaged and traced to the book value of assets included in Table II - Security cover on
consolidated basis for the listed entity.

g) Performed necessary inquiries with the management and obtained necessary representations.

h) Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the information included in the Statement.

i) Traced the fair value of the assets from the Valuation report issued by valuers provided to us by
the Management on which we have placed reliance.

j) Obtained the working prepared by the Management for compliance with the relevant ratios related
to the Trust and REIT SPVs and recomputed the ratios.

The unaudited financial results for the quarter ended 31 December 2023, have been reviewed by us,
on which we have issued unmodified conclusion vide our report dated 29% January 2024. Our review
of these financial results was conducted in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements
("SRE") 2410 ‘Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity’, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"”). This Standard requires
that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance about whether the financial results
are free from material misstatement.
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7.

We conducted our examination and obtained the explanations in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI. This Guidance Note requires that
we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAL.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC)
1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Review Historical Financial Information, and
Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Conclusion

9.

Based on the procedures performed as referred to in paragraph 6 above and according to the
information, explanations and representation provided to us by the Management of the Investment
Manager, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the details included in the
Statement read with the notes related to the Trust have not been accurately extracted from unaudited
books of account of the Trust and REIT SPVs for the year ended and as at 31 December 2023 and
other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs.

Restriction on Use and Distribution

10. This certificate is addressed and provided to the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager solely

for the purpose of submission to the Stock exchanges/Debenture Trustee and should not be used by
any other person or for any other purposes without our prior consent in writing. Accordingly, we do
not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person
to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in
writing.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W / W-100018)

] Digitally signed by
Nilesh Nilesh Vasant Shah

Date: 2024.01.29
Vasant Shah 13:40:16 +05'30'

Nilesh Shah

Partner

Membership No. 49660

UDIN: 24049660BKFRPF8335

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29 January 2024
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Chartered Accountants

DeIOitte Lotus Corporate Park

1st Floor, Wing A- G

Haskins & se“s LLP CTS No.185/A, Jay Coach

Off Western Express Highway
Goregaon (East)

Mumbai - 400 063
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1001

REF: NVS/2023-24/044

Independent Auditor’s Certificate on “"Statement of Security Cover and Compliance Status of
Financial Covenants” (“the Statement”) in respect of Non-Convertible Debentures Series 4 of
the Trust for the quarter ended and as at 31 December 2023

To,

The Board of Directors,

K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment
Managers LLP) (The “Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Plot No. C -30, Block ‘G,

Opp. SIDBI, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051

1

2

. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 18 July 2023.

. We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of Mindspace

Business Parks REIT (“the Trust”/ “REIT”), have been requested by the Management of the Trust to
certify the Statement in respect of Non-Convertible Debentures Series 4 of the Trust for the quarter
ended and as at 31 December 2023.

The Statement is prepared by the Management of Investment Manager from the unaudited books of
account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and its subsidiaries (REIT
SPVs) as at 31 December 2023 pursuant to requirements of Circular no. SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD
_ CRADT / CIR /P /2022 / 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India
in terms of Regulation 54 read with Regulation 56(1)(d) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Regulation 15(1)(t) of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 (hereinafter referred
together as “the SEBI Regulations”), as amended, for the purpose of submission to Catalyst
Trusteeship Limited, Debenture Trustee of the above mentioned Non-Convertible Debentures Series
4 (hereinafter referred to as “the Debenture Trustee”)/Stock exchanges. The responsibility for
compiling the information contained in the Statement is of the Management of the Investment
Manager and the same is initialed by us for identification purposes only.

Management’s Responsibility

3.

The preparation of the Statement is the responsibility of the Management of the Investment Manager,
including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and other relevant supporting records
and documents. This responsibility includes collecting, collating, validating data and design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Statement and applying an appropriate basis of preparation; and making estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances. The management is solely and entirely responsible for determining
the fair value of the assets included in the statement.

The Management of the Investment Manager is also responsible for ensuring that the Trust complies
with all the relevant requirements of the SEBI Regulations and Debenture Trust Deed for providing
all relevant information to the Debenture Trustees and for complying with all the covenants as
prescribed in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Regd. Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 27™h - 32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai
- 400 013, Maharashtra, India (LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)
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Auditor’'s Responsibility

5. Pursuant to the requirements of Circular no. SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD _ CRADT / CIR / P/ 2022
/ 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India, our responsibility for the
purpose of this certificate is to provide a limited assurance on whether the details included in the
Statement related to the Trust in respect of the Non Convertible Debentures Series 4 for the quarter
ended and as at 31 December 2023 have been accurately extracted from the unaudited books of
account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs. This did
not include the evaluation of adherence by the Trust and REIT SPVs with all the applicable guidelines
of the SEBI Regulations.

6. The engagement involves performing procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to provide
limited assurance on the Statement as mentioned in paragraph 5 above. The procedures performed
vary in nature and timing from, and are less in extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement.
Consequently, the level of assurance obtained in a limited assurance engagement is substantially
lower than the assurance that would have been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement
been performed.

Accordingly, we have performed the following procedures in relation to verification of the Statement:

a) Read the Statement received from the management of Investment manager.

b) Traced the book value of assets from the unaudited books of account of the Trust as at 31
December 2023 and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust, in the normal
course of its business.

c) Reviewed the Debenture Trust Deed to understand the nature of charge (viz. exclusive charge or
pari-passu charge) on assets.

d) Obtained Register of Charges filed by the REIT SPVs as per the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2013 to confirm the disclosure of the secured assets.

e) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Sundew Properties Limited ("REIT SPV”) for
the book value of assets against which Non-Convertible Debentures Series 4 are mortgaged and
traced to the book value of assets included in the Statement of security cover.

f) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Mindspace Business Private Limited, Intime
Properties Limited, Gigaplex Estate Private Limited and K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited
("REIT SPVs") for the book value of assets against which other Debt Securities are mortgaged
and traced to the book value of assets included in Table II - Security cover on consolidated basis
for the listed entity.

g) Performed necessary inquiries with the management and obtained necessary representations.

h) Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the information included in the Statement.

i) Traced the fair value of the assets from the Valuation report issued by valuers provided to us by
the Management on which we have placed reliance.

j) Obtained the working prepared by the Management for compliance with the relevant ratios related
to the Trust and REIT SPVs and recomputed the ratios.

The unaudited financial results for the quarter ended 31 December 2023, have been reviewed by us,
on which we have issued unmodified conclusion vide our report dated 29 January 2024. Our review
of these financial results was conducted in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements
("SRE") 2410 ‘Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity’, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"”). This Standard requires
that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance about whether the financial results
are free from material misstatement.
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7. We conducted our examination and obtained the explanations in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI. This Guidance Note requires that
we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI

8. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC)
1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Review Historical Financial Information, and
Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Conclusion

9. Based on the procedures performed as referred to in paragraph 6 above and according to the
information, explanations and representation provided to us by the Management of the Investment
Manager, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the details included in the
Statement read with the notes related to the Trust have not been accurately extracted from unaudited
books of account of the Trust and REIT SPVs for the quarter ended and as at 31 December 2023 and
other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs.

Restriction on Use and Distribution

10. This certificate is addressed and provided to the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager solely
for the purpose of submission to the Stock exchanges/Debenture Trustee and should not be used by
any other person or for any other purposes without our prior consent in writing. Accordingly, we do
not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person
to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in
writing.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W / W-100018)

Nilesh Digitally signed by
Nilesh Vasant Shah
Vasant Date: 2024.01.29
Shah 13:40:36 +05'30'
Nilesh Shah
Partner

Membership No. 49660
UDIN: 24049660BKFRPG3414
Place: Mumbai
Date: 29 January 2024
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v I Rahejs Corp lrvestment Man Private Limited (Formerly known ns K Rabejn Corp Investment Managers LLP), (*Manager™), hus vide s Eseculive Commlties Meeting daied 19 Juiy 2022, has issued the Tollowing Visted debt secorities:
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REF : NVS/2023-24/045

Independent Auditor’s Certificate on “"Statement of Security Cover and Compliance
Status of Financial Covenants” (“the Statement”) in respect of Non-convertible
debentures ("Green Bond 1”) of the Trust for the quarter ended and as at 31
December 2023

To,

The Board of Directors,

K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as K Raheja Corp
Investment Managers LLP) (The “Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Plot No. C -30, Block ‘G’,

Opp. SIDBI, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated July
18, 2023

2. We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of
Mindspace Business Parks REIT (“the Trust”/ “REIT”), have been requested by the
Management of the Trust to certify the Statement in respect of Non-convertible
debentures ("Green Bond 1") of the Trust for the quarter ended and as at 31 December
2023.

The Statement is prepared by the Management of Investment Manager from the unaudited
books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and
its subsidiaries (REIT SPVs) as at 31 December 2023 pursuant to requirements of Circular
no. SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD _ CRADT / CIR / P/ 2022 / 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued
by Securities and Exchange Board of India in terms of Regulation 54 read with Regulation
56(1)(d) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Regulation 15(1)(t) of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 (hereinafter referred together as
“the SEBI Regulations”), as amended, for the purpose of submission to Catalyst
Trusteeship Limited, Debenture Trustee of the above mentioned Non-convertible
debentures ("Green Bond 1”) (hereinafter referred to as “the Debenture Trustee”)/Stock
exchanges. The responsibility for compiling the information contained in the Statement is
of the Management of the Investment Manager and the same is initialed by us for
identification purposes only.

Regd. Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 27" - 32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai
- 400 013, Maharashtra, India (LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)
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Management’s Responsibility

3.

The preparation of the Statement is the responsibility of the Management of the
Investment Manager, including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and
other relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility includes collecting,
collating, validating data and design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement and applying an appropriate
basis of preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. The
management is solely and entirely responsible for determining the fair value of the assets
included in the statement.

The Management of the Investment Manager is also responsible for ensuring that the Trust
complies with all the relevant requirements of the SEBI Regulations and Debenture Trust
Deed for providing all relevant information to the Debenture Trustees and for complying
with all the covenants as prescribed in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

5.

Pursuant to the requirements of Circular no. SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD _ CRADT / CIR
/ P/ 2022 / 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India, our
responsibility for the purpose of this certificate is to provide a limited assurance on
whether the details included in the Statement related to the Trust in respect of the Non-
convertible debentures (*Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1") for the quarter ended and as at
31 December 2023 have been accurately extracted from the unaudited books of account
and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs . This
did not include the evaluation of adherence by the Trust and REIT SPVs with all the
applicable guidelines of the SEBI Regulations.

The engagement involves performing procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence
to provide limited assurance on the Statement as mentioned in paragraph 5 above. The
procedures performed vary in nature and timing from, and are less in extent than for, a
reasonable assurance engagement. Consequently, the level of assurance obtained in a
limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than the assurance that would have
been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement been performed.

Accordingly, we have performed the following procedures in relation to verification of the
Statement:

a) Read the Statement received from the management of Investment manager.

b) Traced the book value of assets from the unaudited books of account of the Trust as
at 31 December 2023 and other relevant records and documents maintained by the
Trust, in the normal course of its business.

c) Reviewed the Debenture Trust Deed to understand the nature of charge (viz. exclusive
charge or pari-passu charge) on assets.

d) Obtained Register of Charges filed by the REIT SPVs as per the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 to confirm the disclosure of the secured assets.
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e) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Intime Properties Limited ("REIT
SPV") for the book value of assets against which Non-convertible debentures (* Green
Bond 1”) are mortgaged and traced to the book value of assets included in the
Statement of security cover.

f) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Mindspace Business Parks Private
Limited, Sundew Properties Limited, Gigaplex Estate Private Limited and K. Raheja IT
Park (Hyderabad) Limited ("REIT SPVs”) for the book value of assets against which
other Debt Securities are mortgaged and traced to the book value of assets included
in Table II — Security cover on consolidated basis for the listed entity.

g) Performed necessary inquiries with the management and obtained necessary
representations.

h) Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the information included in the Statement.

i) Traced the fair value of the assets from the Valuation report issued by valuers provided
to us by the Management on which we have placed reliance.

j) Obtained the working prepared by the Management for compliance with the relevant
ratios related to the Trust and REIT SPVs and recomputed the ratios.

The unaudited financial results for the quarter ended 31 December 2023, have been
reviewed by us, on which we have issued unmodified conclusion vide our report dated 29
January 2024. Our review of these financial results was conducted in accordance with the
Standard on Review Engagements ("SRE"”) 2410 ‘Review of Intern Financial Information
Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity’, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI"). This Standard requires that we plan and perform the review
to obtain moderate assurance about whether the financial results are free from material
misstatement.

7. We conducted our examination and obtained the explanations in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI. This
Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics
issued by the ICAI.

8. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality
Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Review Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Conclusion

9. Based on the procedures performed as referred to in paragraph 6 above and according to
the information, explanations and representation provided to us by the Management of
the Investment Manager, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the details included in the Statement read with the notes related to the Trust have not
been accurately extracted from unaudited books of account of the Trust and REIT SPVs
for the quarter ended and as at 31 December 2023 and other relevant records and
documents maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs.
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Restriction on Use and Distribution

10. This certificate is addressed and provided to the Board of Directors of the Investment
Manager solely for the purpose of submission to the Stock exchanges/Debenture Trustee
and should not be used by any other person or for any other purposes without our prior
consent in writing. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of
care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into
whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W / W-100018)

Digitally signed by

Nilesh Nilesh Vasant Shah
Date: 2024.01.29
Vasant Shah 13:38:05 +05'30"
Nilesh Shah
Partner

Membership No. 49660
UDIN: 24049660BKFRPH9064
Place: Mumbai
Date: 29 January 2024
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Chartered Accountants

DeIOitte Lotus Corporate Park

1st Floor, Wing A- G

- CTS No.185/A, Jay Coach
HaSklns & SEIIS LLP OffWZstern Expar\éssOSicghway

Goregaon (East)
Mumbai - 400 063
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1001

REF: NVS/2023-24/046

Independent Auditor’s Certificate on “"Statement of Security Cover and Compliance Status of
Financial Covenants” (“the Statement”) in respect of Non-Convertible Debentures Series 6 of
the Trust for the quarter ended and as at 31 December 2023

To,

The Board of Directors,

K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment
Managers LLP) (The “Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Plot No. C -30, Block ‘G,

Opp. SIDBI, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051

1

2

. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 18 July 2023

. We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of Mindspace

Business Parks REIT (“the Trust”/ “REIT”), have been requested by the Management of the Trust to
certify the Statement in respect of Non-Convertible Debentures Series 6 of the Trust for the quarter
ended and as at 31 December 2023.

The Statement is prepared by the Management of Investment Manager from the unaudited books of
account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and its subsidiaries (REIT
SPVs) as at 31 December 2023 pursuant to requirements of Circular no. SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD
_ CRADT / CIR /P /2022 / 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India
in terms of Regulation 54 read with Regulation 56(1)(d) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Regulation 15(1)(t) of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 (hereinafter referred
together as “the SEBI Regulations”), as amended, for the purpose of submission to Catalyst
Trusteeship Limited, Debenture Trustee of the above mentioned Non-Convertible Debentures Series
6 (hereinafter referred to as “the Debenture Trustee”)/Stock exchanges. The responsibility for
compiling the information contained in the Statement is of the Management of the Investment
Manager and the same is initialed by us for identification purposes only.

Management’s Responsibility

3.

The preparation of the Statement is the responsibility of the Management of the Investment Manager,
including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and other relevant supporting records
and documents. This responsibility includes collecting, collating, validating data and design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Statement and applying an appropriate basis of preparation; and making estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances. The management is solely and entirely responsible for determining
the fair value of the assets included in the statement.

The Management of the Investment Manager is also responsible for ensuring that the Trust complies
with all the relevant requirements of the SEBI Regulations and Debenture Trust Deed for providing

Regd. Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 27™ - 32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai
- 400 013, Maharashtra, India (LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)
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all relevant information to the Debenture Trustees and for complying with all the covenants as
prescribed in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Auditor’s Responsibility

5. Pursuant to the requirements of Circular no. SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD _ CRADT / CIR / P/ 2022
/ 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India, our responsibility for the
purpose of this certificate is to provide a limited assurance on whether the details included in the
Statement related to the Trust in respect of the Non-Convertible Debentures Series 6 for the quarter
ended and as at 31 December 2023 have been accurately extracted from the unaudited books of
account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs . This did
not include the evaluation of adherence by the Trust and REIT SPVs with all the applicable guidelines
of the SEBI Regulations.

6. The engagement involves performing procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to provide
limited assurance on the Statement as mentioned in paragraph 5 above. The procedures performed
vary in nature and timing from, and are less in extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement.
Consequently, the level of assurance obtained in a limited assurance engagement is substantially
lower than the assurance that would have been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement
been performed.

Accordingly, we have performed the following procedures in relation to the Statement:

a) Read the Statement received from the management of Investment manager.

b) Traced the book value of assets from the unaudited books of account of the Trust as at 31
December 2023 and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust, in the normal
course of its business.

c) Reviewed the Debenture Trust Deed to understand the nature of charge (viz. exclusive charge or
pari-passu charge) on assets.

d) Obtained Register of Charges filed by the REIT SPVs as per the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2013 to confirm the disclosure of the secured assets.

e) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited
(“REIT SPV”) for the book value of assets against which Non-Convertible Debentures Series 6 are
mortgaged and traced to the book value of assets included in the Statement of security cover.

f) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Sundew Properties Limited, Intime
Properties Limited, Gigaplex Estate Private Limited and K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited
("REIT SPVs”) for the book value of assets against which other Debt Securities are mortgaged
and traced to the book value of assets included in Table II — Security cover on consolidated basis
for the listed entity.

g) Performed necessary inquiries with the management and obtained necessary representations.

h) Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the information included in the Statement.

i) Traced the fair value of the assets from the Valuation report issued by valuers provided to us by
the Management on which we have placed reliance.

j) Obtained the working prepared by the Management for compliance with the relevant ratios related
to the Trust and REIT SPVs and recomputed the ratios.

The unaudited financial results for the quarter ended 31 December 2023, have been reviewed by us,
on which we have issued unmodified conclusion vide our report dated 29 January 2024. Our review
of these unaudited financial results was conducted in accordance with the Standard on Review
Engagements ("SRE"”) 2410 ‘Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent
Auditor of the Entity’, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"”). This
Standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance about whether
the financial results are free from material misstatement.
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7. We conducted our examination and obtained the explanations in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI. This Guidance Note requires that
we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

8. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC)
1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Review Historical Financial Information, and
Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Conclusion

9. Based on the procedures performed as referred to in paragraph 6 above and according to the
information, explanations and representation provided to us by the Management of the Investment
Manager, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the details included in the
Statement read with the notes related to the Trust have not been accurately extracted from unaudited
books of account of the Trust and REIT SPVs for the quarter ended and as at 31 December 2023 and
other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs.

Restriction on Use and Distribution

10. This certificate is addressed and provided to the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager solely
for the purpose of submission to the Stock exchanges/Debenture Trustee and should not be used by
any other person or for any other purposes without our prior consent in writing. Accordingly, we do
not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person
to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in
writing.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W / W-100018)

Digitally signed by

N”eSh Nilesh Vasant Shah
Date: 2024.01.29
Vasant Shah 13:40:55 +05'30'
Nilesh Shah
Partner

Membership No. 49660
UDIN: 24049660BKFRPI7080
Place: Mumbai
Date: 29 January 2024
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Chartered Accountants

DeIOitte Lotus Corporate Park

1st Floor, Wing A- G

Haskins & se“s LLP CTS No.185/A, Jay Coach

Off Western Express Highway
Goregaon (East)

Mumbai - 400 063
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1001

REF: NVS/2023-24/047

Independent Auditor’s Certificate on “"Statement of Security Cover and Compliance Status of
Financial Covenants” (“the Statement”) in respect of Non-Convertible Debentures Series 7 of
the Trust for the quarter ended and as at 31 December 2023

To,

The Board of Directors,

K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment
Managers LLP) (The “Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Plot No. C -30, Block ‘G,

Opp. SIDBI, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051

1

2

. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 18 July 2023

. We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of Mindspace

Business Parks REIT (“the Trust”/ “REIT"), have been requested by the Management of the Trust to
certify the Statement in respect of Non-Convertible Debentures Series 7 of the Trust for the quarter
ended and as at 31 December 2023.

The Statement is prepared by the Management of Investment Manager from the unaudited books of
account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and its subsidiaries (REIT
SPVs) as at 31 December 2023 pursuant to requirements of Circular no. SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD
_ CRADT / CIR/ P /2022 / 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India
in terms of Regulation 54 read with Regulation 56(1)(d) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Regulation 15(1)(t) of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 (hereinafter referred
together as “the SEBI Regulations”), as amended, for the purpose of submission to Catalyst
Trusteeship Limited, Debenture Trustee of the above mentioned Non-Convertible Debentures Series
7 (hereinafter referred to as “the Debenture Trustee”)/Stock exchanges. The responsibility for
compiling the information contained in the Statement is of the Management of the Investment
Manager and the same is initialed by us for identification purposes only.

Management’s Responsibility

3.

The preparation of the Statement is the responsibility of the Management of the Investment Manager,
including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and other relevant supporting records
and documents. This responsibility includes collecting, collating, validating data and design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Statement and applying an appropriate basis of preparation; and making estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances. The management is solely and entirely responsible for determining
the fair value of the assets included in the statement.

The Management of the Investment Manager is also responsible for ensuring that the Trust complies
with all the relevant requirements of the SEBI Regulations and Debenture Trust Deed for providing
all relevant information to the Debenture Trustees and for complying with all the covenants as
prescribed in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Regd. Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 27™ - 32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai
- 400 013, Maharashtra, India (LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)
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Auditor’'s Responsibility

5. Pursuant to the requirements of Circular no. SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD _ CRADT / CIR / P/ 2022
/ 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India, our responsibility for the
purpose of this certificate is to provide a limited assurance on whether the details included in the
Statement related to the Trust in respect of the Non-Convertible Debentures Series 7 for the quarter
ended and as at 31 December 2023 have been accurately extracted from the unaudited books of
account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs . This did
not include the evaluation of adherence by the Trust and REIT SPVs with all the applicable guidelines
of the SEBI Regulations.

6. The engagement involves performing procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to provide
limited assurance on the Statement as mentioned in paragraph 5 above. The procedures performed
vary in nature and timing from, and are less in extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement.
Consequently, the level of assurance obtained in a limited assurance engagement is substantially
lower than the assurance that would have been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement
been performed.

Accordingly, we have performed the following procedures in relation to the Statement:

a) Read the Statement received from the management of Investment manager.

b) Traced the book value of assets from the unaudited books of account of the Trust as at 31
December 2023 and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust, in the normal
course of its business.

c) Reviewed the Debenture Trust Deed to understand the nature of charge (viz. exclusive charge or
pari-passu charge) on assets.

d) Obtained Register of Charges filed by the REIT SPVs as per the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2013 to confirm the disclosure of the secured assets.

e) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited
(“REIT SPV”) for the book value of assets against which Non-Convertible Debentures Series 7 are
mortgaged and traced to the book value of assets included in the Statement of security cover.

f) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited,
Sundew Properties Limited, Gigaplex Estate Private Limited and Intime Properties Limited ("REIT
SPVs”) for the book value of assets against which other Debt Securities are mortgaged and traced
to the book value of assets included in Table II — Security cover on consolidated basis for the
listed entity.

g) Performed necessary inquiries with the management and obtained necessary representations.

h) Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the information included in the Statement.

i) Traced the fair value of the assets from the Valuation report issued by valuers provided to us by
the Management on which we have placed reliance.

j) Obtained the working prepared by the Management for compliance with the relevant ratios related
to the Trust and REIT SPVs and recomputed the ratios.

The unaudited financial results for the quarter ended 31 December 2023, have been reviewed by
us, on which we have issued unmodified conclusion vide our report dated 29 January 2024. Our
review of the these unaudited financial results was conducted in accordance with the Standard on
Review Engagements ("SRE”) 2410 ‘Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Entity’, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAIL").
This Standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance about
whether the financial results are free from material misstatement.
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7.

We conducted our examination and obtained the explanations in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI. This Guidance Note requires that
we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC)
1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Review Historical Financial Information, and
Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Conclusion

9.

Based on the procedures performed as referred to in paragraph 6 above and according to the
information, explanations and representation provided to us by the Management of the Investment
Manager, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the details included in the
Statement read with the notes related to the Trust have not been accurately extracted from unaudited
books of account of the Trust and REIT SPVs for the quarter ended and as at 31 December 2023 and
other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs.

Restriction on Use and Distribution

10. This certificate is addressed and provided to the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager solely

for the purpose of submission to the Stock exchanges/Debenture Trustee and should not be used by
any other person or for any other purposes without our prior consent in writing. Accordingly, we do
not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person
to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in
writing.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W / W-100018)

Digitally signed by

NiIeSh Nilesh Vasant Shah
Date: 2024.01.29
Vasant Shah 13:41:18 +05'30'
Nilesh Shah
Partner

Membership No. 49660
UDIN: 24049660BKFRPJ7208

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29 January 2024
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ANNEXURE 3

BUSIMNESS PARKS REIT

A. Statement of utilization of issue proceeds:

Mode If 8is
Name of of Fund | TYPE Date of Any ;e:r; Rem
the ISIN Raising of raising Am?unt Fl_"_‘ds deviation : arks,
Issuer (Public instru funds Ra|s¢'ed utnlnztad (Yes/ No) SP‘;C'fV if any
issues/ | ment (Rs. in (Rs.in the
Private crore.) crore.) 2‘::;:
placeme .
nt) which
the
funds
were
utilized
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Mindspace |INEOCC| Private |Commer| December 150 150 No NA -
Business |U14021|Placemen| cial 19, 2023
Parks REIT t Paper
B. Statement of deviation/ variation in use of Issue proceeds:
Particulars Remarks
Name of listed entity Mindspace Business Parks REIT
Mode of fund raising Private placement
Type of instrument Commercial Paper
Date of raising funds December 19, 2023
Amount raised Rs. 150 Crores
Report filed for quarter ended December 31, 2023
Is there a deviation/ variation in use of funds raised? No

Whether any approval is required to vary the objects of the issue| NA
stated in the prospectus/ offer document?

If yes, details of the approval so required? NA
Date of approval NA
Explanation for the deviation/ variation NA
Comments of the audit committee after review NA
Comments of the auditors, if any NA

Objects for which funds have been raised and where there has been a deviation/ variation, in the
following table:

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)
Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U68200MH2023PTC406104
Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, C-30, Block ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
Phone: +91 — 22- 2656 4000 | www.mindspacereit.com




BUSIMNESS PARKS REIT

Original object Modified | Original Modified | Funds Amount of | Remarks,
object, if | allocation | allocation,| utilized | deviation/ if any
any (Rs. In if any (Rs. In variation for the

crores) crores) quarter
according to
applicable
object (in Rs.
crore and in %)
For extending loans to NA 150 NA 150 NA NA
Group SPVs for
repayment of financial
indebtedness

(including replenishing
of ODs) &/or re-
payment of financial
indebtedness of Issuer
&/or general
corporate purposes
Deviation could mean:

a. Deviation in the objects or purposes for which the funds have been raised.
b. Deviation in the amount of funds actually utilized as against what was originally disclosed.

For and on behalf of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
(Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

BHARAT ooty
KANAKLAL SANGHAVI
SANGHAVI  raarasse
Bharat Sanghavi

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No. : A13157

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)
Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U68200MH2023PTC406104
Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, C-30, Block ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
Phone: +91 — 22- 2656 4000 | www.mindspacereit.com
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